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About this
report
The purpose of this report is to reflect the 

adjustment of the Bank to the new normal 

in an extraordinary year that has had new 

technologies and digital transformation as 

main characters. A path genuinely walked up 

by Bank, allowing it to add value to its client 

portfolio by modernizing processes, while 

supporting those who seek to connect with 

people and fulfill their ideas and dreams.

 

Understating the imperious need to adjust to 

the new trends, the Bank has grown firm in a 

world of constant evolution. It has embraced 

technology and innovation as important allies 

in a year that made achieving objectives even 

more challenging. 

This report reflects a year of intense work, with 

technology and people as main allies in this 

new way of living. The strategies of continuous 

improvement implemented by the Bank allowed 

continuity and focused on the achievement of 

objectives, despite restrictions implemented as 

health measures. Thus, the company keeps working 

on positioning itself in a dynamic manner. 
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Message from 
the President

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, 

2020 was a historic period with the arrival 

of the Covid-19 pandemic, an event that has 

had profound consequences, not only on the 

economic situation, but also on social behavior 

and consumption and future investment 

patterns in all economic sectors. 

In fact, the impact of the 2020 pandemic comes 

on top of the 2019 persisting influences after 

the first year of the drop in the agricultural gross 

domestic product in 8 years. In both years, the 

support provided by Banco Regional to all of our 

client segments has been fundamental for the 

continuity of their productive activities, as well 

as for the solvency of their investments. 

Considering that situation, the Board and 

the Management Team have taken a cautious 

approach to risk management in order to face 

the establishment of provisions as reserves 

for an adequate credit portfolio coverage, 

which was affected in quality both by the 

persistence of the effects of 2019 and by 

the profound economic slowdown in most 

productive sectors in 2020. 

This cautious position also aimed at 

strengthening the Bank’s solvency with 

extended levels of capitalization, while 

maintaining a significant margin of liquidity 

throughout 2020, both in national and foreign 

Raúl Vera Bogado
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currency, in order to strengthen the financial 

statements in light of an uncertain economic 

scenario. In that way, the commercial dynamism 

has been equally prudent not to accumulate 

new risks in the credit portfolio. 

The reforms made in the Corporate Governance 

of the Bank were an important aspect in the 

preceding year, as announced in our 2019 Annual 

Report, made with the goal of introducing 

adjustments both in the organizational structure 

and in the management policies and operational 

procedures to achieve more cost efficiency and 

improve business competitiveness. 

In this context, the incorporation of Ms. Laura 

Borsato as General Manager in May 2020 was a 

fundamental milestone, as she brings extensive 

experience in regional and international markets 

to Banco Regional. Likewise, after many years of 

mutual effort by the parties involved, we agreed 

on a readjustment of the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement with all collaborators, which shall 

define a more sustainable and competitive 

scenario in the coming years, complying with 

one of the mandates of the June 2020 General 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

The challenge that remains to be overcome is 

recovering the profitability of our operations, 

an essential objective defined by the Board 

and the Management for 2021 and 2022. 

As announced in the last Meeting, 2021 will 

continue to be a year of adjustments and limited 

profitability with a solid coverage of provisions 

due to the fateful previous economic years, for 

which the Board and the Management have 

defined strategic objectives that will allow the 

generation of new products and services for our 

individual and corporate clients, as well as the 

strengthening of our digital banking model. 

On behalf of the Board, I deeply thank the 

continuous trust of our shareholders, our 

clients and collaborators, to whom we ratify our 

commitment of favoring the systemic strength 

and solvency of our institution and carrying out 

the reforms needed to achieve profitability levels 

in the financial market average in the short term. 

Thank you very much, 

RAÚL VERA BOGADO
CEO
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1.1. The Bank
Since its foundation in 1991, Banco Regional 
has been recognized for the commitment to 
the success of people and the growth of the 
communities where it operates. 

An institution with a strong working 

conviction and the will to keep 

innovating sets the difference in an 

ever more demanding world. The Bank 

recognizes the importance of being in 

the forefront, so it has taken firm and 

genuine steps to adapt to the new 

normal during a period that has been 

challenging for all. 

Consolidated as the Bank that supports 

the growth of its people and enables 

the development of its community, 

today Banco Regional is part of an 

important Economic Group 

that actively provides for and 

collaborates with the social 

and economic development of 

the country. 

Regional Seguros, Regional 

Casa de Bolsa and Fundación 

Regional have strengthen the 

transformation into an economic 

group by proving adaptability 

through continual rethinking and 

constant growth. 

Name of the Company

Address

Collaborators

Number of Branches (1)

Common Shareholders 

Preferred Shareholders  

ATMs

SSTs

(1) Including Administrative Offices
in the total

Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A.

Carlos Antonio López  Nº 1348 
e/  Arq. Tomás Romero Pereira 
y 14 de mayo, Encarnación.

605

32

641

371

84

48
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The Bank understands that 

technology is fundamental for 

companies. In a dynamic society 

where digitalization prevails, 

businesses need to adapt to 

new trends, so the company 

started set off in that direction. 

An unbreakable evolution that 

includes close client assistance.

 

All along, the Bank underwent 

multiple refinement processes 

without forgetting its roots and 

the reasons why it was created, 

such as facilitating producers 

of the department of Itapúa 

access to credits, or installing and 

positioning a competitive financial 

institution close to people. 

Banco Regional undertook the 

challenge of evolving without 

stopping and keeps adapting to 

the needs of clients who are the 

real protagonists of this journey. 

During the entire year, the Correspondent area was 
continuously in contact with its international relations 
transferring information on the economic and financial situation 
of Paraguay, as well as the measures of economic incentives 
lead by the Central Bank of Paraguay. Banco Regional’s 
communicative and transparent attitude translated into an 
increase in international lines for a total of USD 40 million in a 
year in which the creation of more conservative credit policies 
stood out. 

At the same time, meetings with 

our main relationship partners 

and their most significant 

representatives were coordinated 

through digital platforms. 

The Bank was invited by J.P. 

Morgan to participate in the 11th 

Annual Corporate Conference of 

Global Emerging Markets in which 

approximately 700 people of 136 

companies and more than 300 

investors participated. It was held 

in the city of Miami, United States, 

on February 24, 25 and 26. 

In November, Mr. Raúl Vera Bogado 

and Ms. Laura Borsato participated 

in the LIV Annual Felaban Meeting, 

which was also held virtually. 

WOMEN / GENDER 
EQUALITY

In January, we participated in the 

Congress organized by Financial 

Alliance for Women in Quito, 

Ecuador. Financial Alliance for 

Women is a nonprofit organization 

that works as an international 

consortium of financial institutions 

interested in women economy. Its members 

work in more than 135 countries to build 

programs that support women through 

access to capital, information, education and 

markets. The organization has its headquarters 

in Brooklyn, New York. There, success cases 

from many places around the world, like 

Australia, England, Canada, the Dominican 

Republic, Colombia, Ecuador and different 

types of banks and market approaches were 

presented. The participants were men and 

women from all continents. This congress 

encourages banks around the world to look at 

this economic group, since as it is well known, 

women are responsible for family finances 

in 80% of cases; when they are in charge 

community and society grow. 

In February, we participated in an International 

Discussion on Women, Economics and 

Sustainable Development, organized by 

Fundación Capital and the Global Compact 

Network in Paraguay. 

In November, Banco Regional sponsored 

the fourth edition of Paraguay’s Women’s 

Entrepreneurship Day, an event carried out in 
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144 countries with the purpose 

of  “empowering, celebrating 

and supporting women around 

the world”, aimed at women of all 

ages and from all over the country, 

looking to inspire participants with 

the life stories of lecturers and to 

generate networking opportunities 

and to provide practical tools that 

can be applied by those wishing to 

start a business. 

NETWORK OF 
CORRESPONDENTS AND 
INTERNATIONAL MARKET

Currently, the Bank maintains 

strategic alliances to comply with 

the commitment to support its 

clients with correspondent banks 

and multilateral organizations. 

Correspondent Banks: 
1. Bank of China, China

2. Citibank, USA

3. Commerzbank, Germany

4. JP Morgan Chase & Co., USA

5. Cooperation Organizations

6. Rabobank, The Netherlands

7. Wells Fargo, USA

Multilateral Cooperation Organizations: 
1. IDB Invest, Inter-American Development Bank

2. BIO Invest

3. Bladex - Foreign Trade Bank of Latin America

4. BNDES, Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento Economico e Social 

(National Bank of Economic and Social Development)

5. DEG, Deustche Investitions - und Entwicklungsgesellschaft

(German Investment and Development Company)

6. CAF, Development Bank for Latin America

7. FMO, Nederlandse Financierings – Maatschappij (Netherlands

8. IFC, International Finance Corporation

9. OFID, Fund for International Development

10. DFC, U.S. Development Finance Corporation 

11. PROPACO, Groupe Agence Francaise de Développement

 (French Development Agency Group)

12. Responsability Investments AG
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Institutional 
statements

1.2.

VISION

To innovate permanently to 
be the bank of successful 
people who lead the 
development of the country

MISSION

To be committed to the 
success of our clients

VALUES

Integrity
Professionalism
Positive Attitude
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1.3.
Main accomplishments 
in 2020
2020 was a challenging year. The Banco Regional team gave their 
best to overcome challenges: 

Within a month of 

the pandemic, 605 

collaborators were 

IT WAS THE FIRST BANK IN THE 
COUNTRY TO INSTALL A BACK-
UP MODEL OF BRANCHES AND 
TELEWORKING FROM PHASE 0. 

It launched and safely 

set up collaboration and 

communication tools to 

maintain the connection 

between collaborators, clients 

and suppliers. 

equipped with the technology and tools 

to work, with a 100% success rate for  

remote and safe connection. 

The Meeting of 

Shareholders was 

100% virtual. 
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It assisted all Bank 

collaborators 

and their family 

IT ACHIEVED THE FOURTH PLACE 
IN LOANS DISBURSED WITH 
FOGAPY GUARANTEE, WITH 
AN OPERATION APPROVAL 
RESPONSE TIME OF ONE HOUR. 

It consolidated the 

integral management of 

risks, using Risk Appetite 

as a strategic tool. 

During the 

lockdown phases, 

it carried out more 

The interest rate applied 

to deposits was reduced, 

managing to maintain 

the volume of deposits in 

Private Banking. 

It maintained its leadership position 

in agribusiness. 

members by providing protection 

and cleaning supplies. Protocols 

were set and updated, with 

medical advice. 

than 700 visits to clients of Private 

Banking with all preventive measures. 
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It centralized the 

uploading process 

of the Combined 

Financing Mechanism 

(CFM) for amounts 

higher than USD 

100,000, optimizing 

time investment in 

more 50% for the 

commercial area. 

It activated USD 59 million-lines 

with correspondents a week 

before restrictions started in 

international markets. 

It managed IDB to 

double its short-

term line, from USD 

20 to 40 MILLION. 

12%

82%

88%

12% transfers sent abroad 

from the WEB. 

the number of operations 

received by SIPAP. 

the operations issued by 

SIPAP, 90% was made via 

alternative channels. 

It increased by: 

It launched the new WEB site of the Bank 

along with additional contact channels 

such as online chat and WhatsApp. 
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It incorporated the areas of 

Supplementary Sales Channels, 

Department of Sustainable 

Development and Management 

of Strategic Projects, which 

are aligned to the pillars of the 

strategic plan. 

It launched an institutional 

campaign for all media, 

including television, and 

reactivated campaigns to 

encourage using credit cards 

through reimbursements, 

generating more than 5000 new 

transactions in 15 days. 

All of this was carried out 
by placing clients as the 
focus of the core actions.
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our clients
Committed



ÍNDICE MEMORIA CARTA 01 02 03 04

16

Corporate
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2.1. Governance 
Structure

Banco Regional 
allows and 
promotes the 
participation of 
all of its members 
in business and 
organization 
development
and growth. 

Immerse in current times, in a more 

technological and digital world that 

is part of a process of innovation, 

Regional seeks to get each human 

talent actively involved with the 

goal so that they can understand 

and serve arising needs. 

Following the hierarchical line, 

Banco Regional’s Governance 

Structure is set up as follows: The 

General Meeting of Shareholders, 

which meets annually to analyze, 

assess and discuss financial 

statements and the way to use 

dividends; and the Board of 

Directors, which is responsible for 

the direction and supervision of the 

functioning of the Bank in line with 

the strategic objectives defined. 

The Directors have a Managerial 

Staff in charge of managing 

the different areas that form 

the organization. On their side, 

managers are supported by 

auxiliary committees that are a 

specialized technical support unit. 
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Executive President: Raúl Vera Bogado

Vice-President: Cornelis Beijer

Regular Director: Alfredo Raatz

Regular Director: Erik Heyl

Regular Director: Francisco Yanagida

Alternate Director: Roland Wolff

Alternate Director: Diego Castro

Alternate Director: Jaime Busanello

Alternate Director: Adrián Lorenzutti

Alternate Director: Walter Duarte

Regular Trustee: Irene Memmel de Matiauda

Alternate Trustee: Lourdes Müller

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

As to the Board of Directors, its integration by the end of 

financial year 2020 is as follows: 

MANAGEMENT

General Manager: Laura Borsato

Financial Manager: Oscar Godoy Silvero

Corporate and Institutional Banking Manager: Walter Duarte Kallus

Branches and Business Development
Manager: Cynthia Sotelo Galeano

Internal Audit Manager: Juan Carlos Meza Castro

Compliance Manager: Carlos Vera Bogado

Internal Legal Counsel Manager: Marcos Dalla Fontana Cortessi

Corporate Banking Risks Manager: Ricardo Nowosad Gines

Risks Manager: Daniel Van Det

Recoveries and Restructuring Manager: 
Jorge Sienkawiec Szostak

Organizational Development Manager: Bettina Agüero Bradshaw

SMEs and Personal Banking Risks Manager: 
Richard Delvalle Medina

Operations Manager: Diana Lafeld Rieszotka

I.T. Manager: Georgina Baumgarten Lavand

Administrative Manager: Fabio Sitzmann Hein

Private Banking Manager: Anahí Heisecke Rivarola

Treasury Manager: Daniel Cibils Farres

Operational Risk and Fraud Prevention
Manager: 

Erica Werner Schmidt

Transactional Banking, Correspondents and 
Foreign Trade Manager: Rafaela Oleinik Rosa

Risk Projects Manager: Antonio Gimenez González

MIS and Risk Models Manager: Mats Hernegard
www.regional.com.py
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COMMITTEES

PORTFOLIO FOLLOW-UP 
COMMITTEE
The committee has the general 

mandate of following up on the bad 

debt portfolio of the Bank, which 

is generally kept in Recoveries and 

the follow-up portfolio (Watch List), 

usually managed by the commercial 

area, comprised by credits with 

weakness alerts that could turn into 

bad debts. 

COMMERCIAL ACTIONS 
COMMITTEE
Its main purpose is to present, analyze 

and approve the actions promoted by 

the Business Development Area that 

directly affect the business units of 

Banco Regional. 

ALCO COMMITTEE
It is responsible for making 

decisions regarding the 

administration of assets and 

liabilities transactions, and for 

receiving the support of duties 

performed by Treasury and 

other departments in terms of 

exposure report and analysis. It is 

also the strategic body to ensure 

the normal development and 

sustainability of the institution in 

the long term. 

Assets and liabilities management 

is a process that involves all areas 

of the Bank. The general purpose of 

Assets and Liabilities Management 

refers to the integral process 

that helps maintain an adequate 

liquidity, to maintain sufficient 

capital and to use it efficiently. The 

primary components are: capital 

management, risk management of interest 

rates, liquidity, exchange rates and policies 

to set prices for fund transfers. 

INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE
It is an executive body with the purpose 

of supervising procedures for risk 

management, control and government, 

especially those related to generating and 

issuing financial information, internal control 

system, vigilance processes, compliance 

with legal requirements from regulators and 

the Code of Conduct of the Bank. 

CREDIT COMMITTEE
It is responsible for ensuring compliance 

with the best practices, policies, 

proceedings, laws and standards set out 

by regulators to maintain a healthy and 

cautious administration of undertaken risks. 

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING AND ANTI-
TERRORISM FINANCING COMMITTEE

It is responsible for writing 

Compliance Policies that have 

to get the approval of the Board, 

and preparing the Anti-Money 

Laundering and Anti-Terrorism 

Financing Procedure Manual. It 

aims at verifying compliance with 

internal policies and procedures 

in force in the institution, 

analyzing any area-related 

issues that may have regulatory 

or reputational implications 

for the Bank. In addition, and 

based on local standards and 

best international practices, it 

is in charge of verifying cases 

presented by the Compliance 

Area, determining the submission 

of Reports on Suspicious 

Operations to the Secretariat 

for the Prevention of Money 

Laundering, when appropriate. 
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HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
It is a structured executive body in charge of approving the 

implementation of HR sub-systems and practices according 

to the needs of the organization and the strategic plan of the 

Bank as approved by the Board. 

RISKS COMMITTEE
The Risk Committee is responsible for supervising the 

performance of operations based on the objectives, 

guidelines and policies for the administration of Operational 

Risks, Physical Security and Information Security of the Bank, 

as well as the limits of risk exposure (risk appetite) previously 

approved by the Board. The Risks Committee promotes the 

participation of the three lines of defense so that operational 

risks and the security of the bank are adequately managed. 

For the performance of its tasks, it receives the support of 

several areas of the department of Operational Risks and the 

Physical Security and IT Security areas of the Bank. 

IT COMMITTEE
It is responsible for formalizing the formation, responsibility 

and duties of the Committee for Managing and Planning 

Technology Services (Technology Committee). This procedure 

involves all Members of the Committee. 

MANAGERIAL COMMITTEE
Its main objective is analyzing 

issues related to Budget 

and Financial Management, 

Commercial Management, 

Strategic Management, Operations 

Management, Administrative 

Management and I.T. Management; 

as well as issuing internal 

resolutions within its scope and 

submitting Minutes of resolutions 

to the Board. 

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE
Its main purpose is monitoring 

and supervising the effective 

implementation of the Strategic 

Plan of Banco Regional as approved 

by the Board. Strategic planning 

involves the following stages: 

Strategic Foundation, Strategic 

Options and Mobilization.

 

The institution understands 

strategic management as a process 

through which the Bank defines its vision and 

the strategies to reach it. It includes the active 

participation of organizational stakeholders, 

the permanent gathering of information on its 

key factors of success, reviewing, monitoring 

and periodic adjusting them so that it becomes 

a management style that turns the bank into a 

proactive institution. 
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Permanently innovating
to be the bank of
people and a leading
character in the 
development of the country
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2.2.
Structure of the 
Company
In 2018, Banco Regional became a Publicly-Traded 
Company (Sociedad Anónima Emisora de Capital 
Abierto), formed by local shareholders mainly. 
Vote participation percentages are distributed as 
follows: 61.60% for local shareholders and 38.40% 
for Rabo Partnerships B.V. from The Netherlands as 
foreign shareholder. 

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS
The Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. financial 

institution communicates the national financial 

system, its clients, investors and the general 

public that its shareholding as of December 31, 

2020, is the following: 

Shareholders Vote Participation 
Percentage

Nationality / country of 
incorporation

Minority shareholders 51.65% Paraguay
Grupo Raatz 9.95% Paraguay
Rabo Partnerships B.V. 38.40% The Netherlands

Shareholders Vote Participation 
Percentage

Nationality / country of 
incorporation

Cooperative 
Rabobank U.A. 

100.00% The Netherlands

Likewise, the next table provides details about the shareholder that is part of the 

share capital of Rabo Partnerships B.V. corporate shareholder.

This publication is made upon request of the Superintendency of Banks, within 

the framework of provisions of article 107 “Informational transparency” of Law No. 

861/96 “General of Banks, Financial Institutions and other Credit Institutions”. 
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Risk 
Management

2.3.

LIQUIDITY 
ADMINISTRATION RISK 
MANAGEMENT

The Bank set this criterion 

based on the measurement 

of liquidity gaps, by breaking 

down its balance through 

time to calculate the 

minimum reserves of Net 

Liquid Assets in local and 

foreign currency to easily 

comply with the expenditures 

expected during the period 

of time set. 

There are also limits set and 

controlled on ratios of Net Liquid 

Assets/Demand Deposits and 

Loans/Deposits in local and 

foreign currency. The indicators 

that serve for early detection 

of future events and allow an 

advanced and timely reaction by 

risk managers are also controlled 

and analyzed.

 

The concentration of Deposits 

is another focus of liquidity 

management using the Herfindahl 

Hirschman Index and the 

participation of the 50 largest 

depositors, ratios of Short-Term 

Liquidity, Concentration of Largest 

Depositors set by the Central Bank 

of Paraguay, which are presented 

and analyzed in ALCO. 

The control of liquidity risks 

demands a comprehensive process 

that allows liquidity management 

in the short term and funding 

structural need in time, including 

the commercial, Finance, Treasury 

and Risk areas with the purpose of 

complying with the goals proposed 

by the institution. 

The changes introduced in liquidity 

control allowed us to overcome 

the 2020 pandemic period -  an 

unusual situation that affected the 

expectations of the entire country 

and specially the financial sector - in 

an orderly and systematized fashion. 

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

The exposure to price variations, such as 

exchange rates and interest rates, are part of 

Banco Regional’s integral risk management. 

For that reason, in the Policy of Market Risks, 

the models of measurement, control and risk 

limits from price variation are determined with 

accuracy. The Exchange Rate Risk includes 

models consolidated through limits of Value at 

Risk (VAR) of the positions in foreign currency. 

The individual positions are also monitored 

automatically. The limits proposed for quotation 

risk are more demanding than those set out by 

the Central Bank of Paraguay in its regulations. 

To measure Interest Risk, there are models 

based on the measurement of sensitivity of 

the balance sheet to the variation of a basic 

point of the Interest Rates in the market 

(PVO1) in the books of Negotiations and Banks. 

These measures allow the projection of the 

Management of Assets and Liabilities of 

Interest Rates and help understand the risks 

for the positions undertaken in the Balance 
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Sheet and, therefore, to manage 

the coverages and mitigation 

specifically. 

OPERATING RISK 
MANAGEMENT AND FRAUD 
PREVENTION

The operating risk management 

and fraud prevention is supported 

by a governance structure based 

on three lines of defense and each 

of them has its responsibilities 

clearly defined. Policies, standards 

and tools were implemented to 

provide a management framework 

and allow risk holders to identify, 

measure, assess, monitor and 

mitigate risks, thus minimizing 

operational losses. 

Since 2020, the department 

is also in charge of fraud 

management and prevention. 

It is led by the Operational Risk 

and Fraud Prevention Management, which 

reports to Risk Management and the Risk 

Committee and is related to all other areas 

of the Bank. Operational risk management 

and fraud prevention is based on three 

fundamental pillars: 

 The management of incidents of 

operational risk and fraud prevention seeking 

to continuously improve processes. 

 The self-assessment of risks to key 

processes of the bank. 

 The preventive evaluation of risk in 

the proposal of new products, giving 

participation to all managements. 

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
DURING THE PANDEMIC

2020 was marked by the COVID-19 pandemic, 

which tested the effectiveness of continuity 

plans implemented by the bank in previous years.

The operating risk and fraud 

prevention department acted 

as support and facilitator in 

the team formed to respond to 

the crisis. The results achieved 

were more than positive and 

timely to mitigate the effects of 

the pandemic, both in human 

resources of the bank and in 

the adequation of processes 

of the bank, always focused on 

digital transformation and new 

technology implementation. 

CREDIT RISK 
MANAGEMENT

The area of Credit Risk has 

procedures and tools that make 

it possible to evaluate, undertake 

and monitor credit risks for 

different types of debtors, taking 

into account the many segments 

targeted by the Bank.

It should be noted that Regional 

has an area of Recoveries and 

Restructuring that assists clients 

who are facing financial imbalance 

so that they can return to normal 

operation. In addition to the 

Recoveries and Restructuring area 

that assists clients of the Corporate, 

Companies, Personal and Small 

Companies Banking areas, Regional 

has an area of Portfolio Overseeing 

and Monitoring in charge of 

the follow-up of early warning 

indicators in client portfolio. 

The main basis for analysis is the 

debtor’s ability to pay, as expressed 

by the Central Bank of Paraguay, 

in order to maintain the Bank’s 

credit portfolio rated and establish 

provisions to cover for losses. 

The area of Portfolio Overseeing and 

Monitoring is now part of the MIS 
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risk area, Models and Market Risks, 

which is in charge of following up on 

early warning indicators in the client 

portfolio. The main basis for analysis is 

the debtor’s ability to pay, as expressed 

by the Central Bank of Paraguay, in 

order to maintain the Bank’s credit 

portfolio rated and establish provisions 

to cover for losses.

With the purpose of having strong 

risk measurement and rating, the 

area of Risk Models is working 

on the development of tools to 

determine the Economic Capital 

required by the Bank, so that credit 

operation returns are in line with 

the clients’ risk profile. 2020 was a 

year in which efforts were focused 

on consolidating an integral risk 

management model that allowed 

the Bank to face the harsh scenario 

raised by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SOCIAL AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL RISK 
MANAGEMENT

Attention to Social and 

Environmental Risk is focused on 

strengthening client relationship 

by identifying, evaluating and 

managing risks generated by their 

business activities. This is done 

to minimize the possibilities of 

becoming indirect accomplices.

 

The Bank has a list of non-fundable 

activities and a Risk Matrix 

based on risk estimation per 

funded activity and risk exposure 

determination for the institution. 

Due diligence intensity and credit 

condition depth are defined with 

these two factors. 

For this, the Bank has professionals 

with careers in environmental 

sciences and also supports 

improving these employees’ 

knowledge, as well as participating 

in training events related to the 

area. Banco Regional keeps making 

improvements in Social and 

Environmental Risk Management.

 

Tools such as Global Forest Watch 

and the processing of satellite 

images with ArcGIS software help 

making decisions during the credit 

process, in order to evaluate and 

supervise environmental risks to 

which the Bank may be exposed. 
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3.1.

213

392

Our work 
team
PROFILE

The will to carry the country forward with strong 

work conviction and complete confidence in 

the national potential is characteristic of Banco 

Regional. On a year where context increased 

challenges, the Bank managed to adapt to the 

demands and position itself at the forefront 

for the achievement of its goals. As a result-

oriented institution, it is based on knowing its 

clients and committing to them year after year.

Human capital management is a strategic 

issue for organizational life and long-term 

sustainability. The Bank seeks to attract the 

best, taking care of its collaborators and always 

encouraging their development as people who 

contribute to achieving the Institutional Vision 

and Mission. Thus, it reasserts its conviction of 

being the Bank for successful people

who lead the country’s development.

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

In 2020, there were 82 training programs 

and courses. The total investment 

allocated was PYG 368,193,390. One of 

the biggest challenges was migrating 

training processes to virtual means while 

strengthening internal training.

INTERNAL RECRUITMENT

In compliance with the provisions in the 

area policy, the Bank seeks to favor the 

development of its collaborators’ career. To 

illustrate this, in 2020, there were 27 internal 

selection processes and 69 promotions to 

cover for vacant positions.

As of December 2020, the 
list of collaborators was 
formed by:

women

men
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SUPPORT TO 
POSTGRADUATE PROGRAMS

Based on the fundamental premise 

of permanently increasing both 

the intellectual and human capital 

of the organization, the value and 

competency of continuous and 

higher-level learning are promoted 

and strengthened. In this period, 

3 collaborators from the areas of 

Branches, Corporate Risks and 

Organizational Development 

have had access to the benefit of 

support for postgraduate studies.

RABOBANK TALENT 
PROGRAM

Already positioned as one of 

the most attractive training 

programs for collaborators, in 

2020, two representatives of the 

Bank participated in the “Future 

Leadership Program – Unplugged 

2020” that due to the health 

situation, was carried out virtually. 

Representatives of Planning and 

Control of Financial Management 

and Organizational Development 

took part.

FEEDBACK COURSES FOR 
LEADERS 

As part of the implementation of 

a new platform of Performance 

Review in an alliance with 

consultant Yoica, there were 

training events for all leaders about 

the new procedure, as well as the 

development of skills aimed at 

performing effective and timely 

feedback processes.

COVID-19 SURVEY 

With the support of GPTW 

Paraguay, this measurement was 

implemented with the goal of gathering information 

onhow collaborators felt working during the pandemic. 

Results were shared in virtual meetings with the entire

organization and then, workshops were carried out 

with leaders to work on action plans.
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PANDEMIC – ACTIONS CARRIED OUT

From the start, e-mails were sent out 

periodically with the slogan “Regional takes 

care of you”, with information about news, 

recommendations, safety and hygiene tips and 

other relevant news regarding the COVID-19 

pandemic. When necessary, the situation 

of quarantined or infected staffers was also 

communicated. Masks, gloves, face shields 

and later reusable masks with the logo of the 

Bank were provided. In addition, Fundación 

Regional was in charge of donating masks to the 

collaborators of the companies of 

the Group.

The services of Dr. Hernán 

Rodríguez Enciso, expert infection 

disease specialist, were hired to 

advise on the preparation of the 

protocols in force and the measures 

to be implemented, updates on 

the evolution of treatments and 

dynamic procedures from the 

beginning until today.

There was coordination with 

health insurance providers 

for communicating news and 

alternatives for virtual consultation 

and mediating for specific cases 

of analysis of collaborators from 

different parts of the country.

There were two discussion events 

with the medical advisor and there 

were multiple daily consultations 

referring to different situations 

faced by collaborators and their 

family members, providing advice 

and contention in extended

hours, including weekends 

and holidays. Strategies were 

developed and measures were 

applied for each particular case.
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WE HEAR YOU – SPACE 
SUPPLIED TO LISTEN TO 
COLLABORATORS

There was an intranet section opened 

called “We hear you”. This was a space 

created for collaborators to share 

their opinion about opportunities for 

improvement, both in their areas as well 

as in the organization and processes 

developed by them or together with 

other areas, and the impact of these 

actions on their daily work. There were 

21 video testimonials from several areas 

with the participation of collaborators 

discussing their ideas and opinions 

about different aspects related to the 

organization. They also talked about their 

activities, challenges and achievements.
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CONTEST: MOTHER’S DAY

The idea was that every mother 

and collaborator of the Bank would 

tell an anecdote they lived with 

their kids while doing home office, 

and attach a picture representing 

that situation. The photos were 

published by each participant in 

theintranet site created especially 

for the contest and the three most 

voted mothers received a prize.

PINK OCTOBER – VIDEO 
IN REMEMBRANCE OF 
THE BREAST CANCER 
PREVEINTION MONTH

In October, a video was produced 

with collaborators of the Regional 

Group (Banco Regional, Regional 

Seguros, Regional Casa de Bolsa 

and Fundación Regional) to 

remember the importance of timely 

check-ups and preventive

measures against breast cancer. 

The audiovisual material was 

shared with collaborators in the 

Bank’s intranet.

CHRISTMAS SPIRIT, 
DECORATING THE PLAZA DE 
ARMAS OF ENCARNACIÓN

To increase the festive spirit at 

the end of the year and as part 

of social responsibility actions, 

Banco Regional, together with the 

Municipality of Encarnación, was in 

charge of the general decoration of 

the Plaza de Armas of the city, with

the installation of lights and 

Christmas decorations in the trees 

of the square. 

There was an activity involving 

collaborators of the Regional 

Group (Banco Regional, Regional 

Seguros, Fundación Regional and 

Regional Casa de Bolsa) where a 

nativity scene was prepared in the 

esplanade of the square and artisanal 

decorations made by collaborators 

and their families were hanged. This 

way, Banco Regional, as an institution

committed to the development of 

the city where it was born, decorated 

one of the city’s main meeting places 

so that it would be ready to receive 

the holidays.

The pictures of Regionalitos, who 

participated in the preparation 

of the decorations with recycled 

materials, were published in the 

intranet of the Bank, as well as 

pictures of the memorable event.

EMPLOYER OF THE YEAR

Banco Regional was recognized 

with the “Employer of the Year” 

award, by the 5 Días newspaper. 

This is the fourth edition of the 

award ceremony, held virtually 

this year, which presents a list of 

the main 40 public and private 

companies that stand out for 

their annual contribution to the 

retirement system of the Social 

Security Institute (IPS, for its 

Spanish initials) and the Banking 

Retirement Fund. This is evidence of 

responsible work, offering the best 

to their collaborators in a country 

where 67% of workers do not have 

social insurance.
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All benefits set by law for collaborators 

and their families were complied with. 

In addition, there was investment in

additional benefits to promote the 

integral development of the team and 

to retain talent. The main ones are:

Health Insurance: 80% coverage of the cost for the beneficiary and their basic family group.

Life Insurance: 100% coverage of life insurance cost.

Marriage: 5 working days off and a subsidy for marriage.

Maternity and Childbirth: 126 calendar days of maternity leave. Breastfeeding period of 90 minutes 
per day for 6 months from the date of return. A present is given to the newborn.

Paternity leave: 14 calendar days.

Leave for child illness: 10 working days per year for both the mother and father.

Family bonus: 7.9% of the Bank’s minimum wage, for children up to 17 years-old, paying double for 
children of widowed workers. Additional 50% family bonus for employees with children with disabilities.

Subsidies: For the death of a spouse, children or parents of the employee. For the birth of a child of 
the employee. For marriage.

Day care benefit: Amount set by the Collective Contract, for the payment of day care of children up 
to 5 years old.

Leave for college exams: 12 working days on paid leave annually for people who are attending the 
university and who must take regular exams are granted.

Monthly stipend: Amount set according to the Collective Contract.

Uniforms: Twice a year (one for winter and another one for summer).

Birthdays: A day off per birthday.

A birthday present is given to each collaborator.

BENEFITS GRANTED
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GENERAL CLIENT PROFILE

Banco Regional ended 2020 with 98,441 

clients, 95% of which are Individuals and 5% 

are Companies.

Out of the 32 branches, the 
ranking of client distribution per 
zone is as follows:

Central  47%
Alto Paraná 21%
Itapúa  18%
Caaguazú 4%
Canindeyú 2%
Guairá  2%
Amambay 1%
San Pedro 1%

As to age range, we have 

confirmed in Client Profile that 

the 20-40 year-old range is the 

top one again, with 60%.

PRODUCTS

INSTITUTIONAL CAMPAIGN FOR THE 
COVID-19 EMERGENCY MEASURES 
“STAY HOME, WE SUPPORT YOU” 
(UNTRANSLATABLE PLAY ON 
WORDS FROM THE EXPRESSION “TE 
BANCAMOS” IN SPANISH)

ZERO MINIMUM PAYMENT (0) FOR 
CREDIT CARDS:
The minimum payment for credit 

cards in statements was set in PYG 

0 (zero) for maturities in April, May 

and June.

Clients
3.2.

SELF-MANAGEMENT FOR 
REFINANCING CREDIT CARDS:
It consisted of the distribution in 

installments of credit card debt 

through Regional Web, without 

having to go to a branch and/or 

sign documents. For this service, 

there was no debt amortization and 

no card blocking.

MASS REPROGRAMMING OF LOANS:
For loans with equal consecutive 

installments, the installments of 

March, April and May were moved 

to the end of the loan period. With 

this measure, clients of the Bank 

got some financial relief.

AUTOMATIC RESTRUCTURING OF 
AUTOMATIC LOANS:
An automated process that 

consisted of restructuring loan 

debts taken from digital channels 

(automatic loans), following

the same criteria of the initial offer, 

i.e., without going to a branch or 

signing documents, among others.
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FOGAPY-BACKED LOANS
It is a loan granted by Banco Regional for 

financial relief, which has a guarantee in 

case of nonpayment. These guarantees 

can even get to 90% of the principal. It 

is aimed at clients and non-clients who 

meet the commercial requirements of 

the bank and the provisions of FOGAPY 

regulation. Banco Regional rose from 7 th 

place in June, to 4 th place in December 

in the ranking of companies with most 

placements, ending the last month of 

the year with 1,150 loans disbursed for an 

amount of PYG 245,905 million.

COMMERCIAL ACTIONS
AND ALLIANCES

LOAN PAYMENT VIA PAGO MÓVIL:
A new form/channel was made available 

to clients who are individuals, to pay for 

installments of loans in Guaranies with 

Banco Regional. This is done through 

Pago Móvil (Infonet Cobranzas).

ZIMPLE DAY (ALLIANCE WITH PESA-BANCARD)
In an alliance with PESA (Pagos Electrónicos 

S.A.), a Zimple day was carried out with the main 

purpose of motivating the use of electronic 

wallets to reactivate and increase transactions 

with this service with Banco Regional. By 

charging the wallet, clients received 50% of the 

value of the operation.

VISA CONTACTLESS DAYS (WITH SECURITY AND 
WITHOUT CONTACT)
Together with the VISA brand, there was a campaign to 

motivate the use of contactless for fuel. The activity was

carried out on Tuesdays, September 8, 15 and 22. By paying 

contactless with the VISA Banco Regional card, clients

received 30% off the maximum value per charge.
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CREDIT CARD 
REIMBURSEMENT 
CAMPAIGNS
Sectors:

  Hairdressers and spa 

  Restaurants, coffee shops, 

ice cream shops, pastry shops 

and bars.

LOANS
  Promotional Fees for:

       o  Personal Loans

       o  Loans for Brand New Cars

       o  Loans for SMEs

       o  Loans for Machinery 

       o  Agricultural Loans (Operating Capital)

CREDIT CARD REIMBURSEMENT CAMPAIGNS
Cash advance, 10 installments without interests

  Tax payment, 6 installments without interests

  Tech sector, 12 installments without interests

  Drug stores, 6 installments without interests

  Supermarkets, 6 installments without interests

  Alliances with stores:

       o  La Familia Supermarket, Gran Vía 

Supermarket, Cadena Real Supermarket, Grupo 

Trovari, Hard Rock Café, Prosegur, Servicio 

Médico Tajy, Colegio Británico, La Yuteña, 

Gastrocenter, Rochembach, Nasser 

Cubiertas, Mercoeste, Vane S.A., 

Progresar, Repsur, Colchones 

Paraná, Hotel Awa, Shopping 

Day, Black Shopping Week, Feria 

Shopping Mcal. López, Mega Star.

Week, Fería Shopping Mcal. López, 

Mega Star.
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DEVELOPMENT OF REAL ESTATE BUSINESS

2020 started with an auspicious demand and a promising 

scenario for house funding portfolio increase. However, since

the Government’s suspension of activities as a consequence 

of the covid-19 pandemic, the real estate sector was affected 

mainly in the private sector by significant delays in work 

schedules and in processes for public records, and by 

retractions in buying and selling commercial activities of 

finished houses. In the public sector, works kept going as

scheduled, especially in relation to road constructions.

The credit portfolio for house funding had a 5.66% annual 

growth, with portfolio balances for PYG 203,097 million at

the end of the year. Loan requests during the year stayed in 

140-month average terms, and the portfolio residual balance

ended with 155-month average terms, where the biggest 

portion of funding granted at 97% with national currency and 

a 3% difference in U.S. dollars.

As for risk coverage level, there was 61% guaranteed mainly 

by first range mortgages. As for payment behavior, during

the period between March and September, the default ratio 

reported average levels of 5.04% over the total portfolio,

ending the year with 4.23% and a downward trend.

DEPARTMENT AXES AND THEIR MAIN ACTIONS 
DEVELOPED

1. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT FOR PLACING 
HOUSING AND REAL ESTATE ENDEAVOR FUNDING
During the year, we worked on the review of credit 

programs alongside the areas of Personal Banking 

Risks, Treasury, Correspondents and Private 

Banking, ending the new exclusive section of 

STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS for

House Funding in October, which introduced 

improvements for loans granted with AFD funds 

and a new program of house funding with OWN 

FUNDS aimed at clients of Personal Banking. At 

this point, the main benefit is the incorporation 

of house funding limits of up to PYG 5,000 million 

and terms of up to 15 years; with special features 

such as the acceptance of the applicant’s family 

income, repayment of installments according to 

income and currency cycles. 

Following the actions of the Government 

as to economic reactivation and fund 

availability for assets placement, at the end 

of the year, communication campaigns were 

promoted with emphasis in the media such 

as specialized magazines, radio interviews 

and social networks. Three very distinct 

approaches were set, one of which was the 

RESERVE YOUR HOUSE campaign, aimed at 

promoting presale funding or preconstruction 

sales (Apartments), RENEW YOUR HOUSE, 

aimed at house remodeling, with an exclusive 

focus on wage earning applicants, and YOUR 

DREAM LOT, aimed at funding land purchase 

for building their future weekend house.
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2. FORMALIZATION OF ALLIANCES 
WITH REAL ESTATE DEVELOPERS, 
CLIENTS AND NON-
CLIENTS OF THE BANK
At the end of the last two-month 

period, there were strategic 

alliances formalized with corporate 

clients and branch banking clients 

with the purpose of strengthening 

the funding of preconstruction 

sales or presale and purchase-sale 

of finished houses, all of them for 

individuals from the Private Banking 

and Personal Banking segments.

In the Banco Regional’s website, 

in the section of House Funding, a 

space for ALLIANCES was created 

for publications on real estate 

units available for sale by a Real 

Estate Developer with the Bank’s 

funding plans.

3. COMMERCIAL RELATIONSHIP 
FOR PLACING AFD AND FOGAPY 

PRODUCTS, INTERACTION
WITH BRANCHES, CORPORATE BANKING, 
CORRESPONDENTS DEPARTMENT AND 
PRODUCTS DEPARTMENT
At the beginning of the pandemic, because of 

the emergency measures, work was focused 

on the placement of RECONVERSION FUNDS 

granted by AFD for restructuring loans of the 

corporate sector and SMEs. Likewise, there

was support provided to the Branches area as 

fund reserve coordinating institution.

For loans guaranteed by the “FOGAPY-ME” 

GUARANTEE FUND, the area participated in the 

preparation and execution of a new contract 

under the emergency measures, as well as the 

collaboration of the entire operating process

until its implementation.

In the last two-month period of the year, and 

aligned with the national economic reactivation 

actions, the house funding program was 

updated with funding from the Financial 

Development Agency (AFD, for its Spanish 

initials), where the main changes were an 

increase of the limit to be funded 

in its FIRST HOUSE AND MY HOUSE 

products, as well as the levels of 

indebtedness as to installment-

income ratio.

Among the changes introduced, 

an interest rate decrease was also 

adjusted for Financial Institutions, 

which was supported by the 

action proposed by AFD and could 

maintain the same percentage of 

reduction for final clients in their

many products. This consolidated 

the change for “FIRST HOUSE up 

to 4 Legal Minimum Wages” from 

a 7.5% to a 6.9% rate, “FIRST HOUSE 

from 4 to 7 Legal Minimum Wages” 

from a 9.5% to a 8.9% rate, and “MY 

HOUSE” from a 9.5% to a 9.15% rate 

in national currency and up to a 20-

year term.

4. PROVIDING INTERNAL TRAINING 
FOR STAFF MEMBERS OF THE 

COMMERCIAL SECTOR AND
BUSINESS AND/OR PRODUCT 
RELATED AREAS
Throughout the year, there were 4 

training events within the annual 

plan. One of them was carried out 

on-site in the Corporate Offices 

of Asunción, with the attendance 

of staff members of AFD and the 

others were virtual. Contents of

products of the AFD, FOGAPY and 

House Funding with Own Funds 

were covered, reaching 340 people 

and covering 100% of the Branches. 

An induction plan was prepared 

for new staff members, providing 

educational teaching material

to provide basic knowledge on real 

estate product funding.

In addition, in the HOUSE FUNDING 

section of the intranet, all materials 

used for the different trainings 

were made available as a user tool.
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5. PARTICIPATION IN ADVICE AND 
CONTROLLER OF AWARDED BANK’S SALE OF 
GOODS PROCESS (WORK COORDINATED WITH 
THE REAL ESTATE DEPARTMENT)
New inventory internal codes for awarded Bank’s 

goods and new work forms and instructions 

were created, and the internal communication 

and area website were redesigned adding the 

offer of our real estate products for sale.

In this department, offers are received for 

purchasing real estate and it works as the sole 

open channel to communicate the decision 

made by the Bank to bidders.

An updated inventory of entered offers and 

sales is maintained, which works as invoice 

control as approved by the Bank, in order to 

clear the commission payment process for 

sales made.

6. PARTICIPATION AS CONTROLLER IN THE 
FOGAPY GUARANTEE COMMISSION PROCESS
At the end of each month, the guaranteed 

portfolio was checked to clear the commission 

payment process for garantee use.

7. CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROCESS IN 
INTERNAL PROCESSES AND INNOVATION OF
FINANCIAL PRODUCTS FOR THE REAL 
ESTATE SECTOR
With customer experience as focus, 

improvements were introduced to levels of 

operating processes and risk management. To 

speed up the process of approval by reducing 

time of response, levels of approval were 

introduced for groups sorted according to 

proposed risk. In disbursement processes, 

substantial changes were introduced, allowing 

the process of payment for the purchase of 

real estate in the same day of mortgage deed 

execution, with the proactive coordination of 

the many departments involved in the process.

Supporting times of management and following 

the reality of Public Records, it was possible, in 

housing loans, to enter mortgages with reports 

received at the entry desk and to issue approval 

opinions for house funding from 60 to 90 days

for purchases. The Regional website was 

updated in the section of House Funding in 

terms of graphics, proforma financial calculators 

according to rates in force, new requirements 

per product and type of funding, as well as the 

new portal for offers (awarded goods) and our 

new allies (Construction companies and/or Real 

Estate Developers).
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STRATEGIC ALLIANCES

Since 2013, Banco Regional has started a series 

of commercial agreements with important 

international and local companies to support the 

sale of machinery, equipment and installations 

for clients in common with the local distributor

and Banco Regional, to improve the level of 

service offered to clients and increase the 

purchasing power of clients with dedicated 

financial packages and customized solutions.

From the start of the agreements up to the 

end of 2020, 989 machineries and equipment 

were financed with a total disbursement of US$ 

88,585,742 through Strategic Alliances.

As a novelty and supporting the commitment to 

the environment, in 2020, important agreements 

have been signed with agricultural and forestry 

companies offering reforestation services: 

Plantec and Efisa.

CURRENTLY, THE STRATEGIC 
ALLIANCES IN FORCE ARE:

CNH

KUROSU & CIA

AGCO

H. PETERSEN
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TARGET 

DE LA SOBERA

AUTOMAQ EFISA 

PLANTEC
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PRIVATE BANKING

The relationship with clients starts by 

understanding what the most important thing 

for them is. From that point on, customized 

solutions are devised to maintain and increase 

equity; with axes on profit generation, value 

creation, investment diversification, product 

cross-selling, service quality and customer 

service, being always this latest point the

preferred one.

With a team of professionals who are committed 

to providing clients with the most satisfaction, 

one can be fully confident that the executive 

supports and advises clients with close 

treatment, offering equity strategies that are

compatible with personal projects and risk 

appetite, diversifying in investments and 

profiting from portfolios. Our 

biggest success would be that, 

guided by us, the client reaches his 

own success.

Given the circumstances arisen 

from the exceptional year of the 

pandemic, the team organized in 

work groups, maintaining customer 

service and earning their trust and 

loyalty. Likewise, the digitalization 

of the portfolio was achieved, 

encouraging and supporting clients 

use of digital channels.

In order to be close to clients 

and keep them informed on 

subjects of interest, many events 

were held virtually:

  Virtual Workshop on International Accounts

  Launch of the Family Office business unit

  Launch of Mutual Funds with Regional AFPISA (Equity 

Investment Funds Manager, an affiliate of Regional

Casa de Bolsa)

  Increase of operations and businesses with the Brokerage House 

  Forums on topical financial subjects
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FOREIGN TRADE

This year, we participated in many virtual 
international conferences, such as the XXXVI 
Latin American Congress of Foreign Trade.

In this opportunity, the conference was carried our 

virtually. It was held on December 10 and 11, days in 

which the knowledge of the Foreign Trade area in issues 

related to Stand-by Letters of Credit, value chains, risks 

associated to money laundering in international trade, 

and Incoterms 2020 was strengthened.

In 2020, funding of local letters of credit of 
import at maturity of an international letter of 
credit was implemented, with the purpose of 
relating it to the new operation funding it.

Banco Regional has an internationally certified 

team that puts it at the level required for import 

and export clients. It has strengthened its 

relationship with clients in commercial issues, 

understanding every production from the very

beginning, and the follow-up until its 

internationalization, so it can go deep into 

the needs and give advice according to their 

negotiations and payment structures.

In the Paraguay Banks Association (ASOBAN), 

Regional led the General Coordination of 

Foreign Trade and Correspondents Committees, 

supporting the regulatory projects and 

promoting best practices and banking

improvements in international service.

As for its position in the market, Banco Regional 

managed to get 28% of the Import Letters of 

Credit and 14% of Exports; as well as 18% of Standbys 

issued and 7% of those received in the country.

EXPONENTIAL GROWTH
Every commercial management and the position 

in the market are reflected in the 22% of growth 

achieved in business portfolio compared to the 

previous year, comprising the services of:

  Import and export letters of credit.

  Export documents purchase.

  Import and export collection.

  Local and international guarantees.

  Standby.

  Advance payments to importers and exporters.
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TREASURY

o  Remote work was 
successfully implemented 
without affecting management 
and customer service. 
o  In exchange operations, 
105.30% of the projection was 
achieved with a 9% Market 
Share in Operations, achieving 
4th place as well as in Income 
per Trading. 
o  In Treasury operations, 84.50% 
of the projection was achieved, 
mainly due to the adjustment of 
rates of the free from risk curve, 
since this was the reference for 
Net Liquid Assets and the main 
Financial Assets maintained in 
the portfolio. 

of income with respect to the 2019 result with a 0.19% market share, exceeding the previous 

year’s total spot exchange operations. It is important to mention that due to ALCO policy, 

the Bank does not have significant mismatches between assets and liabilities in Foreign 

Currency. The Bank operates in the Fx Forward market seeking to satisfy the clients’ need 

for exchange risk coverage. As the volume of this market does not guarantee prices nor the 

adequate coverage while seeking operations, this market is mostly covered in the SPOT 

market. New clients were added to the Fx Forward market. 

 

On the other hand, Treasury management decreased by 38.8% compared to 2019. The 

reduction is explained by the result of fixed income portfolios that the Bank maintains to 

handle liquidity and which are mainly comprised by Instruments of Monetary Regulation 

(IRM, for its Spanish initials) issued by the Central Bank of Paraguay and Treasury Bonds 

issued by the Ministry of the Treasury, so they carry a very low risk for the Bank. 

o  Adjustments to the FTP 
curve were implemented after 
the first definition applied and 
implemented by the technical 
team of RABOBANK. 
o  Institutional Banking 
was added under Treasury 
management with a vision of 
optimizing Funding management. 
o  The strategic relationship 
with Regional Casa de Bolsa 
was driven to benefit from the 
synergy in Regional Group.
 
RESULT OF EXCHANGE AND 
TREASURY OPERATIONS
The result of exchange operations 

comprises Net Exchange Rate 

Earnings, showing a 7.03% increase 
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LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT
Every day, the Bank is exposed to 

requirements of cash funds from 

several banking transactions, 

such as demand account drafts, 

term-deposit payments, loan 

disbursements, cash requests 

for branches, etc. As it is inherent 

to the banking activity, the Bank 

does not maintain cash funds to 

cover the total balance of these 

positions, as experience shows 

that only a minimum level of these 

funds will be withdrawn, which can 

be foreseen with a high degree of 

certainty through stability models 

of constantly reviewed deposits. 

The Bank’s approach as to liquidity 

management is to ensure, as 

much as possible, always having 

sufficient liquidity to comply with 

its obligations upon their maturity, 

under normal circumstances 

and stressful conditions, without incurring in 

unacceptable losses or risking damages to the 

reputation of the Bank. The ALCO Committee 

sets the conditions to determine a coverage 

time period for liquidity mismatches with Net 

Liquid Assets to cover for mismatches and 

drafts in unexpected levels of demand, which 

is reviewed periodically. On the other hand, 

the Bank complies with internal limits based on 

BASEL for term mismatches. 

The Treasury maintains a portfolio of short-

term liquid assets, comprised mainly by 

liquid investments to guarantee that the Bank 

maintains sufficient liquidity. 

Liquid assets are mainly comprised by 

Instruments of Monetary Regulation (IRM), 

Treasury Bonds (BOTES, their abbreviation in 

Spanish) and demand liquidity that is placed 

daily (Overnight) in a Permanent Deposit Fund 

in the Central Bank of Paraguay. The rate of 

the Permanent Deposit Fund is aligned with 

the Monetary Policy Rate and the Central Bank 

modifies it based on it. The rate in 2019 closed 

at 4.00% and the Monetary Policy Rate closed 

at 4.00%. In 2020, the Overnight rate closed at 

0.50% and the TPM, at 0.75%. For the placement 

of daily deposits in the Central Bank of Paraguay 

in 2018, the implementation of an interface 

between the IT system used by the Bank and 

the depository of securities of the Central Bank 

of Paraguay was concluded, so deposits are 

entered directly into the IT system of the bank. 

Since 2019, the automation process of daily 

Deposits of the Permanent Deposit Fund in the 

Central Bank of Paraguay has been implemented 

through Robotic Process Automation (RPA). 

The main financing sources of the Bank are the 

deposits of (retail), corporate and institutional 

clients, obligations with (foreign) Banks and debt 

instruments (Financial and Subordinated Bonds 

in the local market) and term-deposits. 

Although most obligations with Banks, debt 

instruments and term-deposits have maturities 

of over a year, the deposits of (retail and) 
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assistance of RABOBANK, the 

model was implemented based 

on the information available on 

market rates for the formation of 

the FTP curve. In 2019, the model 

review process started based on 

the evolution of the local monetary 

market, the available information 

and new market conditions. 

In 2020, adjustments to the 

curve were implemented based 

on market curves and the 

development of the cash market 

from the last review. 

FINANCIAL MARGIN
The new interest rate conditions 

of the market forced the Bank 

to take adaptative measures to 

protect the Financial Margin. In this 

line, Treasury imposed a Deposit 

cost reduction, achieving a 1.13% 

reduction in Local Currency and 0.59% in 

Foreign Currency compared to December 2019, 

representing savings for interest payment of 

PYG 4,702 million and US$ 554 thousand. 

corporate clients and some obligations with 

Banks (mainly those related to trade operations 

with foreign banks) usually have shorter 

maturities and a large proportion of them are 

payable within 360 days. The short-term nature 

of these deposits increases the risk of liquidity 

and, therefore, the Bank actively manages this 

risk through the constant supervision of market 

trends and price management. This year, short-

term foreign lines were activated for US$ 50 

million to face the context of uncertainty that 

was present due to the covid-19 pandemic.

INTEREST RATE RISK
Downward interest rates had a positive impact 

on the Bank’s fund costs with a reviewable 

rate of external funding; the impact resulted 

in an 11.36% reduction on the cost of funds 

compared to 2019.

 

FUNDS TRANSFER PRICING (FTP)
From 2014, the Bank started to implement 

the FTP model. Then, through the technical 
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The Transactional Banking 
department is part of 
Corporate Banking and has 
the purpose of providing 
company-oriented services 
mainly, to offer solutions that 
satisfy their needs. Among 
the services available, the 
following stand out: 

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS
It allows clients to move their 

company’s circuit of payments 

to the Bank. The service is run 

through debits from the account 

of the amounts corresponding to 

invoices for the provision of goods 

and services. 

ARMORED TRANSPORTATION 
SERVICES
It provides the service of securities 

transport in an alliance with 

one of the most prestigious 

armored transportation services 

in the country. This facilitates the 

management of deposits and 

withdrawals of large amounts to 

our clients, protecting them from 

operating risks. 

TRANSACTIONAL 
BANKING SERVICES

DIRECT DEBIT
It is available for corporate clients 

that wish to move their collection 

service to the Bank. It is a system 

through which Regional deposits 

installment or collection amounts 

in the client’s account (the 

contracting company). 

PAYMENTS TO BUSINESSES
Available for clients that have a 

POS in their businesses to carry out 

sales with credit or debit cards, and 

choose to direct those transactions 

to their accounts in the Bank. 

PETROBRAS FLOTA
Through an agreement with 

Petrobras (Nextar, Petrobras licensee 

in Paraguay), our clients can get 

fuel and lubricants for their fleets of 

vehicles, providing information that 

allows them to have more efficient 

logistic management. 
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INSURANCE

The insurance broker of Banco Regional 

has an insurance broker license since 2008 

and has the commercial purpose of selling 

policies of the Regional S.A. de Seguros 

insurer. This department sales manages and 

controls all proposals of equity (property) 

and life (personal) insurance sold by officers, 

collaborators and telemarketing. 

Based on increasing business volumes, there were 

measures taken to improve business return. 

In 2018, the Bank started selling insurance 

through the telemarketing team by offering 

policies for personal accidents, life and home, 

providing more comfort for clients. 

TYPES OF INSURANCE 
OFFERED: 

LIFE AND PERSONAL ACCIDENTS
Natural or disease-caused death, double 

compensation in the event of death 

by accidents, total and permanent 

incapacitation, also medical orientation 

through TELEMEDICINE additional, 24-

hour coverage and amounts and plans 

as needed. 

HOME POLICY
Fire on building and contents, 

robbery and/or assault, material 

damages due to storms, damage 

caused by water, glassware 

coverage, third-party liability, and 

personal accidents, with additions of 

electricity, plumbing and locksmiths. 

CARS, TRUCKS AND 
AGRICULTURAL MACHINERY

Third-party liability, injuries or death 

of the driver or passengers, partial or 

total damage due to accident or fire, 

robbery of the vehicle, green card, 

legal counsel, 24-hour tow and light 

mechanic service. 

COMMERCIAL AND CORPORATE 
MULTI-RISK INSURANCE
Fire on building and contents, 

robbery of merchandise, robbery of 

securities from safety box, robbery 

of securities in transit, personal 

accidents and third-party liability.

TOP-RANGE MOTORCYCLE 
INSURANCE
Total and partial loss due to 

accidents, fire or robbery. Damages 

due to hail, riots, vandalism. 

Coverage with any driver. National 

and international third-party liability. 

Personal accidents for driver and 

passengers. Green card and 24-hour 

light mechanic assistance. Legal 

counsel in the country. 

RECREATIONAL VESSEL 
INSURANCE
Damages caused by crashes, fire, 

lightning, explosion, shipwreck, sinking 

and stranding. Third-party liability while 

navigating or during land transport. 

Robbery of vessel or motor navigating 

or in closed facilities, at the domicile or 

in transport. 
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GUARANTEE INSURANCE: 

FINANCIAL ADVANCED PAYMENT
Uncertainty when granting an advanced 

payment for work to be performed by a third 

party. It guarantees the allocation of the 

payment received by the holder of the insured 

party, to the effective compliance with the 

contract and it releases the advanced amount 

as work progresses. 

PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE
It covers for noncompliance with the obligations 

of their activity or profession. 

FAITHFUL CONTRACT PERFORMANCE
It guarantees the provisions in the event of 

noncompliance with the contract in due time 

and manner. 

RETAINAGE
It guarantees the funds that, according to the 

law and the contract, the holder is bound to set 

in favor of the insured party. 

CUSTOMS GUARANTEE
It guarantees the obligations 

undertaken before the National 

Customs Administration, due to 

customs obligations taken and 

existing customs fines. 

BID BOND
It guarantees payment for the 

insured party as a consequence of 

noncompliance with obligations 

arising from a contract in due time 

and manner. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



50

DIGITAL BANKING

Strengthening the digital path, 

Regional offers 24/7 accessible 

channels to its clients: 

Regional Web: 

Regional Móvil Smartphone: 
App available for iOS and 
Android operating systems. 
ATMs and SSTs
Contact Center: 24 hours, 365 
days a year
Online chat
WhatsApp
In 2020, the health emergency 

caused by covid-19 gave rise to 

the exponential growth of digital 

       Comparison of credit cards

       Application forms     

       Loan simulators 

Digital posters were installed in the 

most important branches to centralize 

everything related to Marketing. 

  New functionalities were 

implemented at Home banking level 

for Companies and Individuals. 

    o  At HB for Companies level: 

Transfers per lot by SIPAP, Internal 

transfers per lot, Transfers per lot abroad. 

    o  At HB for Individuals level: Xpress: 

SIPAP 24x7, Debit Card Blocking and 

Unblocking, Printing loan vouchers, 

Loan payments through Infonet, 

Updating personal data. 

  At APP for both iOS and 

Android level, new versions were 

launched, with the following 

main improvements: 

    o  Payments with QR code

    o  Generation of transaction 

vouchers 

platform use, a context that the Bank supported 

with innovation by offering a wider portfolio of 

services. Over 43% of the Bank’s active clients 

use their digital platform of preference, thus 

achieving an increase in transactions through 

these channels. 

Banco Regional has a digital Transformation 

Plan devised as part of its Strategic Plan. 

Accordingly, new functionalities have been 

launched to strengthen this path. 

On July 9, the new website of the Bank was 

launched with the “We believe in renovating 

ourselves” slogan and an innovative design, using 

minimalist images with text, setting a trend in the 

financial sector. This scheme was also applied to 

develop portals for the companies of the group, 

such as the Brokerage House and the Foundation, 

following the same concept but with a format 

adapted to their needs. Some of the new features 

of the new portal: 

    o  A cutting-edge renovated design. 

    o  Direct service with online chat. 

    o  Dynamic browser to find information in a 

simple manner.    

 o  Intuitive navigation with new options such as:    

www.regional.com.py

    o  Generation of Credit Card 

statements 

    o  Quicker direct access to 

options

    o  Improvements in password 

management processes 

  The following tools were added 

as a new contact channel with 

clients, integrated with the Genesys 

system and 100% integrated with 

Contact Center operators: 

    o  WhatsApp

    o  Online chat
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TECHNOLOGY

  100% of staff members’ workstations were 

replaced in record time, providing them with 

state-of-the-art equipment, mostly laptops, 

which helped users operate in “Home office” 

mode without significant problems when 

connecting to the Bank via VPN with double 

authentication factor (Soft token). 

  The implementation of IP Phones was 

completed. It helped improve the entire internal 

and external communication scheme of the 

Bank. Due to this, final users have: 

    o  Phone licenses for 10 devices at the same time. 

    o  Mobility/Softphone Jabber. 

    o  Voicemail. 

    o  Video call. 

    o  Messaging and presence. 

  Services provided by Microsoft Corp., 

named Microsoft 365 (Word, Excel, 

PowerPoint, Outlook, OneNote and Access) 

are implemented, and they are a new internal 

collaboration and communication infrastructure 

for the Bank’s internal users that is robust, 

flexible, scalable and lasting, and 

it also provided internal users with 

these main tools:  

   o  Microsoft Teams: it allows 

sharing documents, comments, 

chat, voice calls and video calls in a 

safe and auditable manner. 

    o  Exchange Online: it is the 

e-mail and calendar service that 

helps users to collaborate and 

manage their time and e-mails 

through the Outlook application or 

the OWA web application.   

  o  SharePoint: important to improve 

internal communication and user 

productivity, as it is an integral 

Content Management Platform 

(CMS). SharePoint allows the 

creation of departmental intranet 

sites to centralize information with 

the required security. 

  As one of the only banking 

institutions to have a 100% virtual 

Meeting of Shareholders (via 

Webex), we complied with Decree 

No. 3605 from the Regulator. During 

the events held on Friday, June 

26, 2020, and Tuesday, June 30, 

2020, the Cisco Webex platform 

was used successfully with a 

participation of more than 500 

people and the strength of the 

platform was demonstrated. 

  The implementation of Robotics 

(RPA) continued in the Bank, 

prioritizing process automation 

in the Finance area, whereby 7 to 

10 processes were successfully 

automated, thus freeing up man 

hours to perform other key tasks for 

the area. 

  New CRM processes were 

implemented to support the 

Commercial, Operating and Risks 

areas, processes that directly 

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



52

interact with the Banking Core and 

other tools needed for the best 

management of cases presented. 

    o  Sale of Automatic Loans

    o  Management process of sale 

campaign 

    o  Credit Card Sales

    o  Recovery – Collections

    o  Enquiries

  Processes were adjusted and 

improvements were implemented 

to support the needs of the many 

areas of the Bank related to the 

new market guidelines caused by 

COVID (FOGAPY, MT, ME, IPS, etc.), 

all of them developed in record 

time according to needs raised 

per area. The implementation of 

everything related to SEPRELAD, 

24x7 SIPAP, etc. was also supported. 

  All of this was done while working on projects 

marked by the business, the organizational 

transformation and the application of new 

technologies to automate processes, improve our 

products’ quality and accelerate time to market. 
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MARKETING

From Regional’s Marketing area, 

we worked to provide relevant and 

timely information to all clients and 

the general public on issues related 

to health measures undertaken by 

the National Government and the 

regulators during the lockdown 

from phase 0. For that purpose, 

we worked through a contingency group that 

was formed by members of the Marketing team 

of the bank and the advertising agency, who 

made more than 140 different communications 

on issues like: general interest information, 

regulations, warnings, advice for care against 

COVID-19, products and services with special 

conditions due to context, posters on branches, 

ATMs and others. The bank 

characterized itself for permanent 

communication with the public.
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As for the productive sector, due to the health 

situation, main exhibitions and events were 

suspended in attendance-based mode. Some 

of them were held virtually. In that way, the 

bank participated with a 100% virtual stand in 

the CEA (Center for Agricultural and Livestock 

Experimentation) event with informational and 

promotional material offered to the sector. 

At communicational level, and through 

campaigns throughout the year, the funding of 

machinery for 20 allied brands and 2 forestry 

projects was strongly promoted. Likewise, 

businesses participating in Regional Rural, an 

exclusive product for the sector, were put in 

contact with 8 allies, and explanatory demos 

were developed about the use of this product to 

instruct clients on how to use it. 
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As for consumption communication, there were also communication campaigns 

that focused on reporting the exclusive benefits that the bank granted clients from 

lockdown phase 0. Among these benefits, we can mention campaigns to move 

installments to the end of loan maturity, PYG 0 Minimum Payment for Credit Cards for 

several months, benefits for SMEs clients through FOGAPY Loans, installments without 

interests and double accumulation of points for purchases made with credit cards in 

basic consumption sectors such as supermarkets, drug stores and technology. 
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After the end of lockdown phases, to motivate 

consumption and provide financial relief, there 

were campaigns for: 

  LOANS: Benefits with exclusive rates, terms and 

grace periods for Consumer Loans, Car, FOGAPY, 

Housing Loans and Awarded Goods. 

  CREDIT CARDS: Benefits for purchases in 

specific businesses participating in the campaign 

with important brands, generic benefits 

with installments without interests for daily 

consumption items. 

  YOU ARE MAGNIFICENT CAMPAIGN: After 

several years, granting repayments for credit 

card purchases under the “You are Magnificent” 

concept was initially resumed, and then changed 

into Magnificent Summer in during the last part 

of the year. The “You are Magnificent” campaign 

included: 

    o  Generic benefits with repayments in all 

hairdressers, spa, barber shops, restaurants, bars, 

ice cream shops and pastry shops of the country.  

   o  Specific benefits in supermarkets: La Familia 

(Encarnación), Cadena Real (Central), 

Gran Vía (Ciudad del Este).   

  o  Specific benefits with allied 

businesses in different regions of 

the country, most importantly in 

the Encarnación region, Colonias 

Unidas, Ciudad del Este, Asunción 

and Central. 

The “You are Magnificent” campaign, 

in addition to ads in radio, digital 

media and the channels of the bank, 

was present in POS with posters, 

displays, banners and totems. 

  MARISCAL SHOPPING DAY:  On 

December 10, there was a “Regional 

Day” in Mariscal Shopping Center, 

granting a 20% repayment on 

purchases made with the bank’s 

credit cards in all stores. More than 

50 businesses participated and with 

the participation of brands. 
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As for Digital Banking, the agenda 

was complied with. Campaigns 

were carried out, such as: 

  CREATION AND 
COMMUNICATION OF THE
 “I AM AT THE BANK” CAMPAIGN: 
With the main purpose of informing 

the benefits of using digital 

channels and new functionalities. 

Among the topics communicated 

we can mention QR Payments, 

Xpress Transfers, New shortcuts 

for quicker access, Cardless 

transactions, Zimple, Payments for 

public and private services, Card 

blocking and unblocking of cards, 

among others. 

  LAUNCH OF THE NEW 
WEBSITE:  A new website was 

launched under the concepts 

of: + Technologic, + Dynamic, 

+ Intuitive, + For You. The 

communication had a high level 

of market approval thanks to the 

renovation concept applied. This 

campaign had a teaser launch 

before revealing itself. 

  LAUNCH OF WHATSAPP 
SERVICE CHANNEL:  
Communicating a new channel for 

customer service through this platform. 
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INSTITUTIONAL CAMPAIGN: 

After 6 years, an Institutional Campaign was 

launched with the name “Believe in yourself” with 

the purpose of positioning Banco Regional as a 

universal bank, keeping the essence of its origin 

in the productive sector. This campaign sought an 

increase in knowledge and in the consideration of 

the conversion funnel. Through the reinforcement 

of tactical campaigns, there was also a good basis 

for increase in product placement. 

A 360° campaign was carried out with TV ads 

in free-to-air channels with national coverage, 

radio channels in Encarnación, Ciudad del Este, 

Asunción and Central, digital ads through the 

Facebook Holding, Google, Programmatic, local 

media, PR with journalists and free publicity, in 

addition to an internal launch with collaborators. 

As for production, a TV spot was developed 

with 3 situations: countryside, SMEs and 

consumption. The TV spots were adapted to 

the 3 individual materials when shortened. 

Internally, the Marketing area supported 

the Organizational Development area in the 

preparation of internal campaigns for launching 

the new Intranet. The “We hear you” program 

was launched with the purpose of making the 

experience of collaborators visible by giving them 

an interactive space to share ideas and opinions 

on different issues related to their day-to-day 

work. 13 areas and 21 collaborators participated 

presenting their respective videos and 485 views 

of these videos during the campaign. 
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More than 40 graphics and adaptations, a radio 

spot and a manifest were made. Internally, 

there were materials developed for desktop 

backgrounds and Teams, among others. 

Among the main results, we can point out 

compliance with the KPIs of the ads proposed 

for TV and radio, achieving the defined TRP*s. 

As for digital media, we reached almost 80% of 

the total universe, exceeding the benchmark of 

the brand. Brand remembrance in ads doubled 

the estimation. More than 60,000 clicks were 

directed to the website and there was coverage 

in the media as free publicity for a 10% value 

of the total investment of the campaign, very 

important data. 

*TRP: Addition of ratings (audience index of a 

TV or radio program). It is measured as follows: 

rating x frequency. 
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INFORMATION SECURITY

2020 was, for the world, a year of 

changes, a difficult year, a year to 

break paradigms, with the pandemic 

at the beginning of the year and the 

risk of cyber security on the rise. 

Big challenges were overcome in 

technological aspects and processes 

to achieve business continuity with 

an acceptable level of risk. 

Some milestones were final 

user remote connection from 

their homes with adequate 

security measures for this type of 

connections, evaluations on the 

use of new collaborative tools 

minimizing loss of information risks, 

and many changes that could not 

have been envisioned before. These 

new challenges motivated hard 

work to keep clients informed of 

emerging risks in the new normal, 

through constant awareness 

campaigns seeking to generate 

a culture of Security. Collaborators received 

training through Webinars on Fraud and Security 

to assimilate the knowledge needed at the time, 

in addition to permanent communications to 

stay updated as to new challenges and security 

processes in accordance with the change. 

The focus was on the Bank’s information assets 

protection, and the objectives were aligned with 

system implementation and updating to help control 

information and prevent security risks, always seeking 

innovation and a good customer experience. 

More than ever, Banco Regional sought to 

strengthen digital channel security through 

provisions that strengthened controls against 

ever emerging cyber threats. 

In order to stay updated as to market trends 

and be aware of continuous global changes 

produced in cybercrime, the Information 

Security team went through ongoing training, 

participating in local and international 

congresses, webinars and courses, including 

the Latin American Congress on Banking 

Security (CELAES), Cybersecurity Evolution 

2020, Cybersecurity Revolution 2020, Kavacon 

Virtual Conference 2020, Malware, C&C and 

extra filtering via DNS, Black Hat USA 2020, 

Cybersecurity Week Europe, all of them held 

virtually providing a global view of emerging 

threats, paradigm changes and knowledge on 

new security solutions. 
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Year 2020: 
a) Branches: In Banco Regional, there were no events during 2020. Crime activity towards financial institutions in general 
decreased as to number of events and amounts robbed; several cases were frustrated. 

b) ATMs: Unlike the previous year, in 2020, ATM events decreased considerably in general. In Banco Regional, there were 
no attempts to install skimmers for card cloning. Crime events migrated to telephone fraud. 

c) Clients: assault cases in public thoroughfare, either on their way to the financial institution to make transactions or 
when leaving after withdrawing cash had a significant increase in 2020. Out of all reported cases, only one client of 
Banco Regional was affected. 

PHYSICAL SECURITY
The following is the 2020 management table. 

PHYSICAL SECURITY MANAGEMENT TABLE AT BANCO REGIONAL S.A.E.C.A.

Event 2018 2019 2020
Robbery attempt to 
Banking Branches

0 cases 1 case (Fram), frustrated 0 cases

Robbery attempt to ATM 1 case (skimming 
attempt). The person 
escaped when the alarm 
activated.

10 cases (skimming attempts on isolated ATMs). 3 cases 
(on 24-hour ATMs). Banco Regional contributed to the 
detention of 5 people (Brazilian and Romanian installers).

0 cases

Robbery to clients (on their 
way to the Bank or 
leaving it)

0 cases 0 cases 1 case

Incidents in the facilities of 
the Bank (Staff members 
and/or others fainting, 
slipping etc.) 

8 cases (6 referred to 
health centers with no 
secondary effects)

3 cases (all with no secondary effects) 3 cases (all with no secondary effects)

Accidents of suppliers in 
bank facilities (Control of 
high-risk work security 
standards)

0 cases 0 cases 0 cases

Accidents of staff members 
in public places during 
working hours

0 cases 1 case (minor material damages) 0 cases

Evacuation drills (minimum 
2 per year)

3 times 2 times (There were no drill in San Martín and Villa Morra 
offices due to moving to the Corporate Building). 

Not done due to enactment of covid-19 
pandemic protocols 

Training in physical security Live training of 100% 
of new staff members. 
Personal protection 
course for directors

Physical Security Policy training. General Physical 
Security Standard, Daily Risks, Procedure in the event of 
Assault or Bank Robbery, mugging at the bank’s entry/
exit, Basic First Aid. Fire prevention, use of extinguishers 
for 192 collaborators (100% of new collaborators and 
training in 5 branches). One collaborator received a 
Physical Security Diploma and two received a Diploma 
on Upper Management of Corporate Security taught by 
CES Internacional. Other trainings for Physical Security 
area staff members: Team Building, Training Trainers and 
Leadership (John Maxwell). 

a) Training in Security and Hygiene at the 
workplace (Covid-19 – E-learning system). 
b) Internal training with Brigade Members to 
face new controls due to the pandemic. 

Pandemic -- -- The WHO declared a pandemic due to the 
outbreak of the covid-19 coronavirus in 
March. The following was implemented and 
monitored: 
a) Protocols according to decrees of the 
Ministry of Public Health and Social Welfare. 
b) Mitigation measures (temperature 
reading in people, hand washing, work in 
teams, disinfection of places and vehicles). 
The tasks were carried out with the support 
of Brigade Members. 
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COMPLIANCE

Banco Regional is committed to 

society, so it strives to comply 

with regulations in force from 

local regulators with the highest 

standards set by international 

recommendations at all times.

 

The management of the Institution 

is focused on the values of 

transparency and honesty, with 

policies, procedures and tools that 

identify and mitigate risks that may 

cause the institution to be involved 

in illegal and/or dubiously ethical 

cases, such as money laundering, 

terrorism financing and corruption. 

The Bank is committed to 

carrying out business in a 

transparent manner and follows 

recommendations from Rabobank 

as a strategic ally. The Bank 

complies with the international 

requirements of the Wolfsberg 

Group, which aims at developing 

standards to fight money 

laundering, terrorism financing and 

corruption in financial institutions. 

LOCAL REGULATORY CHANGES IN 
TERMS OF AML/TF. 

2020 was marked by numerous 

changes in the legislative 

framework of the country, 

which aim at aligning local 

laws and regulations with the 

40 recommendations of the 

international Financial Action 

Task Force (FATF) in the fight 

against money laundering and 

terrorism financing.

The Compliance Department kept 

updated in relation to legislative 

changes, adjusting its policies and 

procedures to comply with local 

requirements and international 

recommendations in the matter, 

with the constant support of the 

Board of Directors on that regard. 

One of the main changes for 

the financial sector in terms of 

prevention of money laundering 

and terrorism financing was the 

implementation of Resolution No. 

70/2019 issued by the Secretariat 

for the Prevention of Money 

Laundering (SEPRELAD, for its 

Spanish initials) “Approving the 

regulation of Prevention of Money Laundering 

and Terrorism Financing based on a risk 

management system for banks and financial 

institutions supervised by the Superintendency 

of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay”. 

In March, a series of meetings and process 

controls started jointly with the Department 

of Organizational Development to adapt their 

processes and controls to the new requirements 

of Resolution No. 070/2019 in relation to staff 

member control. This area was in charge of 

preparing the Manual of procedures for the 

prevention of money laundering and terrorism 

financing for staff members of the institution. 
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IMPLEMENTATION OF 
ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES: GLOBAL COMPACT

Banco Regional SAECA, as 

participant of the Global Compact 

Network, among its actions as an 

active member of this initiative, 

completes a “Progress Report” (COP 

for its Spanish abbreviation) annually. 

That communication is an annual 

release about our commitment as 

an institution and the efforts made 

by the Bank according to the 10 

principles of the Global Compact 

Network in the areas of human rights, 

work standards, environment and 

anti-corruption. As a member of this 

network, the Bank embraces the 

need for this indispensable initiative to 

achieve a change in society. 

The Compliance Area has 

coordinated the preparation of 

this first release, compiling the 

information needed together 

with other Areas of the Bank, for 

their subsequent release to the 

Global Compact Network. With the 

preparation of this release, Banco 

Regional restates its commitment to 

keep working on and investing in the 

best practices so that the business 

can be ever more sustainable, 

in compliance with the highest 

standards in the matter. 
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KROLL ASSOCIATES EVALUATION: 

Since 2013, Banco Regional’s money laundering and terrorism financing 

prevention policies and procedures are assessed every year by the 

international firm Kroll, a market-leading risk consulting company which 

is renowned around the world due to its experience in the Prevention of 

Money Laundering and Terrorism Financing. 

The Board of Directors of Banco Regional, which is committed to these issues, 

has chosen to take part in these evaluations since they allow to cover and 

comply with the highest local and international standards on the subject. 

The last evaluation carried out by the Kroll firm in terms of policies and 

procedures in force in Banco Regional as to prevention ended successfully 

in 2020. These evaluations allow to share know-how and experiences with 

members of this organization, offering a wide-reaching vision on trends, 

new typologies and regulations related to compliance. 

TRAINING: 

One of the pillars of an effective program for the Prevention of Money Laundering/

Terrorism Financing is an adequate level of training for members of the Institution. 

In 2020, we continued with training processes implemented, complying with the 

approved annual plan. 

The objective of these training events is to strengthen the existing channels of 

communication between the many areas of the Bank and the Compliance Department. 

These training activities consisted of attendance-based and virtual talks, presentations, 

courses in the “Regional University” virtual platform and, above all, constant 

communication with the many areas of the Bank, to broadcast the importance of 

complying with the procedures and controls in force. Likewise, they allow all members 

to have the knowledge needed to carry out their daily tasks effectively.  

Members of the Compliance Department are also constantly trained, attending 

specific local and international courses and conferences on the issue of Prevention 

of Money Laundering/Terrorism Financing, allowing them to stay updated with new 

regulatory changes and typologies in force. 
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IT TOOLS:   

Banco Regional has platforms that offer a 

technological solution for money laundering 

and terrorism financing prevention procedures. 

Among them, there is a platform for monitoring 

transactions, called Topaz Trace. This tool, 

through parameters previously defined by 

the Compliance Department, performs an 

automatic monitoring of client operations, 

detecting operations that could be considered 

unusual and generating automatic alerts that are 

then verified by the Compliance area. 

This tool is permanently updated as to 

new processes, criteria, regulations and/or 

typologies detected. 

BEARER SHARES –REGULATION 
PROGRESS

In October 2017, Law 5895/17 

“Which sets out transparency 

rules in the regime of companies 

incorporated by shares” was 

enacted. The law sets out the 

obligation for all PLCs with bearer 

shares to turn these into registered 

shares. This law was then regulated 

by Decree No. 9043/18.

 

2019 was also marked by new 

changes and demands to give 

transparency to the knowledge 

of final beneficiaries. In October 

2019, Law No. 5895/17 was modified 

by Law No. 6399 which set new 

deadlines for the conversion and 

exchange of bearer shares into 

registered shares.

 

In 2020, due to the health 

emergency situation, Decree No. 

3827/20 was enacted, temporally 

suspending monetary and non-

monetary penalties affecting the 

deadline for share exchange and was 

in force until September 14. From 

September 15, the exchange process 

was resumed, subject to monetary 

and non-monetary penalties. 

Based on these new regulations for 

companies that continue to infringe 

the exchange obligation from bearer 

shares into registered shares by 

December 11, all bearer shares will 

lose their validity as share certificate 

representing share capital. 

Since 2015, Banco Regional started 

a process designed to comply with 

international recommendations 

related to the identification of final 

beneficiaries of their clients, 

specifically aiming at mitigating 

bearer share related risks. 

Banco Regional is committed 

to supporting its clients in this 

process encouraging compliance 

with these provisions and 

controlling compliance with 

these regulations. 
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OPERATIONS

DIGITAL LIBRARY 
The project started with the main objective of safeguarding our 

clients’ documentation digitally in order to: 

  Facilitate access to past and present documentation 

supporting the operations with our clients. 

  Give answers within a timeframe in accordance with the 

expectations of the many areas of the Bank for providing 

physical or digital documentation. 

  Have traceability of physical files for follow-up and reception 

from branches to the centralized file and vice versa. 

  Have online availability about the status of the documentation 

of our clients for all areas of the Bank and for the Regulators. 

  Contribute to speeding up client assistance when granting 

products and services and during day-to-day service based on 

digital documentation. 

  With knowledge on clients’ documentary status, we expect 

an efficient use of internal forms to avoid asking clients for 

their signature repeatedly or requesting the presentation of 

documents we already have. 

PRINTED STATEMENTS
In a coordinated work with several 

areas, since October 2020, we have 

stopped printing more than 18,000 

statements on paper, with a positive 

impact on sustainability goals and the 

commitment to the environment, also 

generating efficiency as to cost-saving.  

DISBURSEMENT DECENTRALIZATION 
With a client approach, the operating 

sector was trained to be empowered 

in relation to loan disbursement 

controls and processes as Check 

and Document Discount, Loans with 

promissory notes, Personal Loans, 

achieving a better client experience 

and speeding up process times. 

SWIFT – GPI
We supported Swift trend and 

international updates with the 

implementation of responses in 

the GPI (Global Payment Initiative). 

In coordination with Swift, we 

have adjusted the automation of 

responses demanded for traceability 

of payment orders received through 

that platform for operations in MT103 

format (transfers of clients to other 

banks abroad). GPI allows knowing 

if a banking institution received 

payment instructions and what the 

status is (accredited or rejected). 

SIPAP
Supporting the initiatives of the 

Central Bank of Paraguay and 

the National Payment System, 

we have adjusted our processes 

and expanded resources to 

extend processing hours of SIPAP 

operations. With this, clients can 

make transactions until 7:30 PM, 2 

additional hours from the previous 

time limit. 

TRANSFERS
More than 21,000 transfer 

operations abroad were processed, 

77% of which were instructed from 

the electronic platform of the bank, 

12% more than in 2019. Although 

transactions decreased compared 

to the previous year, in a pandemic 

scenario, it is within the totally 

acceptable range, only 2% less. 

EXCEPTIONAL MEASURES
We supported the exceptional 

measures of the national financial 

system. During the months 

affected by the pandemic in 2020, 

we processed more than 15,000 

checks and more than 1,000 special 

guarantees in a limited time, 

covering the needs of clients and 

collaborating with the economic 

movement of the country. 
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CLAIM MANAGEMENT

The Legal Counsel Department of the Bank has a team 

of specially trained collaborators focused on providing a 

quick response to claims received through different service 

channels, with upmost respect and discretion. We quickly 

gather all concrete data for each case to provide clients 

with a precise and trustworthy response. One of the main 

achievements of this year was the implementation of a 

follow-up for general enquiries through digital tools with the 

purpose of having a quicker and more effective response 

from all involved areas of the Bank. 

Claims made in 2020 before the Secretariat for Consumer 

Protection (SEDECO, for its Spanish initials), on the alleged 

infringement of Law No. 1334/98 on Consumer and User 

Protection Defense reduced considerably compared to 

previous years and were successfully dealt with. 

Legal Counsel has permanently collaborated with the 

many areas of the Bank on all things concerning the 

regulations impacting our institution, including Decree No. 

1295/19 which modifies Decree No. 9043 dated June 12, 

2018 “REGULATING LAW No. 5895/2017 ‘WHICH SETS OUT 

RULES OF TRANSPARENCY IN THE REGIME OF COMPANIES 

INCORPORATED BY SHARES WHILE ESTABLISHING 

DISPOSITIONS ON CORPORATE MATTERS’”, Resolution No. 70 

which repeals Resolution 349/2013 approving 

the regulation for the prevention of money 

laundering and terrorism financing based on a 

risk management system for Banks and Financial 

Institutions supervised by the Superintendency 

of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay, in 

force since June 1, 2019; Law No. 6446/2019 of 

Administrative Records of Companies and Final 

Beneficiaries, among others. 

There were also training events for commercial 

areas from many regions of the country to have 

updated information on companies in general 

and, above all, to improve service and speed up 

times of response for clients. 
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PERFORMED SINCE MARCH: 
  Increase in cleaning of all bank offices and 24-

hour areas.

   Increase and maintenance of stock of 

additionally required cleaning supplies (alcohol, 

soap, etc.) and supplies for the public and staff 

members of the bank. 

  Provision of sanitizer carpets and shoe dryers in 

all branches. 

  Provision and installation of washbasins in all 

offices and branches. 

  Marking of floors, elevators and waiting chairs 

to respect distancing. 

Suppliers3.3.
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Type Initial Value or Previous 
Invoicing Total Savings in PYG Average Impact in 

Percentage Estimated Effect, 2020 2021 Impact* 
(Continuity)

New 17,074 4,179 24.47% 2,193 1,779

Renewed 14,999 1,023 6.82% 922 423

Change 343 87 25.37% 59 59

Elimination 11028 413 40.15% 398 398

Internal 529 65 12.29% 91 91 

TOTAL 33,973 5,701 16.78% 3,663 2,750 

The main impacts on total savings or reductions were achieved due to: 
  New negotiations: Technological purchases ˃ PYG 6,900 million with savings/reductions 

> PYG 1,020 million. 
  Contract renewals: Renegotiation of rental contracts, including those not expiring due to 

the pandemic, > PYG 7,537 million with PYG 221 million savings/reductions in 2020. 
  Contract renewal with cell phone company and updating high-end cellphones without 

increasing costs. 
  Contract eliminations: Rent contracts decreased due to 5 closed branches and 2 parking 

lots rented. 
  For change of suppliers, the change was minimal, as well as the internal actions due to 

work projects in progress from years ago. 

Observations: 
 Internal: They are internal actions that reduce or eliminate expenses wherever feasible. 
  The analysis includes contracts renewed at the same cost, without adjustments due to a 

Consumer Price Index estimated at 2.17% per year. 

SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT – 2020
(Including the areas of Procurement, Operating Services and Physical Security)

COST REDUCTIONS/SAVINGS REGISTERED (MILLIONS OF GUARANIES)

Millions of PYG

Total administrative expenses 159,096 
Total savings – reductions achieved 5,701
Percentage: Total savings-reductions/total 
administrative expenses 3.58%

Referential comparative result 2020
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Reductions or savings v. number of contracts of the last 5 years

Reduction/Savings (In millions of PYG) Requests managed

SUPPLIERS MANAGEMENT

Comments: 
Fewer requests were processed compared to the previous year, especia-
lly as a result of the pandemic; however, there were still reductions and/or 
savings in negotiations for the value of > PYG 5,701 million. 

2018 2019 2020

Comments:    
The number of contracts in 2020 was 16% less than in the previous year. 
Considering the situation of the pandemic, there has been an increase 
of added values and risk mitigations. 

The main added values occurred for direct factory services, unification 
of services with a single supplier and purchases of assets for the bank.
 
As for risk mitigations, the main cases occurred in the increase of servi-
ces required, especially as to connectivity, technology and information 
security due to the pandemic that generated the connections from the 
houses of staff members (Home Office), and there were also increased 
internal controls. 

Evolution of the last 3 years

Contracts Added value Mitigated risks

240

42 40

207

247

47
54

72
66
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Type of management 2019 2020 Variation

Security 9 7 -2 

Better analysis   14 10 -4 
More coverage and Supplier 
diversification 10 9 -1 

Best practices  4 14 10 

Internal follow-up 10 23 13 

Regulatory 7 11 4 

TOTAL 54 74 20

MITIGATED RISKS – PURCHASES/CONTRACTS

Type of management 2019 2020 Variation

More services       16 20 4

Internal control increase 16 16 0

Same service to demand 6 8 2

Direct factory service 5 10 5

Service unification 2 4 2

No Loss Taxes 0 3 3

New Assets for the Bank 2 5 3

TOTAL 47 66 19

ADDED VALUES – PURCHASES/CONTRACTS
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3.4.
Social and environmental 
commitment

The deepening of social and environmental 
criteria is a result of an analysis of operations 
and a reflection on the role of the Bank in 
relation to world preservation. This observation 

GROUPS OF INTEREST
Banco Regional has organized progress in the search of reducing 
environmental impact to support the efforts of our clients on this 
issue. At the beginning of this path, the goal was set to progressively 
include groups of interest through participative and dialogue-based 
mechanisms in future conversations, as an institution convinced that 
the voices of groups of interest are key to lead the way towards more 
sustainable operation. 

Primary Secondary

Clients Public Opinion

Shareholders Government

Colaboradores

Suppliers

Communities

process has taken into consideration the banking industry 
best practices, focusing on the construction of a solid basis to 
create long-term relationships, based on trust and respect for 
the planet. 
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SUBSTANTIAL ISSUES
Starting today, coverage will be provided to issues related to 

operation and relationship with groups of interest. This structure 

will allow setting goals and integrating management indicators to 

our work teams, with a positive impact on issues selected from 

day-to-day work. 

In the following publications, through the methodological 

inclusion of diverse voices, it will be possible to see how the 

perceptions of the company and the expectations of groups of 

interest converge to calibrate strategic goals and cover possible 

gaps between points of view. 

Ethics and 
Transparency Financial Results

Environmental 
Management of 

the Bank
Business Strategy Products and 

Services

Relationship with 
Collaborators

Efficiency of 
Processes

Commitment to 
Sustainable 

Development
Digital Banking

Infrastructure, 
Technology and 

Innovation
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Regional 
Group3.5.

Formed by Banco Regional 

S.A.E.C.A., Regional S.A. 

de Seguros, Regional 

Casa de Bolsa S.A. and 

Fundación Regional, the 

Regional Economic Group 

was created to meet the 

economic and financial 

needs of the Paraguayan 

market through integral 

solutions for each need, 

collaborating with 

sustainability in its areas 

of influence. 

GETTING TO KNOW THE 
REGIONAL GROUP
In 2020, a campaign was launched 

alongside the members of the 

Economic Group with the purpose 

of making collaborators and the 

most important details of each 

member known. A schedule was 

prepared for these communications 

made on Fridays, every 15 days, 

aimed at all collaborators of the 

Bank, the Brokerage House, Insurer 

and Foundation.
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Additionally, the Marketing 

Committee was created in August 

to have monthly meetings to work 

on communication options to allow 

positioning and strengthening the 

Regional Group. 

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 
  Regional Casa de Bolsa: Karen 

Oleñik and Mónica Mazacotte.

   Seguros Regional: Romina 

Villamayor, substituting for 

Elizabeth Damús. 

  Fundación Regional: Alex Cyncar. 

  Banco Regional: Sabrina Sinay, 

Cynthia Vázquez with the support 

of Ma. Luisa Rossi. 

COMMUNICATION ACTIONS PERFORMED 
AS A GROUP: 
There were 5 meetings in which the 

following actions were coordinated: 

  Pink October

  Blue November

  End of the year salutation

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



76

LECTURE CIRCUIT 
The first event had Banco Regional as host, 

represented by Mr. Raúl Vera Bogado, who gave 

a lecture on the issue of “Economic Perspective 

and Situation”, and Ms. Laura Borsato, who 

talked about “Strategies and Innovation”. 

The second edition of the event had Regional 

Seguros as host, represented by Mr. Luis 

Rodríguez, who talked about the “Insurance 

Market”, and Mr. Jorge Castelví, who presented 

the topic of “Developing an insurance culture”, 

with the special participation of Marcelo Prono 

from Regional Casa de Bolsa for the 

Q&A section. 

In the third edition, the event had 

Regional Casa de Bolsa as host, 

represented by Ms. Viviana Trociuk 

and Ms. Karen Oleñik, who lectured 

on Mutual Funds as an investment 

range, and it also had the special 

participation of Leila Sarquis from 

the Foundation in the Q&A section. 

For the last edition, the event had 

Fundación Regional as host, represented 

by Ms. Irene Memmel and Mr. Alexis 

Cyncar, who presented the Foundation 

and the actions it has been developing. 

It also had the special participation of 

Anahí Heisecke as representative of the 

Bank for the Q&A section. 

As part of the actions undertaken 

by the Regional Group members 

and with the purpose of 

granting valuable content to 

the market, a Lecture Circuit 

was held with a livestream on 

Facebook: @BancoRegionalPy 

or on Youtube: RegionalPy and, 

also, a Talk Circuit on successful 

experiences via Zoom. 
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TALK CIRCUIT

SUCCESSFUL EXPERIENCE IN LIVESTOCKLA 
PRIMERA EDICIÓN 
The first edition of the Talk Circuit had Engineer 

Carlos Pedretti as special guest, supported 

by Ms. Laura Borsato and Mr. Walter Duarte on 

behalf of the Bank. 

SUCCESSFUL EXPERIENCE IN RICE 
PRODUCTION
The second edition of the Talk Circuit had 

Engineer Hector Ramírez of Arrozal S.A., Mr. 

Graciano Pereira and Mr. Marcos Pereira of 

Arrozales del Chaco S.A. as special guests 

with the participation of Mr. Walter Duarte and 

Enrique Torras representing the Bank. 

SUCCESSFUL EXPERIENCE IN FOOD 
INDUSTRIALIZATION 
The last edition of the Regional Group Talk 

Circuit had the special participation of Marco 

Riquelme, of Mazzei – Industrial Delights S.A.; 

Ms. Laura Borsato supported him on behalf of 

the Bank. 

BRAND PRESENCE – MAGNIFICENT SUMMER
Additionally, and as part of the Bank’s Magnificent 

Summer campaign, aiming at supporting clients with 

benefits during this summer season, the brand of the 

Regional Group members was present in the Beaches 

of Encarnación: San José, Mboi Ka’e and San Isidro. 

Banco 
Regional

Regional 
Seguros

Regional Casa 
de Bolsa

Fundación 
Regional

Reach 15,795 10,462 8,148 3,154

Video plays 4,107 3,539 1,433 1,052

Total interaction 693 209 87 132

Reactions 531 136 54 115
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2020 Main
milestones

Regional Seguros

Launch of digital 

policy self-

management 

and validation through the website. The 

insured party can report claims, check 

their account statement, verify policies 

and their history. 

24-HOUR CLAIM SERVICE AS 
AN EXTENSION OF SERVICES 
OFFERED. 24-HOUR CLAIM 
SERVICE WAS LAUNCHED 
THROUGH REGIONAL ASISTENCIA. 

Presence in social networks
The launch of social network 

presence: Facebook, to 

increase the channels of 

communication with clients 

and strengthen the brand. 
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CELEBRATION OF THE FIRST 
ANNIVERSARY INTERVENING 
FROM THEIR AREAS OF FINANCIAL 
EDUCATION, AGRICULTURAL 
AND LIVESTOCK RESEARCH AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION. 

Website Launch: 
www.regionalcasadebolsa.com.py  

Focused mainly on financial education 

of those visiting while offering a space 

for clients. 

Talk Circuit
7 talks were held 

aiming at talking to 

Mutual Funds Launch
To supplement the offer of products 

and operations, Mutual Funds in 

guaranies and dollars were launched 

as a tool to optimize liquid resources 

of investors in September. 

Seed Fund Competition: It promotes the 

preparation of university theses addressing 

Sustainable Development issues. 

Financial Education 

Webinars circuit for Clients and 

Collaborators of the companies 

of the Regional Group. 

clients who are inside the financial world 

already, as well as to those people who 

are interested in learning more about the 

stock market. 

Fundación Regional

Brokerage House
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REGIONAL INSURANCE

In the period between 2019 and 2020, Regional 

Seguros (RS) has achieved a premium total 

invoicing of PYG 67,934 million, presenting an 

8.3% growth compared to the previous year. 

This invoicing index placed RS on the 12th place 

out of 34 insurers operating in the national 

industry with a 2.61% market share. The current 

Business department developed its market 

Target As of December 31 Compliance % Previous production

Direct sales 3,614,225,125 4.037,308,728 112% 3,002,296,525

Insurance banking 21,769,113,847 21,179,027,234 97% 20,029,249,643

Agents and brokers 11,260,224,156 10,397,954,728 92% 10,551,324,294

Captive sales 563,247,136 412,608,615 74% 499,332,567

AJ Vierci 722,838,233 1,793,167,222 248% 48,145,908

TOTAL 37,929,648,497 37,823,066,527 99.9% 34,130,348,937

Variation compared to the previous year 10.82% 26,343,078,880

Target exceeded by -0.3% 26,868,359,341

GENERAL PRODUCTION - FIRST SEMESTER

Comments: 

share strategies through three 

significant Marketing channels:

   Insurance Banking, PYG 36,169 

million. 

   Agents and Brokers: PYG 21,541 

million. 

   Direct Sales: PYG 7,223 million. 

In this first semester of the 

2020/2021 year, there was a 10.82% 

growth. 

1st Semester, 2019-2020 year: 

34,130,348,937

1st Semester, 2020-2021 year: 

37,823,066,527
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CLAIM MANAGEMENT

As for indicators, it can be said that net claim 

recovery rate was 29%, lower than the indicator 

recorded in the previous year, which was 31%. 

Foreign Reinsurance contracts have allowed us a claim 

recovery rate of PYG 11,830 million, representing 47% of 

gross claims paid during the year. 

It should be mentioned that claim rate is one 

of the references used to measure profitability 

of an insured party and the business and it is 

obtained from the difference in percentages of 

cumulative invoiced premiums and expenses for 

estimated or paid-up claims. 

After the analysis of the sections which had 

the largest shares in claim expenses, we find 

the Automobiles Section with 3,136 claims 

received, PYG 9,703 million in estimated losses, 

representing a 17.9% reduction compared to 

the previous year. As a contribution to the 

company’s digitalization process, claims service 

through website reports has had very good 

results, supplementing the interactive chat of 

customer service. 

The Life Section with 96 claims estimated in PYG 

6,838 million is the second section with the most 

impact on claim reserves. 

In this 1st semester of the 2020/2021 year, there 

has been a total of 2159 claims, compared to 

the 2642 received in 2019/2020, representing a 

22.37% decrease in claims. 

However, in the claim estimation amount, there 

was a 28.64% increase for the current year. 

1st Semester, 2019-2020 year:

15,385,148,015

1st Semester, 2020-2021 year: 

19,791,605,161

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

EQUITY EVOLUTION
As for Company’s Net Worth, it increased 32% compared 

to the previous year, which meant an increase of PYG 9,379 

million, as a result of the increase in Legal Reserves and 

profits of the year. The ROE determined by the Year’s Profit 

on Shareholders’ Equity was 26%, and profitability on capital 

was 50%. 

The technical profit of the 2019-2020 year was 7,125 million, which 

compared to the 4,246 million in the 2018-2019 period represents 

a 67% growth. 

The year’s profit was 9,941 million in the 2019-2020 period and 

6,836 million in the 2018-2019 period, representing a 45% growth. 

The solvency margin ratio by June 30, 2020, is 2.66 and it 

was 2.06 the previous year. The solvency margin ratio by 

December 31, 2020, is 3.29. 

The Guarantee Fund surplus by June 30, 2020, is 5,835 million 

and it was 2,139 million in the previous year, with a 172% increase 

between the aforementioned periods. The Guarantee Fund 

surplus by December 31, 2020, is 9,247 million. 
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BROKERAGE HOUSE

Regional Casa de Bolsa was born 

as a Banco Regional affiliate with 

presence in the Stock Market since 

January, 2019, as a reflection of the 

decision of the Regional Group 

to contribute to the development 

of new businesses that would 

allow an expansion in the offer of 

financial products to corporate and 

individual clients. The Brokerage 

House has an open structure 

to offer the best alternatives of 

investment and advice locally and 

internationally, according to the 

profile of each client. 

Aiming at closely and professionally 

supporting investors, Regional Casa 

de Bolsa has been increasing its 

stock market share with constant 

growth, performing total issues 

for US$ 26 million and doubling 

both the number of clients and the 

operating volume by the end of 2020, 

compared to the previous year. 

To supplement the offer of 

products and operations, in 

September, Mutual Funds in 

guaranies and dollars were 

launched as a tool to optimize 

investors’ liquid resources. With 

the same idea, a new independent 

business unit, Multi Family 

Office, was formed, offering 

comprehensive and customized 

advice to high equity families 

alongside our strategic ally, Alcalá 

Inversiones, a LarrainVial company. 

Considering the effects of the 

measures adopted to contain the 

advance of Covid-19, Regional Casa 

de Bolsa intensified the focus on 

Liquidity and Risk management, 

with the main challenge of seeking 

new forms to keep clients close 

and provide solutions and answers 

to their needs, while capturing any 

possible opportunities with them. 

This is why the first of the seven 

Talk Circuits developed in 2020 

was launched in May, aimed at 

contributing to financial education, 

supported by its strategic ally, 

LarrainVial, and other renowned 

national professionals. 

Likewise, we bet on client bond 

consolidation through its website 

launch, mainly to provide financial 

education for those visiting and to 

facilitate and speed up processes. 

2020 has been a year with many 

challenges in all levels and 

aspects. Regional Casa de Bolsa 

S.A. undertook this challenge 

focusing its management mainly 

on administering the liquidity of our 

investors and clients, advising them 

about the correct diversification and 

readaptation of their portfolios at all 

times, with the purpose of mitigating 

new risks and optimizing returns. 

Regional Casa de Bolsa will seek to consolidate its 

operations in 2021, maintaining an organic balance 

based on the pillars of: control environment, 

business and opportunity generation promoting 

synergies between Regional Group units and 

the stock market, process efficiency and, lastly, 

constant training of the professional team. 

With this horizon, the Brokerage House looks 

to maintain the essence of the Regional Group, 

which is to be pioneers and protagonists of the 

development of the country and an ally for people 

and entrepreneurs who bet on Paraguay with a 

prominently comprehensive, safe and reliable line. 
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FUNDACIÓN REGIONAL:
Commitment in motion!

A little over a year of its creation (October 28, 

2019), Fundación Regional has consolidated 

its presence in the department of Itapúa, 

intervening with projects and initiatives from 

its three defined axes of action: (i) financial 

education, (ii) agricultural and livestock research, 

and (iii) environmental education, while also 

extending solidarity, highly needed as a 

consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The Board of Directors (2019-2022) undertook 

the leadership of the organization with the firm 

purpose of strengthening the commitment of the 

Regional Group with Sustainable Development; 

promoting initiatives with positive influence 

on the care of people and nature’s resources, 

optimizing the economic resources allocated for 

their creation. 

“We want to be allies of society, with innovative 

and feasible proposals”, the President, Ms. Irene 

Memmel said as part of the celebrations of the 

first anniversary of the Foundation, highlighting 

the following actions and results: 

FINANCIAL EDUCATION

WEBINAR CIRCUIT ON FINANCIAL 
EDUCATION
5 talks for Clients and 

Collaborators of the companies of 

the Regional Group. 

More than 700 participants. 

The development of these 

activities was entrusted to the 

Superarte company.

ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

“SEED FUND” COMPETITION
This initiative was launched during 

the celebration act for the First 

Anniversary of the Foundation. Its 

goal is to grant resources for the 

implementation of thesis projects. 

The idea is to promote the practice 

of academic research. The projects 

include certain Sustainable 

Development Goals (SDG) selected 

by the Foundation. 

3 university theses, from 

institutions from the Department of 

Itapúa, will be selected in 2021. 

PYG 15 million will be granted to 

each thesis for their implementation. 
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AGRICULTURAL AND LIVESTOCK 
RESEARCH

SCHOLARSHIPS FOR STUDENTS
Acknowledging that many students 

drop out of school due to lack 

of resources, it was decided to 

grant scholarships for those taking 

technical courses in agricultural 

institutes and high schools in the 

department of Itapúa.

 

The scholarships will be granted 

for the 2021 school year. There 

will be two of them covering all 

academic costs and costs related to 

permanence in educational centers. 

2 scholarships
100% of the cost for school year 
and maintenance support

SOLIDARITY ACTIONS

The COVID-19 pandemic set us 

all in motion in every sense. On 

that regard, made the following 

interventions: 

300 kits of non-perishable food, 

distributed in the 8 de Diciembre 

neighborhood in Encarnación. 

500 reagents for COVID tests 

given to INERAM. 

200 kits of quick tests for the 

Regional Hospital in Encarnación. 
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The Board of Directors of the 

Foundation is presided by Ms. Irene 

Memmel de Matiauda and Ms. 

Leila Sarquis De Oswald (President 

and Vice-President, respectively). 

Analía Trociuk, Karen Oleñik, 

Elizabeth Damus, Bettina Agüero 

and Silvio Núñez are the members. 

In addition, Roland Wolff and 

Francisco Yanagida are Trustees 

(regular and alternate). 

For the development of the 

aforementioned initiatives, we 

signed several alliances, such as: 

Universidad Nacional de Itapúa, 

Universidad San Carlos, Fundación 

Paraguaya, the Superarte and 

Cavida companies and the 

Biotechnology Institute (INBIO, for 

its Spanish initials). 

The management of the 

Foundation is operational through 

a coordination which keeps the 

organization active and open to the 

public, Mondays through Fridays, 

from 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM. The main 

office is in Encarnación city, with 

its own facilities built as part of 

the contribution of the Bank to 

materialize this initiative. 

One of the challenges for 2021 

is starting to generate its own 

resources. A Membership Program 

will be designed for that purpose 

with Grupo Regional collaborators 

as protagonists. 

To learn more about the 
Foundation and its projects, visit 
www.fundacionregional.org.py 
Instagram: @fundacion.regional
Facebook: @fundacionregionalpy
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Integridad, 
profesionalismo
y actitud POSITIVA

Integrity, 
professionalism
and a
attitude 

POSITIVE
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Economic Analysis 
and Outlook

4.1.

WORLD VIEW

UNITED STATES
The Bureau of Economic Analysis 

of the Department of Commerce 

of the United States published its 

estimation of growth of the real Gross 

Domestic Product (GDP) of the fourth 

quarter of 2020. The result points at 

an interannual drop of 2.5% which, 

according to the report, reflects 

the continuous economic recovery 

recorded in the country after the 

strong falls seen as a consequence of 

the COVID-19 pandemic.

As for expenses, it remarks that 

the private gross investment after 

the four consecutive quarters in 

decline, increased by 3.2%. On the 

other hand, personal consumption 

and expenses and gross investment 

of the government reduced by 2.6%

and 0.6% respectively.

For the external balance, it was 

seen that the exports maintained a 

more accentuated retraction than 

the one exhibited by imports, by 

11.6% and 0.6% in each case.

So, the fall of the real GDP for 2020 

was by 3.5%, considerably below 

the initial projections (between 

-5.0% and - 8.0%).
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Evolution of the GDP of the U.S.
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On the other hand, the U.S. dollar measured 

through the DXY 1 index in December 2020 

ended with an average of 90.50, 7.1% below the 

figure seen in the same month of the previous 

year. As of January 28, 2021, the average of the

index was in 90.22, which represents a drop of 

0.3% with respect to the previous month.

As to employment, the Department of Labor 

Statistics published its report corresponding to 

the month of December 2020, showcasing that the 

unemployment rate remained unchanged at 6.7%. 

It remarks that, in the month of December, 

140,000 jobs were lost, a result that is linked, 

according to the report, to the increase of 

COVID-19 cases and the efforts to contain the 

pandemic. In fact, the recreation and hospitality 

sector was the one with the worst performance 

with a loss of 498,000 jobs, followed by private 

education (63,000), government (45,000) and 

other services (22,000).

On the contrary, there were jobs created in 

professional services and business (161,000), 

retail trade (121,000), construction (51,000), 

transport and storage (47,000), health care 

(39,000), manufacturing (38,000) and wholesale 

trade (25,000). As for the sectors of mining, 

information and financial activities, there were 

small variations.

In addition, on January 28, 2021, the Department 

of Labor presented its report which shows 

that, during the week that ended on January 

This index estimates the behavior of this currency with respect to a portfolio that contains the main currencies of the world (euro, yen, pound sterling, Canadian dollar, Swedish krona and Swiss franc).
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23, 847,000 people applied for unemployment benefits. In fact, for the week ended 

on January 16, the total number of people who received the subsidy was around 4.8 

million, reflecting a significant reduction with respect to the figure seen in October 

2020 (7.8 million).
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As for the consumer price index, for the month of December 

2020, there was a month-to-month variation of 0.4%, the 

highest record since the month of August of that year. In 

interannual terms, inflation, without season adjustments, was

of 1.4%, mainly due to the spike in the food sector (3.9%).

On the other hand, in November, the United States Federal 

Reserve (FED) announced an extension until March 31, 2021 

of several credit facilities that expired on December 31, 

2020, such as the Programs of Liquidity of the Mutual Fund 

of the Currency Market, of Protection of Checks of Payment, 

among others.

In addition, in December, the FED extended until September 

30, 2021, its temporary facilities for swap in U.S. dollars to 

provide liquidity in coordination with other central banks.

Also, in its meeting on January 27, 2021, the FED decided to 

maintain its political rate between 0.00% and 0.25%.

More so, the Committee estimates that the rate will remain 

in that range until the economy has reached peak

employment and inflation increases 2.0%.
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Additionally, its Treasury stock holding will keep 

increasing by at least US$ 80 billion per month, 

and that of mortgage- backed stock, by at least 

US$ 40 billion per month, until there is progress 

towards the maximum employment and the 

objective of price stability. The issuer states that 

these purchases of assets help to promote the 

functioning of the market and therefore, support 

the flow of credit for homes and companies.

EUROPE
On January 18, 2021, the office of Statistics of 

the European Union (Eurostat) published the 

update of the real GDP of the Eurozone for the 

third quarter of 2020. The adjusted figure due 

to season factors showed a spike of 12.4% for 

said macroeconomic index, when compared 

to the previous quarter. This rebound occurs 

after the measures of contention due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic, applied by the member 

states during the previous quarters. With 

respect to the same period of the previous 

year, the real GP was reduced by 4.3%. 

In addition, in November 2020, industrial 

production showed an interannual retraction 

of 0.6%. Only the production of intermediate 

and capital goods showed increases of 1.1% and 

0.1%, respectively. The remaining sectors that 

comprise the index exhibited reductions, i.e.: 

energy (5.0%), perishable consumption goods 

(2.5%) and non-perishable consumption goods 

(0.4%). In a similar manner, the production of 

the construction sector fell by 1.3%. Spain and 

Belgium had the largest reductions, by 13.1% 

and 9.3%, respectively, while Slovenia had an 

interannual expansion of 18.4%. 

 

As for retail sales, during November 2020, 

several member countries of the area 

introduced contention measures again

to face a new wave of contagions of COVID-19. 

This, as expected, had an impact in trade. So, in 

interannual terms, there was a drop by 2.9% in 

retail activity.

As for unemployment, during November 

2020, it was around 8.3%, slightly below the 

record of the previous month (8.4%). Eurostat 

estimates that more than 13.6 million people are 

unemployed. For youth unemployment, the rate 

reached 18.4%, which is higher than the figure in October 

(18.0%).

On the other hand, inflation during December 2020 had an 

interannual drop of 0.3%, a figure seen for the fourth

consecutive month. This result is contrasted by the 

increase by 1.3% recorded in the same month of 2019. The

retraction exhibited by the sector of energy (6.9%) was the 

one with the most incidence over the result of the month.

It should be noted that there are still several countries 

with deflation, among them, Greece (2.4%), Slovenia 

(1.2%), Ireland (1.0%), Estonia (0.9%), Cyprus (0.8%), 

Germany (0.7%), Spain (0.6%), Latvia (0.5%), Italy (0.3%),

Luxembourg (0.3%), Portugal (0.3%) and Lithuania (0.1%).

As for economic policy, on December 10, 2020, the 

European Central Bank (ECB) extended by € 500 billion 

the program of emergency purchases to face the 

pandemic (PEPP) to reach € 1,850 billion, which will 

extend it, at least, until the end of March 2022. It will 

also continue the assets purchase program (APP) with a 

monthly rhythm of €20 billion.
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Likewise, on January 21, 2021, the ECB 

kept the interest rates of the main 

financing operations, marginal credit 

facility and deposit facility at 0.0%, 0.25% 

and -0.50%, respectively. The council 

considers that they will remain in the 

current or lower levels until there is a 

convergence of the inflation outlook 

towards a level of approximately 2.0%. In 

addition, they ratified the continuity of 

the PEPP and the APP in the amount set 

on December 10, 2020.
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U.S. China Eurozone

CHINA
In 2020, preliminary estimations state that the 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) recorded an 

interannual spike of 2.3%. Internally, the primary 

sector recorded an increase of 3.0%, followed by 

the secondary sector (2.6%) and the tertiary (2.1%).

For the recovery of the economy, the work of 

prevention and control of the epidemic, the 

measures to stabilize employment, foreign trade, 

national investment, food and energy security, industrial and 

supply chains and the income of people were defining.

On the other hand, in December 2020, the industrial 

production had an interannual increase by 7.3%. Among the 

sectors of industry with the most dynamism with double 

digits spikes, we find: cars with new sources of energy 

(55.6%), microcomputers (42.3%), machinery that cuts metal 

(32.4%), industrial robots (32.4%), equipment that generates

energy (31.9%), integrated circuits (20.8%), medicine 
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manufacturing (16.9%), machinery and electric equipment

manufacturing (15.6%), among others. For the year 2020, the 

increase of industrial production was of 2.8%.

As for retail sales, in December 2020, they had an interannual 

increase of 4.6%. Both the sales of the urban and rural area 

have interannual growths of 4.4% and 5.9%, respectively. In 

cumulative terms, in 2020, retail sales dropped by 3.9%.

Finally, in December 2020, the Consumer Price Index was at 

0.2%, the second-best record of the year. The spikes of prices 

seen in other articles and services (2.5%), health care (2.2%), 

food, beverages and tobacco (1.4%), education, culture and 

recreation (1.0%), transport and communication (0.9%), were 

offset by the drops seen in the prices of home items and 

services (3.1%), housing (0.6%) and clothing (0.1%).

CURRENCIES AND COMMODITIES
The coronavirus pandemic has not ended and although 

several vaccines are being applied, it seems that the recovery 

is going to be held off. With Europe in a third wave and a 

currency that keeps appreciating compared to the dollar, it is

expected that the arrival of spring and generalized 

vaccination will allow certain immunity that helps to a return 

to normal in the European continent. However, on the other 

side, the United States with Democrats in government and an

ultra-expansive policy make for the continuation of the 

perspectives of a weakened dollar.

The final adjusted inventories of soybean at the end 

of 2020, the climate in South America, the stoppage 

of exports of Argentina, customs restrictions in 

Russia are some of the factors that forecasted an 

adjustment in the prices of commodities.

The prices of soybean in Chicago already 

exceeded 450 dollars per ton in December 

2020, so the level of prices was kept high since 

August 2014 and, in January 2021, it exceeded 

520 dollars per ton.

This trend would continue upwards, supported 

by factors such as the scarcity that the United 

States may face if the volume of exports 

continues increasing, in addition to the cessation 

of the exporting logistics in Argentina. Also, 

the irregularity of rains in South America also 

encouraged the increase of prices of soybean.

Corn prices are also on an upward trend, with 

prices around 177.85 dollars per ton at the end 

of 2020 and starting 2021 above 200 dollars 

per ton. China may require American corn 

approaching the goals set in the Phase One. 

Another key factor is the climate in Brazil and 

Argentina, where the USDA estimates that the 

harvest would be of 110 and 49 million tons. The 

CONAB of Brazil estimates that the harvest of 

corn of 2021 at 102.3, which is a factor with an 

upward trend.

Another data which may affect it is the approach 

of members of the United States president, 

Joe Biden, to leaders of the biofuel sector who 

focused on increasing access to fuels with 

higher mixes of ethanol.

As for rice, the pandemic favored the sales of 

rice and the increase of demand made prices to 

quickly increase worldwide. Starting in March, when 

the pandemic started to advance in Brazil and 

there were social restriction measures imposed, 

consumers started to acquire in larger volumes, 

which made the internal price of rice rise and made 

Brazil to start demanding larger volumes.

In this scenario, in the second quarter, the 

prices of paddy rice started a constant upward 

movement. In the second quarter, the rise of 

prices of paddy rice intensified, considering 

that, in addition to the strong internal demand, 

exports of the product also grew driven by 
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the high dollar. So, the price continued with an 

upward trend reaching the historical record of 

362.20 dollars per ton.
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With respect to oil, in the second semes-

ter of 2020, prices started to rise again 

with the relaxation of restrictions of mo-

vement worldwide, ending December 

with 51.80 dollars per barrel. At the start 

of 2021, the outlook was on an upwards 

trend until the cases of COVID-19 in China 

started to rise again which could make 

the demand of the biggest consumer of 

energy of the world slow down again.

Brent oil trades at 55.91 dollars per ba-

rrel at the end of January while oil in the 

United States (WTI) is at 52.61 dollars per 

barrel. For 2021, the outlook for crude 

would not be as auspicious as there is still 

uncertainty in commercial terms.

In addition to the increase in cases of CO-

VID and the slow expansion of the vaccine, 

geopolitical tensions returned after

two supertankers with crew from Iran and 

China were captured in Indonesian waters 

due to alleged illegal transfers of crude.
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EVOLUTION OF THE PRICE OF BRENT OIL (US$/BARREL)

WORLDWIDE GROWTH
The International Monetary Fund 

(IMF) updated the outlook of the 

world economy and adjusted again 

its growth projection. It estimates 

the economic contraction of 2020 

has been of 3.5% and that the 

economic dynamism seen would 

allow the economy to recover in 2021 at a rate 

of 5.5% in the midst of an uncertainty that would 

continue all year long. Although the arrival of the 

vaccine allowed forecasts to improve given that 

it allows for a quicker recovery, the reach it will 

have cannot be known yet. 

The IMF expects Latin America to grow by 4.1% 

this year after a contraction of 7.4% in 2020. In 

the report, dome difficulties in the recovery are 

remarked for oil exporting countries and those 

whose economies are based on tourism due to 

the slow normalization of international travel and 

the outlook of prices of oil.

The projections indicate that the only country that 

would have a growth in the year of the pandemic 

is China, for 2020, the growth rate is around 2.3% 

and the recovery would continue in 2021 with 8.1%.

The developed economies would grow 4.3% this year, 

it is expected that the United States would recover 

at a rate of 5.1% while the Eurozone would do it at a 

rate of 4.2%. Emerging and developing economies 

are projected to have a growth of 6.3%, led by China 

and India. For Brazil, which is the country in the region 

included within the update of global outlook, a growth 

of 3.6% is estimated for 2021.

The IMF remarks in its report that the policy 

measures must ensure effective support until the 

recovery is firmly on track and it is key to stimulate 
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the potential product, guarantee a participative growth that benefits 

everyone. Also, as stated in the October 2020 report on the Outlook for 

the world economy, a stimulus to green investment would strengthen 

recovery after the recession caused by the pandemic.

Projections of Growth in the GDP (in %)

2020

5.5

World  U.S. Japan China India BrazilLatin 
America

Eurozone

4.2 5.1

2.5

4.2 3.6 3.1
2.4

8.1

5.6

11.5

6.8

4.1 3.6

2.62.9

2021

Source: MF Economía with data from the IMF

Source: MF Economía with data from the IMF

REGIONAL OUTLOOK

For the third quarter of 2020, the GDP showed an interannual drop of 

3.9%. The sectors that recorded drops were: other service activities 

(14.4%), transport and storage (10.4%), construction (7.9%), administration, 

defense, public health, 

education and social security 

(5.4%), trade (1.3%), information 

and communication (1.3%) and 

manufacturing (0.2%).

On the contrary, annual increases 

were seen in: agricultural and 

livestock activities (0.4%), 

extractive industries (1.0%),

real estate activities (2.7%), 

electricity, gas, water, sewage 

and waste management (3.8%) and financial and 

insurance activities (6.0%).

On the other hand, the GDP as to expenses shows 

that all of the items of the internal added demand 

dropped. The retraction seen by the gross formation 

of fixed capital (7.8%) is highlighted, followed 

by home consumption (6.0%) and government 

(5.3%). In the external sector, exports of goods and 

services saw a slight drop (1.1%) on the face of the 

considerable drop in imports (25.0%).
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For the month of December 2020, inflation, 

measured through the interannual variation 

of the National Wide Consumer Price Index 

was 4.5%. The highest figure seen since 2016, 

when it was 6.3%. However, it was within the 

tolerance range set by the currency authority 

(4.0% + 1.5 percentage points, pp).

The group of food and beverages was the one 

that contributed the most in that result (2.73 

pp) with a spike of 14.1%. Also, the housing 

sector contributed 0.8 pp to the variation of the 

National Wide Consumer Price Index recorded 

in the month under analysis, by increasing 5.3%.

As for economic policy, on January 20, 2021, 

the Central Bank decided unanimously, based 

on the information available, to maintain the 

Selic rate at 2.00%. The recent increase in the 

price of raw materials with effects on food and

fuel has increased projections of inflation 

for the following months. Therefore, the 

Committee will keep closely monitoring the 

evolution of said variable. In fact, it stated that 

its base scenario points to a trajectory for the 

Selic rate of 3.25% for 2021 and 4.75% for 2022.

In addition, the Committee considers that 

perseverance in the process of reforms and 

adjustments needed in the Brazilian economy is 

fundamental for a sustainable economic recovery. 

On the contrary, uncertainty over the agenda 

of reforms and the permanent changes in the 

process of fiscal consolidation may generate an 

increase in the structural interest rate.

Finally, in the month of December 2020, the 

average exchange rate ended in R$/US$ 5.15 

so it reached a cumulative depreciation of 

25.2%. As of January 28, 2021, the average of the 

mentioned rate was R$/US$ 5.35, representing a

cumulative increase of 4.0%.

ARGENTINA
During the third quarter of 2020, the report of 

growth of the economic activity states that the 

GDP fell 10.2% in interannual terms. Only two 

productive activities grew, i.e., electricity, gas 

and water (2.3%) and financial intermediation 

(4.6%). In contrast, the largest interannual drops 

were seen in: hotels and restaurants (61.5%), 

other community, social and personal service 

activities (53.8%), construction (27.0%), transport 

and communications (21.7%), fishing (18.3%) and private homes 

with domestic service (16.8%). The remaining sectors exhibited 

drops below 15.0%.

As for the global demand, the largest drop was recorded 

in FOB exports (17.0%), followed by private consumption 

(14.7%), the gross formation of fixed capital (10.3%) and public 

consumption (6.5%). On the other hand, FOB imports fell 22.0%.     
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As for the Consumer Price Index, 

its month-to-month variation as of 

December 2020 was 4.0% so the 

cumulative result of the year was 36.1%.

All groups that form the index 

showed spikes in prices, i.e., 

clothing and shoes (60.0%), 

recreation and culture (48.0%),

food and non-alcoholic beverages 

(42.1%), home equipment and 

maintenance (37.7%), restaurants 

and hotels (36.3%), transport (34.2%), 

alcoholic beverages and tobacco 

(33.1%), health (28.7%), sundry goods 

and services (26.7%), education 

(20.1%), housing, water, electricity, 

gas and other fuels (17.6%) and 

communication (7.6%).

On the other hand, the Board of 

the Central Bank of the Argentine 

Republic, on November 12, increased 

by two pp the lower limit of the interest rates of the 

Letters of Liquidity to be at 38.0%.

As for exchange, as of December 2020, the 

average of the official exchange rate closed at 

AR$/US$ 82.64, with a cumulative depreciation 

of 38.0%. However, the blue dollar closed at AR$/

US$ 166, so the exchange gap was of 100.9%.

As of January 28, 2021, the average of the official 

exchange rate was of AR$/US$ 85.90, 3.9% above 

the figure of the previous month. Meanwhile, the 

blue dollar, as of said date, slightly slowed down 

to close to close at AR$/US$ 154.
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    Source: MF Economía with data from Ámbito Financiero
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Likewise, on January 6, 2021, the 

Board of the Central Bank of the 

Argentine Republic provided for 

importers of luxury goods and of 

a specific group of final goods to 

have funding before entering the 

official market to cancel payments. 

Also, the mentioned Board will 

allow for funds originated from the 

collection of exports of goods and 

services to be accumulated in foreign and/or in-country 

accounts to guarantee the cancellation of the debt agreed 

since January 2021.

Also, the registration in the Federal Administration of 

Public Income will be mandatory for the main one hundred 

companies that operate in foreign trade, both importers 

and exporters, to have the detail of operations of purchase 

and settlement of foreign currencies.

Finally, as to indebtedness, the 

International Monetary Fund (IMF), in 

its last statement made on January 14, 

pointed out that the conversations with 

Argentine authorities were still in progress. 

In the statement, they mention that the 

government of the Southern country is 

still working on the design of a mid-term 

economic plan, as well as the discussion 

of specific measures to put it into practice 

with political and social support.

The IMF remarks that facing the challenges 

of Argentina will require a set of carefully 

balanced policies to promote stability, 

restore confidence, protect the most 

vulnerable people and set the basis for a 

sustainable and uniform growth.
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LOCAL OUTLOOK

REAL ESTATE SECTOR
The COVID-19 pandemic made the 

process of recovery of the country 

that started in the last quarter of 

2019 to stop. So, the economy of 

2020 was hit by world recession, 

the reduction of internal demand 

as a consequence of restrictions

imposed and a notably diminished 

external demand due to the global 

crisis which made the Gross 

Domestic Product (GDP) to have a 

contraction of 1%.

With one of the worst epidemics of 

dengue that affected the country 

in progress and the outbreaks of 

COVID that increased worldwide, 

the government decided in March 

to apply restrictions of movement 

that would severely affect mainly 

the service sector. 

In the first quarter of 2020, the 

results as to growth of the GDP 

were mostly positive with an 

increase of 4.4% mainly due to the 

good performance of the primary 

sector with a soybean campaign 

that had normalized after the strong 

drop of the 2018/2019 cycle. It is in 

the second quarter of the year that 

the consequences of restrictions 

due to the spread of the virus 

started to be noticed. At the end 

of the second quarter, the drop of 

the product was of 6.4%. The third 

quarter records a lighter drop due 

to the flexibilization of measures 

and it was of 1.2%. As contagions 

started to be controlled and the 

number of tests increased, the 

normalization of activities allowed 

2020 to end with a better-than-

expected level of activity compared 

to the start of the pandemic.

The main factors that impacted the 

growth were:

• The Agricultural sector with the 

normalization of the soybean 

campaign and the good performance 

of harvests such as corn and rice, 

achieving a growth of 9%.

• The livestock sector, that had 

negative results and had to face 

a significant draught mainly in the 

Chaco region, grew 5%, mainly due 

to the increased beef processing.

• The construction sector, which 

remained operational basically all 

year and is estimated to have grown 

5% in 2020.

• In the secondary sector, industry is 

estimated to have grown 6%, mainly 

due to the better performance in the

production of chemical and 

pharmaceutical, meat, dairy, non-metallic 

minerals sectors. Beverages, tobacco and

textile had favorable results in the third quarter 

of 2020.

• The electricity and water sector, where the bi-

national entities are included, have positive results 

recorded in the distribution of electricity and 

water, but the generation of electricity by the bi-

national entities closed 2020 with a negative rate 

of 2.5% compared to 2019, affected by the lower 

flow rate of the Paraná River.

• The service sector was hit the most by the 

pandemic. The drop in internal demand and 

the measures taken by the government since 

the start of the pandemic made the sector end 

2020 with negative figures, a rate of -3.5%.

The most damaged sector is the one of 

Restaurants and Hotels, which is estimated 

to have fallen by 32%, followed by home, 

companies, trade and transport services, which 

were partially offset by the good performance 

of communications and the government and 

financial services.
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Analyzed from the point of view of demand, 

an opposite position is seen in public and 

private consumption: the strong injection of 

cash to reactivate the economy made by the 

government that makes public consumption to 

expand by 4.8% opposed to the drop of 5.1% in 

private consumption motivated by uncertainty 

and drop in income.

The Plan for the Gradual Lifting of Preventive 

General Isolation allowed the recovery of the 

economy gradually. Although the epidemic 

continues its cycle, the evolution of the 

macroeconomic scenario remains favorable. 

According to reports of the Ministry of Public 

Health and Social Welfare, the rhythm of the 

epidemic is in a plateau and there is no

certainty on when it will decrease.

In December, the Central Bank of Paraguay 

announced its projection for growth of the 

GDP in 2021, placing it at 4.0% driven by the 

reactivation of the main sectors of the economy 

such as industry, trade and services.
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AGRICULTURE
The 2019/2020 soybean campaign 

started with weather problems 

that delayed sowing for practically 

a month, starting in many regions 

in mid-October. However, the area 

sown was slightly larger than in 

the previous campaign. The results 

were finally better than expected at 

the start of the campaign, allowing 

to offset the drop suffered in the 

2018/2019 campaign and to be 

a mainstay in the year in which 

COVID-19 affected all sectors of 

the economy. The production of 

soybean ended the 2019/2020 with 

a total of 10.7 million tons, which 

allowed producers to face their 

financial commitments.

In this new 2020/2021 campaign, 

the outlook as to performance is 

good and the problem would be in 

the significant delay in the sowing 

due to the draught at the start of the 

campaign which made certain regions 

not to sow and the window is reduced 

so there would be a significant 

reduction in production. Prices are a 

piece of news that provides relief this 

year. The lower production would be 

offset by a strong increase of prices in 

Chicago, a product of reductions

in harvests of the main producers and 

a firm demand that continues in China.

Evolution of the GDP of Paraguay (%)
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LIVESTOCK
Production ended 2020 with 2.1 million heads, reflecting an interannual 

growth of 5.2%, the average of production per month is of 175 thousand 

heads compared to the 166 thousand heads of 2019. Above all, the drau-

ght in the Chaco region made production to accelerate in the second 

semester of the year.

OTHER SECTORS 
The service sector has experienced 

a deceleration since before the 

pandemic with the lower local 

demand and a drop of

purchases of foreigners being the 

main factors. In 2020, the loss of 

income and the uncertainty caused 

by restrictions of movement and 

times imposed deepened the fall of 

internal demand which seemed to be 

spiking at the end of 2019. The

portfolio of credit cards in the 

financial system, since December 

2019, has dropped around 5% in 

banks and 10% in financial institutions, 

and the number of plastics reduced 

by 7.0% in banks but grew 3.8% in 

financial institutions.

To see the performance of 

transport services, the freights 

related to agriculture and livestock 

can be considered, which had a 

growth during the year reflecting 

the increase of agricultural and 

meat production.

The agricultural sector has an important effect 

in the economy. When production is good, 

the services related to the chain increase. 

The quantity of grains freight increased 8.8% 

considering the good production in the 

2019/20 cycle. Likewise, livestock freight 

services increased 5.2% coinciding with the 

increase of production.

With borders closed and the high levels of 

depreciation of the Brazilian real and the 

Argentine peso, purchases of foreigners in 

Paraguay keep falling.

FISCAL SECTOR
In 2020, the Central Administration accumulated 

total income for PYG 32.4 billion, a figure that is 

below the one recorded the previous year. The 

contraction seen in tax income, income from bi-

national entities and donations was offset, in a 

way, by the spike in social contributions.

In fact, tax income, which represented 70.1% 

of the total fiscal income, had an interannual 

reduction of 3.8%. The COVID-19 pandemic 

generated the implementation of contention 

measures such as the lockdown, which meant 

the closure of productive sectors. However, as 

the lockdown relaxed through the application 
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of safety protocols in workplaces, 

the economic activity was 

reactivating and, with that, fiscal 

collection, too.

In particular, during the year 

under analysis, the largest source 

of tax income of the Central 

Administration, the Value Added 

Tax (VAT), fell by 0.4%. Specifically, 

the amount collected by the 

State Sub-Secretariat for Tax for 

that concept had a variation of 

4.3%, while the amount from the 

National Directorate for Customs 

was -7.1%.

On the other hand, the income from 

bi-national entities had a reduction of 

19.1% to end in USD 3.7 billion, mainly 

due to the decrease in resources 

from royalties and compensations 

due to the assignment of energy of 

Itaipú and Yacyretá.

As for expenses executed by the 

Central Administration, in 2020, 

these spiked in interannual terms 

by 17.1% at PYG 47.2 billion. In detail, 

current expenses, which equal 81.6% 

of the total, recorded an increase 

of 15.6% at PYG 38.5 billio. The rest 

corresponds to physical investment, 

which increased 24.7%. This latest 

variable significantly drove the 

recovery of the economic activity of 

the country.

As for details of current expenses, in the report of the financial statement of 

the Central Administration (Situfin, for its Spanish initials) as of December, the 

Ministry of Finance states that, in 2020, the coverage of the program for the elderly 

increased 13.1% up to PYG 1.4 billion. Similarly, the resources aimed at the program 

of assistance to vulnerable families (Tekoporã) increased 2.4% at PYG 0.4 billion. 

Likewise, PYG 1.2 billion were allocated to the subsidies program (Pytyvõ); PYG 1.0 

billion to the Pytyvõ 2.0 program and PYG 0.2 billion to the program for vulnerable 

people and informal workers (Ñangareko).
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In other words, the COVID-19 pandemic required a speedy response from the 

government to channel resources towards the assistance of people in poverty, under 

vulnerability and informality, given the limitations imposed by the lockdown, which 

affected the pursuit of their daily sustenance.

So, based on the aforementioned results, in 2020, the fiscal deficit rose to PYG 14.8 

billion, which represented 6.2% of the GDP estimated for the year. This figure is higher 

than the limit set by the Fiscal Responsibility Law (1.5% of the GDP). In fact, in the 

Situfin of December 2020, the Ministry of Finance details that the deficit that exceeds 

the fiscal rule is explained by the resources that were allocated to attending the 

health emergency due to COVID-19 and the economic reactivation.

In a detailed manner, the emergency 

due to COVID-19 concentrated 

2.8% of the estimated GDP, 0.9% of 

which went to wages; 0.9% to social 

programs, 0.3% to subsidies for 

public services, 0.2% to hiring and 

paying bonuses to health staff, 0.2% 

to debt service, 0.1% to pensions for 

retirees, 0.1% to health equipment 

and supplies and the rest to the 

Ministry of Justice, the Paraguayan 

Institute for the Indigenous and the 

Ministry of Labor, Employment and 

Social Security.   

For the economic reactivation, 1.9% 

of the estimated GDP was made 

available. Out of these funds, 1.3% went 

to public investment; 0.5% to Pytyvõ 

and 0.1% to the program for the elderly. 

In addition, resources were allocated 

to departmental governments and 

the food program of the Ministry of 

Education and Sciences.

Finally, as to debt, for the month 

of November 2020, the balance of 

the public debt rose to US$ 11,541 

million, which is equal to 32.3% of the 

estimated GDP. Out of that amount, 

88.1% corresponds to the Central 

Administration (US$ 10,167 million).

EXTERNAL SECTOR

BALANCE OF TRADE
In 2020, a growth of 7% in exports 

recorded is seen, as well as an 

interannual drop of imports of 19.3%, 

as a result of the deceleration of 

internal demand. Considering these 

amounts, the deficit of the balance 

of trade was reduced (recorded 

exports minus imports) ending the 

year at US$ 955 million, a drop of 

74.8% compared to the previous year.

As to reexports, they fell 42% in the 

year. When considering reexports, 

the balance of trade has a surplus 

of US$ 1,114 million and the previous 

year, it ended with a deficit of US$ 

202 million.
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EXPORTS
Total exports reached US$ 8,529 million, a growth of 7% compared to 2019.

The normalization of the soybean campaign allowed 9.3 million tons of soybean and byproducts (grains, flour, 

oil) to be exported for a value of US$ 3,245 million, representing a growth of 35 and 36% respectively compared 

to the submission of 2019. Analyzing 

products, we see that 6.6 million 

tons of soybean grains have been 

exported for an amount of US$ 2,146 

million. In relative terms, there is a 

growth of 35% in volume and 36% in 

amount compared to the previous 

year. As for byproducts, like in 2019, 

there is a reduction in levels of 

processing. Exports of oil fell 3% in

volume while those of flour, 8%.

As for the other products of the 

chain, it can be seen that the 

exports of corn had a reduction of 

30% in volume and 19% in amount. 

The results of wheat are similar as 

there are drops of 28% in volume 

and 26% in exported amount.

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



106

2020

2019

2018

2017

0

50
0

1,
0

0
0

2,
0

0
0

3,
0

0
0

4,
0

0
0

5,
0

0
0

6,
0

0
0

7,
0

0
0

8,
0

0
0

1,
50

0

2,
50

0

3,
50

0

4,
50

0

5,
50

0

6,
50

0

7,
50

0

8,
50

0

Exports per product

Evolution of imports

Source: MF Economía with data from the Central Bank of Paraguay

Chain of soybean
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On the other hand, exports of meat 

reached a total of 305 thousand 

tons for a value of US$ 1,170 million; 

values which imply a growth in 

volume (9.1%) and value (8.7%).   

 

When analyzing the type, it is seen 

that frozen meat has been sent 

for a total of 157 thousand tons for 

which US$ 591 million have been 

paid, representing a growth of 5% 

in volume for a value 6.4% higher. 

The main buyers are Russia with 

39%, Taiwan with 16%, Israel with 

10.9% and Chile with 9.8%. In terms of 

volume, this type of meat is the one 

with the largest share in the total. The 

average price of export for frozen 

meat had a slight improvement of 

1.2%, at 3,762 US$/ton.

Shipments of chilled meat 

increased 16% in volume and 13% in 

value. 114 thousand tons for a value 

of US$ 526 million. However, the 

price of export was lower by 3%, 

an average of 4,581 US$/ton. The 

main importers of this type of meat 

are Chile, with 77% and Brazil in a 

distant second place, with 14%.

The exported volume of offals 

had an increase in volume of 5.9% 

but, due to the lower prices, the 

exported value was reduced by 2% 

for a total of US$ 53 million.

IMPORTS
The year 2020 has a negative 

impact in imports, which reached 

US$ 9,485 million, 19% below 

the imports of 2019. The drop 

occurs basically in all sectors. 

Consumption goods had a retraction of 18%. Among 

these, perishable consumption goods fell 16.2%, food 

had a slight drop of 0.9%, offset by the strong increase 

of imports of legumes and green vegetables (43.7%). 

Beverages and tobacco fell 21%. Non-perishable goods 

were affected by a drop of 26%. Among intermediate 

goods, drops of fuel and lubricants of 26% and of 

capital goods of 22% are seen.
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EXCHANGE RATE AND RESERVES
The exchange rate began the 

year trading in the retail market 

at an average of 6,368 PYG/US$, 

slightly higher than the closure 

recorded in December 2019, which 

was of 6,279 PYG/US$. Although 

the levels of 6,000 PYG per dollar 

were maintained throughout 

2019, this year there was higher 

pressure during the months of the 

pandemic. Specifically, a strong 

rise is seen in the second semester, 

exceeding 7,000 PYG/US$.

A sustained demand of dollars by 

individual and corporate agents 

made this rise happen, especially 

in the least quarter of 2020, 

coinciding with a depreciation 

in the entire region. This meant 

that out of all of the region’s 

economies, Paraguay had the 

lowest devaluation.

This appreciation of the dollar 

occurred in the season in which 

the dollar usually tends to fall due 

to the income of currencies from 

soybean submissions. However, 

the historical drop of the river flow 

levels generated a delay in exports

and, consequently, lower levels of 

entry of dollars to the local market 

in the months of May to July.

In May, the exchange rate started 

to rise again, reaching 6,454 PYG/

US$ and kept rising until exceeding 

7,000 PYG/US$. Then it stabilized 

trading at the end of December 

at 6,974 PYG/US$. A factor that 

also contributed to the non-

continuation of the upwards trend 

was that many companies sold 

dollars to pay wages.

In 2020, the Central Bank of 

Paraguay made net sales for a total 

of US$ 1,770 million in the financial 

market, the highest intervention 

occurred in July for a total of 

US$ 283 million. Keeping with its 

position, the Central Bank of

Paraguay has made daily offers 

to satisfy the internal demand 

of currencies but kept the flow of the dollar, intervening to cut peaks with certain 

strength in several moments of the year.

The international reserves in dollars as of December reached US$ 8,486 million, with 

which the Central Bank of Paraguay has the ability to reduce volatility in the exchange 

rate in case of external shocks.

As for the region’s currencies, we analyze their behavior during 2020: the Argentine 

peso with a devaluation of 80.01%, the Brazilian real with a cumulative devaluation 

of 27.65%, the Chilean peso with 4.90%. The guarani has a depreciation of 9.12%, the 

difference with the percentages of Brazil and Argentina affects the competitiveness of

products and facilitates the illegal border trade.
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MONETARY AND FINANCIAL 
SECTOR

MONETARY
In December 2020, inflation, 

measured through the interannual 

variation of the Consumer Price 

Index, closed at 2.2%, slightly 

above the lower limit of the meta 

range (4.0%+2.0 pp). The strong rise 

recorded in the price of food during 

the last months of the year greatly 

contributed to this result.

In fact, among the groups 

accumulating the highest spikes 

of prices, we find: health expenses 

(4.1%), education (4.0%), recreation 

and culture (3.9%) and food and non-

alcoholic beverages (3.3%). As for 

sectors with the lowest rises, there

were alcoholic beverages and 

tobacco (0.1%), transport (0.4%) and 

clothing and shoes (0.7%).
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As for policy, it is important to 

mention that, after the irruption 

of the COVID-19 pandemic, 

the Central Bank of Paraguay 

undertook a more adaptative 

position through the reduction 

of the required reserve, the 

expansion of primary money 

(monetary basis) 2 , and the 

reduction of the monetary political 

rate to an historic minimum (0.75%). 

The latest is expected to be 

maintained in that level in the short 

term, given the anchored inflationary 

expectations, and the risk that new 

COVID-19 contagion waves affect 

the economic recovery.

With these policy measures, the Central Bank of 

Paraguay sought to avoid credit restrictions that 

would deepen the fall in economic activity. In 

other words, to have the necessary liquidity for 

the companies to remain operational and the 

people to keep consuming.

The mentioned policies, among other 

elements, led to a significant expansion in 

the monetary aggregates. So, in December, 

the demand of currency measured by the 

real M1 balance (bills and coins in circulation 

plus demand deposits) reached PYG 36.6 

billion, representing an interannual increase 

of 19.5%.However, it should be mentioned that 

this figure is lower than the one recorded in 

the last 7 months, when the variable grew to 

interannual rates exceeding 20.0%.  

Finally, the balance of the Letters of Monetary 

Regulation, after reaching PYG 12.0 billion in 

October 2020, decreased to reach PYG 11.4 

billion in December.

However, it should be pointed out that the 

placement recorded in the month under 

analysis is the second highest in the

  2The monetary rate between the months of April and November 2020 grew to interannual rates of two digits.
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year, with PYG 2.2 billion. Also, it should be 

pointed out that 88.0% of it was channeled 

through a term of up to 90 days. The 

aforementioned states that those demanding 

the instrument tend to liquid positions in a way 

that allow them to undertake any contingency 

in their institutions.

FINANCIAL 

In December 2020, the deposits in the financial 

system (banks and financial institutions) 

reached PYG 123.5 trillion (around US$ 17,702 

million), a figure that is 18.9% higher than 

the one recorded in the same month of the 

previous year. Likewise, in the month under 

analysis, the net credit of allowances of the 

financial system recorded an interannual

spike of 8.9% to reach PYG 106.6 billion 

(approximately US$ 15,287 million). It should 

be mentioned that this annual variation 

represents a deceleration with respect to 

the two previous months. In real terms, the 

increase in net loans was 6.6%.
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On the other hand, the average defaulting of the 

financial system dropped from a maximum of 3.5% 

recorded in the months of April and May 2020, to reach 

2.4% in December, slightly below the level seen in the 

same month of the 2019 (2.6%). In detail, defaulting of 

banks ended at 2.3% and that of financial institutions, at 

4.0%. For both types of institutions, these figure are the 

lowest seen in the pandemic.

As for interest rates, in November 2020, the weighted 

average of lending rates in local currency was of 12.6%, 

the second lowest record of the year. With respect 

to the month of January 2020, it had a drop of 2.4 

percentage points (pp). Similarly, the borrowing rates 

have decelerated, although in lowest quantity (1.2 pp if 

compared to the start of 2020), to reach 3.3%. In foreign 

currency, the weighted average for lending rates was 

7.2% and for borrowing rates, 2.0%.

An expansive monetary policy, seen through the 

increase of monetary aggregates, reduction of required 

reserves and reduction in the political rate led to a 

downward trend in interest rates. So, in November 

2020, the spread of interest rates in local currency 

dropped to 9.3 pp, a record below the maximum of 11.1 

pp seen in February 2020. For rates in foreign currency, 

the spread was of 5.2 pp, lower than the highest figure 

recorded in the month of May 2020 (6.2 pp).
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On the other hand, the Guarantee 

Fund of Paraguay (FOGAPY 

continued to facilitate intermediate 

activity, So, between May 2020 and 

January 2021, FOGAPY has backed 

credits for PYG 3.3 billion, for which 

guarantees for PYG 2.5 billion were 

issued benefiting 20,688 companies.

Out of these guarantees, 47.2% 

were aimed at micro-companies, 

34.6% to small companies, 13.0% 

to medium companies, 4.7% to 

intermediate companies and 0.4% 

to large companies.

26 institutions took part in this 

process, 14 of which were banks 

and 6 were financial institutions.  
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CONCLUSIONS AND 
OUTLOOK 

For 2021, a Gross Domestic 

Product (GDP) of 4.0% is 

estimated, explained by a lower 

dynamism in the sectors of trade

and services and an agricultural 

campaign delayed by the lack of rain, which 

would affect the off-season production of

soybean and corn.

• Although the economic activity is taking 

certain dynamism, a recovery cannot be seen 

yet until all sectors are fully active.
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• The arrival of the vaccine against 

COVID-19 and, after that, the 

normalization of entertainment and 

recreation activities, along with 

the full reactivation of the tourist 

sector, may provide more drive to 

the growth stimulating expenses.

• The exchange rate closes 2020 

at levels close to those projected 

and it is expected that, this year, 

there should be a downward 

trend driven internally by the 

higher income of currency mainly 

considering the increase in the

price of soybean.

• The world will need a high grain 

production from South America to 

satisfy the projected demand. The

inventory of soybean is now very 

low and the situation is projected 

to be the most difficult one in 

years, according to the USDA.

PROJECTIONS 2020 2021

Gross Domestic Product -1.0%

3.1%
4.0%
4.9%

Interannual inflation 2.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

Exchange rate (PYG/US$) 6,900
6,900
6,700
6,500

*The projected data is based on a macroeconomic estimation model of MF Economía. Projections are made based on a base scenario that implies 

the absence of shocks of supply and/or demand or structural reforms within the economy.

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



112

AS OF DECEMBER 31 OF 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020  % 20/19 

Exchange Rate (PYG per USD) 5,767 5,590 5.961 6,453 6,900
Balance (in millions of guaranies) (A)
Total Loans 10,922,572 11,212,125 12,854,962 13,955,271 12,750,796 -8.63%

Financial Investments 847,856 767,476 899,417 625,539 561,625 -10.22%
Total Assets 15,033,346 14,631,624 17,442,398 17,334,680 17,556,750 1.28%
Total Deposits 10,106,231 9,352,481 10,853,035 11,202,599 10,732,224 -4.20%
Paid-in Capital 908,029 1,001,408 1,087,788 1,151,243 1,151,243 0.00%
Shareholders’ Equity 1,455,724 1,572,702 1,637,058 1,736,966 1,802,998 3.80%

Income Statement (in millions of guaranies) (B)
Financial Margin 702,163 629,391 595,905 644,100 545,466 -15.31%
Net Commissions 113,535 112,313 119,180 119,209 106,329 -10.80%
Administrative Expenses 389,798 397,021 409,754 388,667 382,936 -1.47%
Net Income 236,020 193,701 138,092 156,900 72,396 -53.86%
Profitability and Efficiency (in %) (C)
Return on Equity (ROE) 21.24% 15.37% 10.32% 10.99% 4.56%  - 
Return on Assets (ROA) 1.72% 1.45% 0.89% 1.00% 0.45%  - 
Efficiency (costs/income) 46.31% 51.53% 55.81% 49.01% 57.23%  - 
Capital Management (in %) (D)
Tier I 13.82% 14.63% 13.64% 12.70% 16.26%  - 
Tier II 17.32% 17.70% 15.99% 12.11% 18.92%  - 
Quality of Portfolio (E)
Allowances (in millions of guaranies) 197,145 193,354 173,592 217,395 221,483 1.88%
Defaulting > 60 days (%) 2.18% 2.17% 1.47% 1.52% 1.96%  - 
Coverage of Allowances on Past-due Portfolio (%) 117.16% 120.73% 146.01% 339.81% 258.57%  - 
Liquidity Management (F)
Funds of coverage of liquidity (in millions of guara-
nies)

2,577,007 2,074,770 2,921,577 1,819,762 3,800,735 108.86%

Credits on deposits (%) 108.08% 119.88% 118.45% 124.57% 118.81%  - 
Structure and alternative channels (G)
Number of Branches (1) 38 38 38 37 32 -13.51%
ATMs 91 89 83 90 84 -6.67%

Clients (2) 102,693 103,515 99,900 100,792 98,441 -2.33%
Number of Employees 692 649 653 654 605 -7.49%
Facebook subscriptions 66,713 83,330 96,855 98,953 103,499 4.59%
Twitter subscriptions 7,556 9,727 9,685 9,650 10,162 5.31%
Instagram subscriptions 2,606 3,040 3,810 5,157 8,962 73.78%
Regional Web/Regional Mobile subscriptions (3) 21,845 27,744 36,723 41,393 48,065 16.12%
Number of credit cards (plastics) 38,660 38,985 41,151 44,996 44,203 -1.76%

(1)  The total includes administrative offices.       

(2) It includes clients with passive inactive accounts.        

(3) Regional Web: Homebanking; Regional Mobile: App and phone banking.
            

(A) The purpose of this group is to present in a summarized manner the evolution of the main items of the consolidated balance sheet, emphasizing
the portfolios.
(B) In this group, the main accounts that impact on the income of the Institution are presented.       
(C) The purpose of these ratios is to show profitability and efficiency of recent years.        
(D) These rations show the solvency and correct use of capital of the bank in recent years.       
(E) This group shows the main indicators related to the risk management of the credit portfolio.        
(F) The purpose of this group is to show the evolution of liquidity in recent years.       
(G) This group shows the evolution of the Bank as to its structure and the increase of subscribers to alternative customer service channels.        
    

4.2. Main Financial
Indicators
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ASSETS

2020 17,556,750

17,334,6802019

17,442,3982018

14,631,6242017

15,033,3462016

EVOLUTION OF TOTAL ASSETS
In millions of PYG

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
December 2020

In millions of PYG and thousands of USD

INVESTMENTS IN GUARANIES INVESTMENTS IN DOLLARS
SECURITIES 90,277 SECURITIES 500
LETTERS OF MONETARY 
REGULATION

363,744   

TREASURY BONDS 104,151   
PRIVATE BONDS   
TOTAL 558,172 TOTAL 500

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS IN GUARANIES 561,401
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LOANS 

EVOLUTION OF THE LOAN PORTFOLIO
In millions of PYG

2019

2020

2018

2017

2016

13,955,271

12,750,796

12,854,962

11,212,125

10,922,572

LOAN PORTFOLIO PER ECONOMIC ACTIVITY
December 2020

12.46%

40.40%

9.92%

20.94%

1.98%

8.26%

6.05%

40.40% Agribusiness

12.46% Animal farming

9.92% Industry 

20.94% Commerce

1.98% Services

8.26% Consumption

6.05% Other sectors

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



115

LOAN PORTFOLIO PER CURRENCY

December – 2020

FOREIGN
CURRENCY
61.15%

LOCAL 
CURRENCY
38.85%

DEFAULTING > 60 DAYS AND COVERAGE OF 
ALLOWANCES ON PAST-DUE PORTFOLIO

2.18% 2.17%

1.47%

1.52%

258.57%

1.96%

339.81%

146.01%120.73%117.16%

Defaulting > 60 Coverage of Allowances

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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DEPOSITS
EVOLUTION OF THE DEPOSITS PORTFOLIO
In millions of PYG

2019

2020

2018

2017

2016

11,202,599

11,503,395

10,853,035

9,352,481

10,106,231

DEPOSITS PORTFOLIO 
PER CURRENCY

DEPOSITS PORTFOLIO 
PER MODALITY

December 2020 December 2020

ME 59,93% VISTA 55,52%

ML 40,07% PLAZO 44,48%
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY NET INCOME

EVOLUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
In millions of PYG

EVOLUTION OF NET INCOME
In millions of PYG

2019 2019

2020 2020

2018 2018

2017 2017

2016 2016

1,736,966 156,900

1,802,998 72,396

1,637,058 138,092

1,572,702 193,701

1,455,724 236,020

PAID-IN CAPITAL 

RESERVES
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4.3. Financial Statements
BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2020      
Presented in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Guarani)      

 
ASSETS  NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

AVAILABLE  4.025.095.227.622  2.511.419.404.031 
Cash  666.820.736.478  538.377.141.305 

Central Bank of Paraguay  c.3  2.512.641.018.185  1.689.236.578.102 

Other financial institutions  819.283.468.446  263.156.580.415 

Checks and other documents to be cleared  26.236.969.970  19.279.161.692 

Accounts receivable for accrued financial income  461.446.437  1.394.253.413 

Allowances  c.7  (348.411.894)  (24.310.896)

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECURITIES C.4  478.473.283.013  577.596.649.403 
 

PERFORMING LOANS - FINANCIAL SECTOR  C.6.1  266.289.318.257  381.894.019.172 
Other financial institutions  260.417.054.137  371.577.552.114 

Debtors for financial products accrued  6.879.315.545  10.316.467.058 

Allowances  c.7  (1.007.051.425)  -   

  
PERFORMING LOANS - NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR  C.6.2  11.538.096.579.629  12.592.948.644.389 
Loans - Private Sector  11.317.822.589.108  12.073.253.572.157 

Loans - Transitional exceptions issued by the B.C.P.  342.084.712.409  699.144.388.408 

Deferred documentary credits receivable  236.181.343.203  244.255.136.952 

Transactions to be settled  164.338.238  20.492.065 

Loans - Public sector  1.722.300.903  10.541.036.060 

Suspended valuation gains  (16.767.800.570)  (8.746.937.982)

Debtors for financial products accrued  169.157.698.589  195.171.657.097 

Allowances  c.7  (512.268.602.251)  (620.690.700.368)

OTHER RECEIVABLES  C.6.4  289.546.241.275  312.136.311.608 

NON-PERFORMING LOANS FINANCIAL  C.6.3  111.939.570.866  108.061.576.881 
Loans - Non-financial sector  238.597.754.250  203.655.397.765 

Loans - Financial sector  -    1.719.000.000 

Loans - Public Sector  1.381.520.000  252.000.000 

Suspended valuation gains  (6.049.719.379)  (3.941.713.547)

Accrued interests  9.303.396.576  6.498.451.622 

Allowances  c.7  (131.293.380.581)  (100.121.558.959)

INVESTMENTS  C.8  483.783.341.603   341.749.358.991 
Private Securities  144.146.231.004  148.641.201.935 

Assets acquired in credit recovery  352.702.726.411  226.951.361.713 

Other investments  4.485.071  4.194.542 

Fiduciary rights  81.518.372.824  -   

Incomes on investments in the private sector  836.961.371  1.035.725.573 

Allowances  c.7  (95.425.435.078)  (34.883.124.772)

FIXED ASSETS C.9  115.920.337.014  124.385.983.320 

DEFERRED CHARGES C.10  247.606.506.786  384.487.886.928 
  

TOTAL ASSETS  17.556.750.406.065   17.334.679.834.723 

The accompanying notes A to G form an integral part of these financial statements.      
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LIABILITIES  NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL SECTOR C.14, C.15.2B)  4.159.179.739.320  4.622.649.407.397 
Deposits c.15.1 b)  576.611.604.144  699.964.839.148 

Deferred letters of credit correspondents  234.434.306.422  241.180.233.229 

Loans from financial institutions  3.265.491.897.310  3.596.875.487.287 

Pending pperations for ATM compensations  45.863.322.972  37.125.379.368 

Creditors for accrued finance charges  36.778.608.472  47.503.468.365 

 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  -  NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR C.14, C.15.2B)  11.520.113.956.760  10.878.006.508.729 
Deposits - Private Sector c.15.1 b)  9.927.609.789.569  9.302.620.425.400 

Deposits - Public Sector c.15.1 b)  883.538.743.309  1.069.650.882.395 

Other financial intermediation obligations  18.456.921.603  12.249.860.260 

Debentures and bonds issued in circulation c.11  611.556.749.300  410.613.298.200 

Transactions to be settled  95.226.584  13.402.619 

Creditors for accrued finance charges  78.856.526.395  82.858.639.855 

 OTHER LIABILITIES C.17  52.205.948.907   61.229.216.471  
Tax creditors  9.427.438.384  14.964.341.963 

Social creditors  245.209.566  241.557.781 

Dividends to be paid  904.105.632  1.447.629.936 

Other liabilities  41.629.195.325  44.575.686.791 

 ACCRUALS  22.253.185.745  35.828.230.179 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  15.753.752.830.732  15.597.713.362.776 

EQUITY NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Capital b.5  1.151.242.800.000  1.151.242.800.000 

Non-capitalized contributions  60.000  60.000 

Equity adjustments  45.626.908.534  45.626.908.534 

Legal reserve  417.913.691.019  383.196.688.563 

Retained earnings c.12 e)  115.817.652.614  -   

Profit for the year - Gain  72.396.463.166  156.900.014.850 

TOTAL EQUITY  1.802.997.575.333  1.736.966.471.947 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  17.556.750.406.065  17.334.679.834.723 

CONTINGENCY AND MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

 TOTAL CONTINGENCIES ACCOUNTS E 1.314.768.057.007 1.413.555.299.719 
 TOTAL MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS E 17.401.382.783.985 18.515.914.037.439 

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2020      
Presented in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Guarani)      

The accompanying notes A to G form an integral part of these financial statements.      
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  NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

 FINANCIAL INCOME  1.121.940.959.074  1.254.813.767.341 
  From performing loans - Financial sector  39.540.977.483  67.039.244.131 

  From performing loans - Non-financial sector  1.021.576.722.708  1.130.305.888.625 

  From non-performing loans  12.647.949.405  9.752.147.790 

  For income and differences in the price of public securities  48.175.309.478  47.716.486.795 

     

FINANCIAL EXPENSES  (593.668.813.906)  (616.041.604.043)
  From financial liabilities - Financial sector  (201.876.503.571)  (225.065.677.412)

  From financial liabilities - Non-financial sector  (374.598.203.398)  (385.648.118.317)

  For valuation of financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency - Net f.2  (17.194.106.937)  (5.327.808.314)

FINANCIAL INCOME BEFORE ALLOWANCES  528.272.145.168  638.772.163.298 

ALLOWANCES  (221.483.350.458)  (217.394.505.060)
  Additions c.7  (1.601.721.789.989)  (743.556.326.303)

  Reversals c.7  1.380.238.439.531  526.161.821.243 

FINANCIAL PROFIT AFTER ALLOWANCES  306.788.794.710  421.377.658.238 

NET INCOME FROM SERVICES  106.329.181.071  119.209.089.032 
  Income from services  157.962.189.649  171.872.376.760 

  Expenses from services  (51.633.008.578)  (52.663.287.728)

GROSS PROFIT  413.117.975.781  540.586.747.270 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME  44.298.840.532  42.291.818.225 
  Foreign exchange and arbitrage gains - net  32.634.979.443  30.490.889.708 

  Other income  11.663.861.089  11.800.928.517 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  (392.685.604.094)  (395.974.651.801)
  Staff remuneration and social contributions  (203.522.095.521)  (200.701.453.916)

  Overheads  (144.818.039.926)  (152.353.188.156)

  Depreciation of fixed assets c.9  (18.013.575.077)  (17.750.204.419)

  Amortization of deferred charges  (1.479.751.692)  (1.485.553.904)

  Others  (16.598.904.551)  (17.710.263.951)

  For valuation of other liabilities and assets in foreign currency - Net f.2  (8.253.237.327)  (5.973.987.455)

NET OPERATING RESULT - PROFIT  64.731.212.219  186.903.913.694 

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES  17.713.061.641  (5.989.650.193)
  Extraordinary earnings  20.176.512.122  7.917.982.568 

  Extraordinary losses  (2.463.450.481)  (13.907.632.761)

 

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS D.3  (3.498.009.171)  (7.329.251.206)
  Earnings  3.307.858.858  136.846.711 

  Loses  (6.805.868.029)  (7.466.097.917)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE INCOME TAX - PROFIT  78.946.264.689  173.585.012.295

Income tax f.4  (6.549.801.523)  (16.684.997.445)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  72.396.463.166  156.900.014.850 

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020     
Presented in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Guarani)      

The accompanying notes A to G form an integral part of these financial statements.     
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The accompanying notes A to G form an integral part of these financial statements.                

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020        
Presented in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Guarani)        

ITEM
                             CAPITAL 

NON-CAPITALIZED 
CONTRIBUTIONS

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO EQUITY LEGAL RESERVE ACCUMULATED 

RESULTS
PROFIT FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR TOTALCOMMON 

STOCK
PREFERRED 

STOCK

BALANCES AS OF 31 
DECEMBER 2018  837.787.800.000  250.000.000.000  16.445.060.000  42.471.033.945  352.261.386.030  -  138.092.414.270  1.637.057.694.245 

More (less):  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Transfer of profits for 
the previous financial 
year

 -  -  -  -  -  138.092.414.270 -138.092.414.270  - 

Decisions of the 
Ordinary General 
Shareholders’ Meeting 
held on April 26, 2019:
a) Capitalization of 
earnings  47.010.000.000  -  -  -  -  (47.010.000.000)  -  - 

b) Capitalization of 
share premiums  16.445.000.000  -  (16.445.000.000)  -  -  -  -  - 

c) Establishment of 
legal reserve  -  -  -  -  30.935.302.533  (30.935.302.533)  -  - 

d) Distribution of cash 
dividends - Preferred 
stock

 -  -  -  -  -  (40.000.000.000)  -  (40.000.000.000)

e) Distribution of cash 
dividends - Common 
stock

 -  -  -  -  -  (20.147.111.737)  -  (20.147.111.737)

Revaluation of fixed 
assets  -  -  -  3.155.874.589  -  -  -  3.155.874.589 

Profit for the 
year - gain  -  -  -  -  -  -  156.900.014.850  156.900.014.850 

BALANCES AS OF 31 
DECEMBER 2019  901.242.800.000  250.000.000.000  60.000  45.626.908.534  383.196.688.563  -  156.900.014.850  1.736.966.471.947 

More (less):
Transfer of profits 
for the previous 
financial year

 -  -  -  -  -  156.900.014.850  (156.900.014.850)  - 

Decision of the 
Ordinary General 
Shareholders' 
Meeting No. 54 held 
on June 30, 2020:
a) Establishment of 
legal reserve  -  -  -  -  34.717.002.456  (34.717.002.456)  -  - 

Establishment of 
specific provisions 
required by 
Note SB.SG. N° 
00482/2020

 -  -  -  -  -  (6.365.359.780)  -  (6.365.359.780)

Profit for the 
year - gain  -  -  -  -  -  -  72.396.463.166  72.396.463.166 

BALANCES AS OF 31 
DECEMBER 2020  901.242.800.000  250.000.000.000  60.000  45.626.908.534  417.913.691.019  115.817.652.614  72.396.463.166  1.802.997.575.333 
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The accompanying notes A to G form an integral part of these financial statements.        

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020     
Presented in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Guarani)     

NOTE 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT FROM THE YEAR  72.396.463.166  156.900.014.850 

PLUS EXPENSES THAT DO NOT INVOLVE CASH APPLICATIONS   
Depreciation of fixed assets for the financial year c.9  18.013.575.077  17.750.204.419 

Amortization of deferred charges for the financial year  1.479.751.692  1.485.553.904 

Allowances c.7  1.601.721.789.989  1.120.518.563.815 

Income tax provision f.4  6.549.801.523  16.684.997.445 

Accrued interests unpaid  115.635.134.867  130.362.108.220 

Effect of the valuation of foreign currency accounts  25.447.344.264  11.301.795.769 

Net value of disposal of fixed assets c.9  294.379.650  45.927.565 

 1.769.141.777.062  1.298.149.151.137 
LESS INCOME NOT INVOLVING CASH RECEIPTS  
Capitalization of dividends from investments  (15.864.084.703)  (11.114.759.472)

Reversal of allowances c.7  (1.380.238.439.531)  (526.161.821.243)

Uncollected accrued interests (298.217.694.218) (229.450.618.421)
 (1.694.320.218.452)  (766.727.199.136)

      
Net increase / (Decrease) of loans  1.848.355.072.000  (811.957.510.700)

Net increase / (Decrease) in others receivables  35.104.111.546  (89.189.284.909)

Net increase / ( Decrease) in financial financial liabilities  (671.998.998.826)  (800.490.118.185)

Net increase / ( Decrease) in other liabilities  (41.201.477.226)  (38.261.377.025)

Net increase / ( Decrease) in accruals  (13.568.841.586)  (7.203.383.675)

Income tax paid  (11.193.713.160)  (18.832.783.585)

 1.145.496.152.748  (1.765.934.458.079)

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES  1.292.714.174.524  (1.077.612.491.228)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in government securities  212.000.649.898  164.045.275.905 

Net increase / ( Decrease) in investments  18.979.926.476  (40.022.239.860)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment c.9  (9.842.308.421)  (13.821.484.363)

Increase / (Decrease) in deferred charges  (176.618.886)  (4.058.623.385)

NET CASH FLOW APPLIED TO INVESTING ACTIVITIES  220.961.649.067  106.142.928.297 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid in cash -  (60.147.111.737)

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (APPLIED TO) FINANCING ACTIVITIES -  (60.147.111.737)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash  1.513.675.823.591  (1.031.616.674.668)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  2.511.419.404.031  3.543.036.078.699 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR  4.025.095.227.622  2.511.419.404.031 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31 2020
Presented in comparison with the financial year ended December 31, 2019 (Figures expressed in Guarani).

A. CONSIDERATION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS MEETING 

The financial statements of Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. (hereinafter referred to indistinctly as Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. or “the Institution” or “the Bank”) as of December 31, 2020, 

will be considered for approval by the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting in 2021, within the term established in the Institution’s Bylaws and Article 1079 of the Civil Code.

The Bank’s financial statements as of December 31, 2019, were approved by the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 30, 2020.
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B. BASIC INFORMATION REGARDING THE BANK

b.1 Legal status
The Banco Regional Sociedad Anónima Emisora de Capital Abierto began its activities under the name of Banco Regional S.A. de Inversión y Fomento, authorized by Executive 

Decree No. 4321 dated January 8, 1990 and by the Central Bank of Paraguay (hereinafter referred to interchangeably as the Central Bank of Paraguay or BCP) by Resolution No. 5, 

Minute No. 11 dated February 13, 1991.

By Resolution No. 3, Minute No. 214 dated December 1, 1998, the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay authorized Banco Regional S.A. de Inversión y Fomento to 

amend its Bylaws, as resolved by the Extraordinary General Meeting of April 24, 1998, to change its name to Banco Regional S.A.

By Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 96 dated November 19, 2008, the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay authorized Banco Regional S.A. to modify its Bylaws, as 

resolved by the Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of September 30, 2008, to change its name to Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. The modification was registered in the 

Public Registry on November 21, 2008 and in the National Securities Commission (CNV) on December 4, 2008 by Resolution No. 1156/08.  

On April 22, 2009, the purchase of all the shares of Banco ABN AMRO Paraguay S.A. was finalized with the purpose of integrating this entity into Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. On 

September 3, 2009, the definitive merger agreement for the absorption of Banco ABN AMRO Paraguay S.A. was signed and on September 4, 2009, through the Extraordinary 

Shareholders’ Meeting of Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A., the merger agreement for the absorption of these institutions was approved. By virtue of this process, Banco Regional 

S.A.E.C.A., as the absorbing company, is universally responsible for all the rights and obligations of the absorbed company.  

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank had 33 branches (38 branches as of December 31, 2019) including the head office.

b.2  Basis for the preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements are a free translation into English of those originally prepared in Spanish, expressed in local currency (Paraguayan Guaranies or ₲). See note b.7.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards, regulations and provisions established by the Central Bank of Paraguay, which 

comprise the legal accounting standards in effect in Paraguay for the presentation of the financial statements of financial entities regulated by the Central Bank of Paraguay.
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The model is based on a conventional historical cost basis, except for the treatment assigned to assets and liabilities in foreign currency, as explained in note c.1, and as 

mentioned in the following paragraph. 

Until December 31, 2019, there had been an additional exception to the historical cost model related to the valuation of Fixed assets, which until that date are stated at their 

restated values as explained in note c.8, without fully reflecting the effects of inflation on the Institution’s equity and financial position and results of operations.  Had a 

comprehensive price-level restatement of the financial statements been applied, differences could have arisen in the presentation of the Institution’s equity and financial 

position, results of operations and cash flows as of December 31, 2019.

According to the Consumer Price Index published by the Central Bank of Paraguay, cumulative inflation as of December 31, 2019 was 2.8%.

In addition to the requirements of the Central Bank of Paraguay, the following relevant accounting policies have been used:

• For the purpose of preparing the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents net of the corresponding allowances are considered as cash;

• comparative figures are presented;  

•    the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity is presented; and

•    additional disclosures are included in the notes to the financial statements.

(i) Estimates:  

The preparation of these financial statements requires the Board of Directors and Management of the Bank to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the balances 

of assets and liabilities, the exposure to contingencies and the recognition of income and expenses. Assets and liabilities are recognized in the financial statements when it 

is probable that future economic benefits will flow to or from the Bank and that the various items will have a cost or value that can be reliably measured. If, in the future, these 

estimates and assumptions, which are based on the judgment of the Board of Directors and Management at the date of these financial statements, are changed from the 

current circumstances, the original estimates and assumptions will be appropriately modified on the date that such changes occur. The main estimates related to the financial 

statements refer to provisions for doubtful assets and credit risks, depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of deferred charges and allowances to cover other contingencies, 

and possible legal proceedings initiated against the Bank.

(ii) Comparative information:

The financial statements as at December 31 2020 and supporting information are presented in comparison with the corresponding statements and supporting information for the 

year ended December 2019. 
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b.3  Foreign branches
The Bank does not have any foreign branches.

b.4  Participation in other companies
The holdings in the capital of other companies at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

COMPANY NAME CONDITION CURRENCY NOMINAL AMOUNT % EQUITY INTERES CURRING AMOUNT IN
 ₲
₲

DECEMBER 31 2020

Bancard S. A. - Paraguay Affiliate ₲ 9.675.000.000   7,14% 10.482.846.968
Regional Casa de Bolsa S. A. Affiliate ₲ 10.614.000.000 99,99% 10.614.000.000
Regional SA de Seguros Affiliate ₲ 19.879.800.000    99,999% 45.431.840.883

VISA INC-USA Non affiliate  US$ 1 Minority 7.590
SWIFT Non affiliate  EUR 19.800 Minority 111.035.560
Total 66.639.731.001
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COMPANY NAME CONDITION INVESTMENT CURRENCY NOMINAL VALUE % PARTICIPATION BOOK VALUE 
₲
₲

DECEMBER 31 2019

Bancard S. A.-Paraguay Affiliate ₲ 9.675.000.000   7,14% 10.482.846.968
Regional Casa de Bolsa S. A. Affiliate ₲ 4.999.000.000 99,98% 4.999.000.000
Regional SA Seguros Affiliate ₲ 30.399.782.883 99,99% 36.279.740.883

VISA INC-USA Non affiliate  US$ 1 Minority 7.098
SWIFT Non affiliate  EUR 19.800 Minority 111.035.560
Total 51.872.630.509

Said investments are recorded in the investments item, under the permanent investments in private companies account. Seeg note c.8.
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b.5  Composition of capital and characteristics of shares
The composition of the integrated capital at December 31, 2020, and 2019, by share types, is as follows:

The Institution’s shareholder composition, as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, was structured as follows:

SUBSCRIBED AND INTEGRATED COMMON SHARES NO. OF  VOTES
GRANTED

GUARANI
TYPE AMOUNT

Ordinary “Class A” Founder                        135,809 5          13.580.900.000 

Ordinary “Class A” Ordinary 5.429.941   1 542.994.100.000   

Ordinary “Class B” Multiple                          90.539   5            9.053.900.000 

Ordinary “Class B” Ordinary 3.356.139   1        335.613.900.000   

Preferred                     2.500.000 -        250.000.000.000 

Total        11.512.428 1.151.242.800.000   

SHAREHOLDER SHARES IN
 ₲

% PARTICIPATION % OF VOTES COUNTRY

Local minority shareholders 618.477.700.000   53,72% 51,65% Paraguay

Grupo Raatz 88.097.300.000     7,65%   9,95% Paraguay

Rabo Partnerships B.V. (*) 444.667.800.000     38,63% 38,40%  Netherlands

Total 1.151.242.800.000      100%   100%

(*) Wholly owned by Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. of the Netherlands.

As described in note c.12 d), “Price-level restatement of capital”, the current level of the Bank’s integrated capital is above the legal minimum required by the Central Bank of Paraguay

b.6 Management and Executive Board
As of December 31, 2020 the Board of Directors and executive staff is made up as follows:
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b.7 English translation of statutory financial statements

These financial statements have been translated into English for the convenience of English-speaking readers. The financial statements are the English translation of those originally pre-

pared by the Entity in Spanish, expressed in local currency (Guaraníes) and presented in accordance with accounting standards, regulations and instructions established by the Central 

Bank of Paraguay. The effects of the differences between these standards and the accounting principles generally accepted in the countries in which the financial statements are to be 

used, have not been quantified. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations, shareholders’ equity or cash 

flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the countries of users of the financial statements, other than Paraguay.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE BOARD
Executive Chairman: Raúl Vera Bogado General Manager: Laura Silvia Borsato

Vice-President: Cornelis J. Beijer Corporate and Institutional Banking Manager: Walter Duarte Kallus

Finance Manager: Oscar Godoy Silvero

Directors: Erik Heyl Manager of Correspondent and Foreign Trade: Rafaela Oleinik Rosa

Francisco Yanagida Internal Audit Manager: Juan Carlos Meza

Compliance Manager: Carlos Vera Bogado

Risk Manager: Daniel van Det

Alternate Directors: Roland Wolff Recovery and Restructuring Manager: Jorge Sienkawiec Szostak

Diego Castro Corporate Banking Risk Manager: Ricardo Nowosad Gines

Adrian Lorenzutti MIS and Risk Models Manager: Mats Hernegard Per

Risk Manager SME Banking and Personal Banking: Richard Delvalle Medina

Risk project manager Branch and Business Development Antonio Gimenez González

Branch Manager: Cynthia Sotelo Galeano

Titular Trustee: Irene Memmel de Matiauda Private Banking Manager: Anahi Heisecke Rivarola

Alternate Trustee: Lourdes Müller Treasury Manager: Daniel Cibils Farres

Organizational Development Manager Bettina Agüero Bradshaw

Operations Manager: Diana Lafeld Rieszotka 

IT Manager: Georgina Baumgarten Lavand

Internal Legal Counsel Manager: Marcos Dalla Fontana

Administrative Manager: Fabio Sitzmann Hein

Operational Risk and Fraud Prevention Manager: Erica Werner Schmidt

General Accountant: Esteban Rotela Maciel

Titular Trustee: Leticia Pérez Domínguez
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C. INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

c.1 Valuation of foreign currency
Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency are valued at the exchange rates in effect at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, provided by the exchange desk of the 

International Operations Department of the Central Bank of Paraguay on those dates, and do not differ significantly from the exchange rates in effect on the free market: 

CURRENCY DECEMBER 31 2020 DECEMBER 31 2019
(GUARANI FOR EACH UNIT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY)

US dollar 6.900,11 6.453,14

Euro 8.476,10 7.228,81

Yen 66,93 59,22

Real 1.329,83 1.597,67

Argentine Peso 82,00 107,83

Pound sterling 9.378,63 8.485,23

Swiss franc 7.815,28 6.661,65

Swedish Krona 842,75 692,00

Chinese Yuan 1.057,55 923,80

Australian dollar 5.291,00 4.517,20

Canadian dollar 5.399,57 4.938,50

Exchange differences arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between the dates on which transactions are arranged and their settlement or valuation at the end of each 

financial year are recognized in profit or loss for each year, except as indicated in note f.1.

c.2 Foreign currency position
The changes position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, is as follows:

ITEM
DECEMBER 31 2020 DECEMBER 31 2019

ARBITRATED AMOUNT TO 
US$

EQUIVALENT AMOUNT TO
₲

ARBITRATED AMOUNT TO 
US$

EQUIVALENT AMOUNT TO
₲

Total assets  in foreign currency 1.505.788.401,81 10.390.105.609.470 1.607.247.890,20 10.371.795.650.221
Total liabilities in foreign currency (1.497.228.367,98) (10.331.040.434.333) (1.600.533.791,20) (10.328.468.629.262)
Position purchased in foreign currency 8.560.033,83 59.065.175.137 6.714.099,00 43.327.020.959
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As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the foreign currency position did not exceed the position cap set by the Bank according to the note submitted to the Central Bank of Paraguay 

on January 3, 2013, in compliance with Resolution No. 25 Act No. 77 dated December 28, 2011, which establishes the free choice of the position rank according to the category 

established in the aforementioned Resolution that financial institutions choose for their net position in each year.

Market risk management: Market risk is the probability that changes in market prices, for example, interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, etc., will affect the equity 

and/or profits of the Bank depending on the positions taken in the financial market. The Bank controls market risk by monitoring the limits established in the Market Risk Policies 

approved by the Assets and Liabilities Committee and the Board of Directors.

DESIGNATION 12/31/2020
₲

31/12/2019
₲

Minumun cash requierements in Guarani 192.807.381.325 483.118.872.933

Minumun cash requierements in Dollars 582.749.446.664 752.042.887.330

Minumun cash requierements in Euros 6.596.064.573 6.002.734.427

Special cash requierements in Guarani 160.859.693 -

Special cash requierements in Dollars 1.641.288.179 -

Other reserves - Dollars - 59.257.091.028

Monetary transaction operations 556.619.487.646 112.728.720.798

Current accounts - Guaraníes 302.983.027.796 -

Current accounts - Dollars 865.474.680.007 273.086.624.178

Current accounts - Euro 3.608.782.302 2.999.647.408

Total 2.512.641.018.185 1.689.236.578.102

See also note c.12(a).

c.3 Deposits in the Central Bank of Paraguay

Deposits in the Central Bank of Paraguay as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows
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c.4 Public and private securities

The public and private securities acquired by Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. correspond to national treasury bonds, monetary regulation bills and short-term corporate bonds. In the 

case of national treasury bonds, the book value at December 31, 2020, and 2019 is expressed at the nominal value of capital plus accrued income, and for monetary regulation 

bills, the book value at that date is expressed at the nominal value which includes total income minus accrued income.

As of December 31, 2020

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECURITIES ISSUANCE CURRENCY AMOUNT IN ISSUANCE 
CURRENCY

AMOUNT IN GUARANÍES
NOMINAL VALUE BOOK VALUE

Treasury Bonds of the Republic of Paraguay ₲ 104.151.000.000 104.151.000.000 104.151.000.000
Monetary Regulation Instruments (IRM) (*) ₲ 375.000.000.000 375.000.000.000 363.744.011.293
Bonds in Private Companies ₲ 1.987.000.000 1.987.000.000 1.777.760.952
Accrued interest - 8.800.510.768
Total 481.138.000.000 478.473.283.013

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECURITIES CURRENCY OF ISSUE AMOUNT IN CURRENCY OF 
ISSUE

AMOUNT IN GUARANÍES
NOMINAL VALUE BOOK VALUE

Treasury Bonds of the Republic of Paraguay ₲ 71.202.931.507 71.202.931.507 69.555.225.745
Monetary Regulation Instruments (IRM) (*) ₲ 514.000.000.000 514.000.000.000 502.656.628.166

Accrued interest - 5.384.795.492
Total 585.202.931.507 577.596.649.403

As of December 31, 2019

(*) As of December 30, 2020, and 2019, the Institution has delivered Monetary Regulation Instruments for ₲. 25.000.000.000 y ₲. 46.430.000.000.000 respectively, as minimum 
guarantees required by the BCP under the general regulations of the Paraguayan Payment System (SIPAP).

c.5 Assets and liabilities with readjustment clauses
With the exception of the loans obtained (liabilities) from the Financial Agency for Development (in Spanish Agencia Financiera de Desarrollo – “AFD”) and the loans granted 

(assets) with the resources of the AFD and certain loans granted with its own resources, which have contractual clauses for possible readjustments of the annual interest 
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rates, there were no other assets or liabilities with readjustment clauses as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. These loans granted provide for annual rate adjustments according to 

the specific conditions included in the loan agreements.

c.6 Loan portfolio

Credit Risk Management: 

Credit risk is controlled by the Board of Directors and Management of the Bank, mainly through the evaluation and analysis of individual transactions, for which certain factors 

clearly defined in the Bank’s credit policies are considered, such as: the demonstrated payment capacity and debt level of the debtor, the credit concentration of economic 

groups, individual credit-granting limits, evaluation of economic sectors, preferred guarantees and working capital requirements, in accordance with market risks.

Classification and valuation criteria:

The loan portfolio has been valued at its face value plus accrued interest at the end of the financial year, net of allowances, which have been calculated in accordance with the 

allowances required by Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 60 of the Board of Central Bank of Paraguay dated September 28, 2007, and its subsequent amendments and additions, to 

which effect:

a) The Debtors were segmented according to the following types: i) Large Debtors; ii) Medium and Small Debtors; iii) Individual Consumer Debtors or household consumers and 

iv) microcredits.

b) Debtors have been classified into 6 risk categories, based on default and/or the assessment and rating of the payment capacity of a debtor or a group of debtors composed 

of related persons, in respect of all their obligations. An amending regulation to Resolution No. 1/2007 requires that category 1 be broken down into three sub-categories for the 

purposes of calculating allowances (categories 1, 1.a and 1.b);

c) Interest earned on outstanding loans classified as category 1 and category 2 on a subjective basis has been recognized as income in full. The interest accrued and not collected 

at the closing date on non-performing loans and/or performing loans classified in category “2” and above, which has been recognized as a income until they enter into arrears, 

have allowances that cover the total amount;

d) The accrual of interest and recognition of valuation gains on non-performing loans and performing loans classified in risk category “2” or higher is suspended as soon as they 

enter into arrears, and they are recognized as income upon collection, as mentioned in note f.1;
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e) Loans that are considered non-performing after 61 days of default on any of their instalments, and fixed-term or single-maturity loans are deemed to be overdue on the day 

following their maturity;

f) The specific allowances required to cover possible losses that may arise from the non-recovery of the portfolio have been established in accordance with the criteria and 

parameters established by Central Bank of Paraguay Board Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 60 dated September 28, 2007, including its amendments;

g) Generic allowances have been set over the loan portfolio in accordance with the criteria and parameters established by Central Bank of Paraguay Board Resolution No. 1, 

Minute No. 60 dated September 28, 2007; and

h) Uncollectible loans that are removed from the assets, under the conditions laid down in the relevant BCP regulations, are recorded and disclosed in memorandum accounts.

In addition to the criteria mentioned above, the Central Bank of Paraguay exceptionally authorized the following measures:

a) In the 2019 financial year, the Institution has considered the inclusion of certain customer operations under transitional measures to support the productive sector, according to 

the conditions established in Resolution No. 21, Minute No. 65 dated September 18, 2019 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay.

The aforementioned resolution considers, in an exceptional manner, the impact on the micro, small, and medium agricultural producers who suffered verifiable losses derived 

from adverse effects of nature, as well as in particular those agricultural producers who suffered losses due to the fall in the prices of their products. In this sense, it allows the 

deferral of the charges generated by the allowances calculated on the balance of the portfolio that benefited from these transitional measures. These allowances will be gradually 

recognized in the statement of income within a period not exceeding 36 months. The amounts are disclosed as “Loans - Transitional measures issued by BCP” in note c.6.2.

b) In financial year 2020, the Institution has considered carrying out certain operations and rescheduling for customers under exceptional support measures for sectors 

economically affected by the spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19), according to the conditions established in Resolution No. 4, Minute No. 18 dated March 18, 2020 and Resolution 

No. 4, Minute No. 23 dated April 2, 2020 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay. The amounts of loans benefiting from the measures are disclosed as “Loans - 

Exceptional support measures issued by BCP” in note c.6.2.

The aforementioned resolutions allow the deferral of the charges generated by the allowances calculated on the balance of the portfolio benefited by these exceptional 

measures, which will be gradually recognized in the statement of income as follows:
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- For the portfolio benefited under Resolution 4, Act 18 dated March 18, 2020 in a term not to exceed 36 months. Provisions will be released gradually and appropriate to the 

categories immediately below, for each 20% of principal amortization of the portfolio benefiting from the exceptional measure.

- For the portfolio benefited under Resolution No. 4, Minute No. 23 dated April 2, 2020, exonerates from the obligation to constitute allowances for a period of 18 months after the 

disbursement date for new loans granted from March 16 to June 30, 2020, and that meet the conditions set forth in the aforementioned Resolution. At the end of the established 

exoneration period, the losses arising from the constitution of the client’s risk allowances as of the date of the end of the exoneration period may be deferred and gradually 

recognized for up to 60 months.

c.6.1   Performing loans - Financial sector
In accordance with the rules for the valuation of assets and credit risks, established by the Superintendence of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay, the performing loan 

portfolio of the financial sector of the Bank is classified by risk as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

CATEGORY
OF RISK

BOOK BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A)

 ₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES
₲

ALLOWANCES BOOK BALANCE AFTER 
ALLOWANCES

 ₲MINIMUM % (B) ESTABLISHED (C)
 ₲

  1 265.571.161.950 131.773.688.411    0% - 265.571.161.950
  6 1.725.207.732 755.488.200 100% (1.007.051.425) 718.156.307
TOTAL 267.296.369.682 132.529.176.611 (1.007.051.425) 266.289.318.257

CATEGORY
OF RISK

BOOK BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A) 

₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES 
₲

ALLOWANCES BOOK BALANCE AFTER 
ALLOWANCES

 ₲MINIMUM % (B) ESTABLISHED (C)
₲

1   381.894.019.172 170.023.946.729 0% -   381.894.019.172
TOTAL 381.894.019.172 170.023.946.729  -  381.894.019.172

As of December 31, 2019
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References:

(a) Includes capital and interest accrued 

(b) Allowance percentages and risk categories defined for the classification and allowances of the loan portfolio are based on the criteria established for this purpose in 

Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 60 of the BCP Board of Directors dated September 28, 2007 and its subsequent amendments;

(c) Allowances are constituted by also considering the contingent balances. For those debtors that do not have computable guarantees, the allowances is calculated on 

the total risk (monetary debt plus contingent liabilities). For the rest of the debtors, the allowances is calculated in two tranches, with the guarantees being calculated in 

the second tranche.

c.6.2 Performing loans – Non-financial sector
The performing loans portfolio of the non-financial sector is composed as follows:

ITEM DECEMBER 31 2020
₲

DECEMBER 31 2019
₲

Non-adjustable fixed-term loans 983.087.943.332 3.424.489.985.341
Non-adjustable amortizing loans 4.920.778.606.061 6.846.027.172.260

Loans - Transitional measures issued by the BCP 342.084.712.409 699.144.388.408
Loans - Exceptional measure issued by the BCP 4.202.054.919.063 -
Checks acquired in Paraguay - 18.734.111
Loans for overdraft 50.477.224.111 134.188.623.057
Receivables from deferred credit documents 236.181.343.203 244.255.136.952
Credit card receivables 200.807.195.232 216.447.027.995
Loans with resources administered by AFD 698.701.609.673 972.176.673.641
Discounted Documents 56.075.322.412 93.118.123.267
Discounted deferred checks 145.613.066.860 273.007.342.840
Purchase of portfolio 60.226.702.364 113.779.889.645
Operations to be settled 164.338.238 20.492.065
Loans to the public sector 1.722.300.903 10.541.036.060
Accounts receivable for accrued financial income 169.157.698.589 195.171.657.097
(-) Suspended valuation gain (16.767.800.570) (8.746.937.982)
(-) Allowances (512.268.602.251) (620.690.700.368)
Total 11.538.096.579.629 12.592.948.644.389



135

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has pledged as collateral for loan agreements, credit card portfolio “Affinity of the Mastercard Classic brand” up to the amount of 

₲. 17.579.935.763 in favor of Bancard S.A.; in order to guarantee operations resulting from user transactions at ATM’s or POS’s of the Infonet Network. See note c.12.h.

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank has pledged customer promissory notes in the amount of US$ 4.160.603,18 in favor of GOVCO LLC as collateral for loan agreements. See note c.13.

In accordance with the rules for the valuation of assets and credit risks, established by the Superintendence of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay, the Bank´s performing loan 

portfolio of the non-financial sector of the Bank is classified by risk as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

RISK CATEGORY
BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A) (E) 

₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES
₲

ALLOWANCES BALANCE
AFTER ALLOWANCES

₲MINIMUM % (B) BOOKED (D)(F) 
₲

1  9.667.975.191.158  4.997.683.842.550     0%  (161.970.246)  9.667.813.220.912 
1a  213.796.491.981  104.988.000.812  0,5%  (804.773.846)  212.991.718.135 
1b  165.237.917.169  117.425.425.845  1,5%  (1.896.057.261)  163.341.859.908 
2  880.308.170.248  427.930.068.166     5%  (30.938.569.422)  849.369.600.826 

3  578.095.161.772  187.759.063.415   25%  (110.399.807.300)  467.695.354.472 
4  149.006.670.972  48.073.599.019   50%  (55.850.422.365)  93.156.248.607 
5  74.249.058.237  28.009.566.005   75%  (40.118.757.568)  34.130.300.669 
6  321.696.520.343  110.039.183.532 100%  (227.368.608.229)  94.327.912.114 
Generic Allowances (c) (44.729.636.014) (44.729.636.014)
Total 12.050.365.181.880 6.021.908.749.344 (512.268.602.251) 11.538.096.579.629
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RISK 
CATEGORY

BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A) 

₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES
₲

ALLOWANCES BALANCE
AFTER ALLOWANCES

₲MINIMUM % (B) BOOKED (D)(E)

 ₲
1  10.752.145.859.764  5.163.839.049.569 0%  (2.243.707.394)  10.749.902.152.370 
1a  667.471.419.716  310.668.426.357 0,5%  (3.126.063.239)  664.345.356.477 
1b  169.351.858.290  68.862.856.252 1,5%  (2.073.289.857)  167.278.568.433 
2  534.622.546.769  155.431.087.664 5%  (22.785.278.158)  511.837.268.611 

3  292.070.140.476  127.554.580.163 25%  (55.008.232.200)  237.061.908.276 
4  173.866.601.864  68.963.336.008 50%  (64.203.162.394)  109.663.439.470 
5  213.749.993.283  97.861.742.083 75%  (100.231.472.739)  113.518.520.544 
6  410.360.924.595  127.328.894.880 100%  (283.689.391.573)  126.671.533.022 
Generic allowances (c) (87.330.102.814)  (87.330.102.814)
Total 13.213.639.344.757 6.120.509.972.976 (620.690.700.368) 12.592.948.644.389

As of December 31, 2019

References:
(a) Includes capital and interest accrued (net of valuation gains to be realized);
(b) Allowances percentages and risk categories defined for the classification and the allowance of the loan portfolio are based on the criteria established for this purpose in Resolution No. 1, 
Minute No. 60 of the Board of Directors of the BCP dated September 28, 2007 and its subsequent amendments;
(c) Generic allowances established by the Institution in accordance with the requirements of Central Bank of Paraguay Resolution No. 1/2007;
(d) Allowances are constituted by also considering the contingent balances. For those debtors that do not have computable guarantees, the allowance is calculated on the total risk (monetary 
debt plus contingent liabilities). For the rest of the debtors, the allowance is calculated in two tranches, with the guarantees being calculated in the second tranche. 
(e) It contains portfolio allowances under transitional and exceptional measures in the amount of Gs. 241.383.990.176. See note c.10.
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 c.6.3 Non – Performing loans
The overdue loan portfolio was composed as follows:

ITEM DECEMBER 31 2020
₲

DECEMBER 31 2019
₲

Overdue receivables 24.006.034.023 26.471.831.650 
Undergoing proceedings 57.411.683.673 28.266.304.825 
Nonperforming loans 158.561.556.554 149.169.261.290 
Past-due loans - Financial sector - 1.719.000.000 
Accrued interests 9.303.396.576 6.498.451.622 
(-) Suspended valuation gain (6.049.719.379) (3.941.713.547)
(-) Allowances (131.293.380.581) (100.121.558.959)
TOTAL 111.939.570.866 108.061.576.881

In accordance with the standard for the valuation of assets and credit risks established by the Superintendence of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay, the Bank’s portfolio of 

non-performing loans is classified by risk as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

CATEGORY OF 
RISK

BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A) 

₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES
₲

ALLOWANCES BALANCE
AFTER ALLOWANCES

₲MINIMUM % (B) BOOKED (C)

 ₲
1b  1.747.520.877  -  1,5%  (35.413.522)  1.712.107.355 
2  26.619.021.362  6.740.284.019     5%  (2.811.947.386)  23.807.073.976 
3  22.278.093.316  9.709.642.459   25%  (4.744.058.675)  17.534.034.641 
4  32.194.956.136  11.352.492.741   50%  (12.877.729.925)  19.317.226.211 
5  26.566.216.675  6.262.091.364   75%  (16.791.864.727)  9.774.351.948 
6  133.827.143.081  39.794.776.735 100%  (94.032.366.346)  39.794.776.735 
Total 243.232.951.447 73.859.287.318 (131.293.380.581) 111.939.570.866
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CATEGORY OF 
RISK

BALANCE BEFORE 
ALLOWANCES (A) 

₲

ELIGIBLE GUARANTEES
₲

ALLOWANCES BALANCE
AFTER ALLOWANCES

₲MINIMUM % (B) BOOKED (C)

 ₲
1b  3.434.468.348  483.100.826  1,5%  (196.990.109)  3.237.478.239 
2  15.070.215.431  5.818.866.652     5%  (1.604.420.229)  13.465.795.202 
3  17.370.662.714  7.798.815.347   25%  (3.561.349.412)  13.809.313.302 
4  17.456.530.644  3.855.684.930   50%  (7.603.606.482)  9.852.924.162 
5  71.664.705.499  24.082.605.317   75%  (39.169.791.477)  32.494.914.022 
6  83.186.553.204  35.201.151.954 100%  (47.985.401.250)  35.201.151.954 
Total 208.183.135.840 77.240.225.026 (100.121.558.959) 108.061.576.881

As of December 31, 2019

References:
(a) Includes capital and interest accrued (net of valuation gains to be realized);
(b) The allowance percentages and risk categories defined for the classification and allawances of the loan portfolio are based on the criteria established for this purpose in Resolution No. 1, 
Minute No. 60 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay dated September 28, 2007 and its subsequent amendments; and
(c) The allowances are constituted by also considering the contingent balances. For those debtors that do not have computable guarantees, the allawances is calculated on the total risk (mone-
tary debt plus contingent liabilities). For the rest of the debtors, the provision is calculated in two tranches, with the guarantees being calculated in the second tranche.
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c.6.4 Other receivables
Its composition as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

ITEM 12/31/2020 - 
₲

12/31/2019 - 
₲

Prepaid expenses 2.454.863.239 3.836.703.099

Charges for loans obtained abroad 14.587.694.288 21.148.899.219

Advance payment of income taxes (IRACIS) (*) 17.939.791.643 18.832.783.585

Advances for the purchase of goods and services 18.726.404.026 21.769.238.774

Legal expenses to be recovered 11.983.934.422 10.142.480.298

Tax credit certificates - 17.706.800.000

Value Added Tax - Tax credit 2.947.213.840 5.550.939.961

Claims for indemnity payments 14.255.000 25.401.818

Accrued income not received 1.561.818.744 528.692.381

Advances to processors 3.016.727.514 2.904.171.780

Various 7.815.901.521 2.836.258.090

Receivables from sale of goods in installments 267.857.778.046 246.037.465.191

Unearned income received (15.473.589.096) (16.068.603.129)

Expenses to be recovered 3.649.652.909 2.080.637.133

Valuation gain to be realized (27.200.051.900) (12.158.069.691)

Allowances recorded (Note c.7) (20.336.152.921) (13.037.486.901)

 Total 289.546.241.275 312.136.311.608

(*) Provision for income taxes included in Liabilities under “Accruals” as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 amount to ₲. 6.549.801.523 and ₲. 16.684.997.445, respectively.

c.7 Allowances for direct and contingent risks
The allowances for doubtful loans and other assets are determined at the end of each period or financial year based on the study of the portfolio carried out to determine the 

non-recoverable portion thereof and considering the rules for each type of credit risk in Central Bank of Paraguay Board Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 60 dated September 28, 

2007 and its subsequent amendments and/or extensions.
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Periodically, the Bank’s Board of Directors and management review and analyze the loan portfolio to adjust the allowances for doubtful accounts, in accordance with the loan 

valuation standards established by the Superintendence of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay and with the Bank’s own criteria and policies. All the necessary allowances have 

been made to cover possible losses on direct and contingent risks, in accordance with the criteria of the Board of Directors and Management of the Bank and with the require-

ments of Resolution No. 1 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay, Minute No. 60 dated September 28, 2007, Resolution No. 37 Minute No. 72 dated November 29, 

2011 and Resolution No. 13 Minute No. 28 dated April 24, 2014.

The movement recorded during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 in the allowance accounts is summarized as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

ITEM

BALANCE AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR
₲

CONSTITUTION OF 
ALLOWANCES (*)

₲

APPLICATIONS
₲

REVERSAL OF 
ALLOWANCES

₲

RECLASSIFICATIONS
(**)

CHANGE IN 
VALUATION IN 

FOREIGN 
CURRENCIES

₲

BALANCES AT 
YEAR-END

₲

Available (24.310.896)                   (459.190.756) - 135.573.104  -                      (483.346) (348.411.894) 
Outstanding 
loans - Financial 
sector -   (2.189.829.920) - 1.183.325.706  -                      (547.211) (1.007.051.425)
Outstanding 
loans - Non-fi-
nancial sector (620.690.700.368) (996.106.343.976) 17.723.084.151 1.176.084.769.579  (55.837.387.405) (33.442.024.232) (512.268.602.251) 
Sundry credits (13.037.486.901) (19.581.763.338) 21.130.974    12.552.795.899 -                 (290.829.555) (20.336.152.921)
Overdue 
receivables (100.121.558.959) (343.262.800.695) 91.706.466.935 176.853.465.950        47.880.241.136            (4.349.194.948) (131.293.380.581) 
Investments (34.883.124.772)  (28.482.795.963) 9.999.850.101 13.428.509.293  (55.487.873.737)  - (95.425.435.078) 
 Total (768.757.181.896)  (1.390.082.724.648) 119.450.532.161 1.380.238.439.531  (63.445.020.006)  (38.083.079.292) (760.679.034.150)

(*) As of December 31, 2020, the institution has amortized Gs. 211.639.065.341 of allowances corresponding to operations under transitory measures and exceptional measures. See note c.10.,

(**) As of December 31, 2020, the Institution has set up specific allowances of Gs. 6.365.359.780 charged to retained earnings as required by the BCP through Note SB.SG. No. 00482/2020; it has 
reclassified Gs. 55.487.873.737 of allowances corresponding to the constitution of a trust. See note c. 8.d. and has reclassified allowances of Gs. 57.079.660.226. corresponding to allowances un-
der exceptional measures. See note c.10.
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ITEM

BALANCE AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR
₲

CONSTITUTION OF 
ALLOWANCES (*)

₲

APPLICATIONS
₲

REVERSAL OF 
ALLOWANCES

₲

CHANGE IN 
VALUATION IN 

FOREIGN 
CURRENCIES

₲

BALANCES AT 
YEAR-END

₲

Available (61.977.088) (879.710.965) - 921.348.516 (3.971.359) (24.310.896) 
Outstanding loans - Financial sector - (511.559.280) - 512.271.322 (712.042) -
Outstanding loans - Non-financial sector (194.911.077.192) (795.250.612.884) 21.962.961.349 356.762.636.615 (9.254.608.256) (620.690.700.368) 
Sundry credits (8.928.829.392) (7.367.090.136) 296.001.350 3.183.573.816 (221.142.539) (13.037.486.901) 
Overdue receivables (81.299.164.222) (281.255.415.909) 111.338.349.386 153.758.615.658 (2.663.943.872) (100.121.558.959) 
Investments (12.974.407.513) (35.254.174.581) 2.322.082.006 11.023.375.316 - (34.883.124.772) 
 Total (298.175.455.407) (1.120.518.563.755) 135.919.394.091 526.161.821.243 (12.144.378.068) (768.757.181.896) 

As of December 31, 2019

(*) At December 31, 2019, the institution has reclassified Gs. 376.962.237.512 corresponding to the operations allowances under transitional measures. See note c.10.

c.8 Investments
The investments item includes:

a. Asset acquired in credit recovery: 
These assets are valued at the lower of the following three values: appraisal value, adjudication value and balance of the receivable immediately prior to adjudication, in 

accordance with the provisions of the Central Bank of Paraguay.

Additionally, for assets that exceed the period established by the Central Bank of Paraguay for their holding, allowances are made in accordance with the terms of Resolution No. 

1, Minute No. 60 dated September 28, 2007 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay and its subsequent amendments, after three years of holding the assets are 

covered at 100%, with the exception of assets in the agricultural sector and movable and immovable assets awarded or received in payment within the period between January 

1, 2018 and December 31, 2020 included, reach 100% allowance coverage after four years of holding, as established in Resolution No. 7, Minute No. 4 dated January 18, 2018 and 

Resolution No. 10, Minute No. 17 dated March 16, 2020 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay, respectively.
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b. Permanent investments:
Permanent investments for holdings in private companies, which have been valued at their acquisition value. This value is not higher than their market value, or their proportional 

equity value.

c. Private fixed-income securities:
These are valued at the lower of either the cost plus accrued interest receivable or their estimated realizable value, taking into consideration the criteria for the valuation of short, 

medium and long-term financial investments established in Resolution No. 1, Minute 60 dated September 28, 2007 of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Paraguay and its 

subsequent amendments.

d. Fiduciary Rights: 
The trust is one of the fiduciary business modalities regulated by Law No. 921/96, by virtue of which a person called “Settlor” delivers to another person called “Trustee”, one or 

more specified assets, transferring the ownership of such assets to the latter for the purpose of managing or disposing of them and using them for a specific purpose, either for 

the benefit of the former or of a third party, called “Beneficiary”. Any kind of property or right, the delivery of which is not prohibited by law, may be the subject of a trust. In the 

trust, the transfer of the ownership of the trust property gives rise to the formation of an “Autonomous Estate”, which is assigned to the fulfillment of the purpose indicated by 

the “Settlor” in the constitutive act. Article 48 inc. b) of Resolution No. 12, Minute No. 9 of the Central Bank of Paraguay of February 15, 2011, regulates the possibility of setting up 

trusts for the administration of portfolios belonging to financial entities that hold portfolios of categories 4, 5 and 6, provided that the Trustee has the necessary capacity to follow 

the process of rating the debtors’ assets, in accordance with the rules of the Central Bank of Paraguay on the classification of asset risks. The Autonomous Estate of the Portfolio 

Management Trust was constituted with the transfer of ownership of a Category 6 Loan Portfolio owned by Banco Regional SAECA, which is instrumented through binding 

documents according to the nature or type of banking operation, to the trustee entity Visión Banco SAECA.

Other investments: 
Corresponds to works of art that are valued at acquisition cost, which does not exceed their recoverable value.

The composition of investments as of December 31, 2020, and 2019 is as follows:
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ITEM
BOOK BALANCE BEFORE 

ALLOWANCES 
₲

ALLOWANCES
₲

BOOK BALANCE NET OF 
ALLOWANCES

₲

Assets
Assets received in recovery of receivables 226.951.361.713 (34.883.124.772) 192.068.236.941
Other investments 4.194.542 - 4.194.542
Permanent investments in private companies (note b.4) 51.872.630.509 - 51.872.630.509
Investments in fixed-income securities issued by the 
private sector

22.341.000.000 - 22.341.000.000

Permanent investments - Subordinated bonds (a) 9.500.000.000                            - 9.500.000.000
Permanent investments - Bonds of Tape Pora SA 64.927.571.426 - 64.927.571.426
Income on investments in the private sector 1.035.725.573                            - 1.035.725.573
Total 376.632.483.763 (34.883.124.772) 341.749.358.991

(a) As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Institution held in portfolio subordinated bonds issued by financial institutions acquired through the stock exchange amounting to GS. 8.375.000.000 
and GS. 9.500.000.000.000 respectively.

As of December 31, 2019

ITEM
BOOK BALANCE BEFORE 

ALLOWANCES 
₲

ALLOWANCES
₲

(NOTE 6.7)

BOOK BALANCE NET OF 
ALLOWANCES

₲

Assets received in recovery of receivables 352.702.726.411 (39.937.561.341) 312.765.165.070
Fiduciary rights 81.518.372.824 (55.487.873.737) 26.030.499.087

Permanent investments in private companies (note b.4) 66.639.731.001 - 66.639.731.001
Permanent investments - Bonds of Tape Pora SA 64.356.500.003 - 64.356.500.003
Permanent investments - Subordinated bonds (a) 8.375.000.000                            - 8.375.000.000
Investments in fixed-income securities issued by the 
private sector

4.775.000.000 - 4.775.000.000

Income on investments in the private sector 836.961.371                            - 836.961.371
Other investments 4.485.071 - 4.485.071
Total 579.208.776.681 (95.425.435.078) 483.783.341.603

As of December 31, 2020
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c.9 Fixed assets
The initial recognition of these assets corresponds to the acquisition cost. Subsequent valuation of these assets is presented net of accumulated depreciation and, if appli-

cable, impairment.

As of January 1, 2020, and due to the enactment of Law No. 6380/2019, it is mandatory to determine the residual value established by the regulation, which also includes the es-

timated years of service life for each type or class of depreciable assets. The Executive Power may establish the mandatory revaluation of fixed assets when the variation of the 

Consumer Price Index determined by the BCP reaches at least 20% (twenty percent), accumulated since the fiscal year in which the last revaluation adjustment was made. The 

recognition of the mandatory revaluation established by the Executive Branch will form part of an equity reserve whose only purpose will be capitalization.

Until December 31, 2019, the original values of property, plant and equipment and their accumulated depreciation are revalued in accordance with the variation of the Consumer 

Price Index published by the Central Bank of Paraguay (see note b.2). The net increase in the revaluation reserve for the year ended December 31, 2019, was Gs. 3.155.874.589 and is 

shown in the “Adjustments to Shareholders’ Equity” account of the Statement of Changes in the Company’s Shareholders’ Equity.

The cost of improvements or additions are capitalized, while maintenance and repair expenses that do not increase the value of the assets or their service life are charged to inco-

me in the year in which they are incurred. Depreciations are calculated starting from the month following the incorporation into the Institution’s Assets, through monthly charges 

to results based on the linear system, in the estimated years of service life.

The net increase in the revaluation reserve for the year ended December 31, 2019, was Gs. 3.155.874.589 and is shown in the “Adjustments to Shareholders’ Equity” account of the 

Statement of Changes in the Entity’s Shareholders’ Equity.
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ITEM

ORIGINAL VALUE
BALANCE AT THE 

BEGINNING OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR

₲

ADDITIONS
₲

DISPOSAL
₲

REVALUATION RESERVE
₲

BALANCE AT THE END 
OF THE YEAR

₲

Bank Owned

Properties - Land 14.928.043.110 - - - 14.928.043.110
Properties - Buildings 87.165.645.893 2.655.701 - - 87.168.301.594
Furniture and office supplies 48.100.086.825 419.690.999 (1.928.404.150) - 46.591.373.674
Computer equipment 97.683.767.975 9.419.961.721 (172.913.777) - 106.930.815.919
Safe deposit boxes and treasury 2.185.405.011 - (38.638.063) - 2.146.766.948
Transport equipment 2.062.138.042 - - - 2.062.138.042
Total as of December 31, 2020 252.125.086.856 9.842.308.421 (2.139.955.990) - 259.827.439.287
Total as of December 31, 2019 234.795.657.220 13.821.484.363 (1.051.131.328) 4.559.076.601 252.125.086.856

The composition of the item as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

ITEM

DEPRECIATIONS
NET AMOUNT AT THE 

END OF THE YEAR 
₲

BALANCE AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR
₲

ADDITIONS
₲

DISPOSAL
₲

REVALUATION 
RESERVE

₲

BALANCE AT THE END 
OF THE YEAR

₲

Bank Owned
Properties - Land - - - - - 14.928.043.110
Properties - Buildings (17.044.517.892) (1.743.666.378) (2.655.701) - (18.790.839.971) 68.377.461.623
Furniture and office supplies (33.806.594.212) (2.914.714.861) 1.666.187.343 - (35.055.121.730) 11.536.251.944
Computer equipment (73.655.425.372) (12.925.395.982) 145.307.936 - (86.435.513.418) 20.495.302.501
Safe deposit boxes and treasury (1.789.069.512) (99.855.730) 36.736.762 - (1.852.188.480) 294.578.468
Transport equipment (1.443.496.548) (329.942.126) - - (1.773.438.674) 288.699.368
Total as of December 31, 2020 (127.739.103.536) (18.013.575.077) 1.845.576.340 - (143.907.102.273) 115.920.337.014
Total as of December 31, 2019 (109.590.900.867) (17.750.204.419) 1.005.203.763 (1.403.202.012) (127.739.103.536) 124.385.983.320
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According to banking legislation, financial institutions operating in Paraguay are prohibited from pledging fixed assets as security, except for those affected in support of financial 

leasing operations and to the Central Bank of Paraguay.

Banking legislation sets a limit for investment in fixed assets of 50% of effective equity. The accounting balance of the Bank’s fixed assets at December 31, 2020 is within the esta-

blished limit.

c.10 Deferred charges
The composition of the item as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

ITEM

BALANCE AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR
₲

INCREASES / 
(CHARGES)

₲

AMORTIZATION FOR 
THE YEAR

₲

VARIATION IN 
VALUATION IN FOREIGN 

CURRENCIES

BALANCE AT 
YEAR-END

₲

As of December 31, 2020
Leasehold improvements and installations (a) 4.927.624.751 - (1.479.751.692) - 3.447.873.059
Office supplies and others 2.281.647.478 2.612.130.398 (2.217.355.748) - 2.676.422.128
Intangible assets 316.377.187 - (218.155.764) 98.221.423
Deferred charges for portfolio allowances under the 
transitional measures regime 2019 (b)

376.962.237.512 (35.212.816.568) (205.691.637.504) 18.444.376.456 154.502.159.896

Deferred charges for allowances in portfolio under 
exceptional measures 2020 (c)

- 92.543.903.168 (5.947.427.837) 285.354.949 86.881.830.280

Total 384.487.886.928 59.943.216.998 (215.554.328.545) 18.729.731.405 247.606.506.786
As of December 31, 2019

Leasehold improvements and installations (a) 5.485.818.417 927.360.238 (1.485.553.904) - 4.927.624.751
Office supplies and others 1.836.913.925 3.131.263.147 (2.686.529.594) - 2.281.647.478
Intangible assets 972.036.587 - (655.659.400) - 316.377.187
Deferred charges for portfolio allowances under the 
transitional measures regime 2019 (b)

- 376.962.237.512 - - 376.962.237.512

Total 8.294.768.929 381.020.860.897 (4.827.742.898) - 384.487.886.928

(a) The Institution amortizes improvements and installations in leased properties on a linear basis considering a service life of 5 years.

(b) See note c. 6
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c.11 Debentures and bonds issued in circulation

Issued in the local market

The item “Debentures and bonds issued in circulation” included in the items “Financial intermediation obligations - Non-financial sector” of the statement of assets includes su-

bordinated bonds, financial bonds whose balance and detail of issuances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

a) Subordinated bonds

BCP AUTHORIZATION 
RESOLUTION NUMBER

CURRENCY 
OF ISSUE AMOUNT OF ISSUE MATURITY DATE CURRENCY OF

ORIGIN
BALANCE DUE AS OF 
12/31/2020

BALANCE DUE AS OF 
12/31/2019

00027/2016 US$         10.000.000,00  2555 days          10.000.000,00 69.001.100.000 64.531.400.000

00027/2016  US$           8.630.000,00  2555 days             8.630.000,00 59.547.949.300 55.690.598.200
00112/2019 US$ 10.000.000,00 1827 days 10.000.000,00 69.001.100.000 -
00112/2019  US$ 5.000.000,00 1826 days 5.000.000,00 34.500.550.000 -
00112/2019 US$ 8.000.000,00 2191 days 8.000.000,00 55.200.880.000 -
00112/2019  US$ 2.000.000,00 2191 days 2.000.000,00 13.800.220.000 -
Total US$  (*) 43.630.000,00           43.630.000,00
Total equivalent in Gs. 301.051.799.300 120.221.998.200

(*) By Resolutions SB. SG. No. 00027/2016 and 00112/2019, the Central Bank of Paraguay authorized, and the Institution has issued, subordinated bonds in foreign currency amounting to US$ 18.630.000.00 
and US$ 25.000.000.00 respectively. In Resolution SB. SG. No. 00111/2019 the Central Bank of Paraguay also authorized the issuance of subordinated bonds in local currency up to an amount of ₲. 
325.492.000.000. At the end of the year ended on December 31, 2020, the Institution had not finalized the issuance of the bonds in Guarani.

The subordinated bonds are convertible into shares, in case the minimum capital required by law is reached or capital losses are replaced (Law 861/96). Subordinated bonds do not carry the deposit gua-
rantee established in Law 2334/03.
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b) Financial Bonds

BCP AUTHORIZATION 
RESOLUTION NUMBER

CURRENCY 
OF ISSUE AMOUNT OF ISSUE MATURITY DATE CURRENCY OF 

ORIGIN
BALANCE DUE AS OF 
12/31/2020

BALANCE DUE AS OF 
12/31/2019

00176/2018 US$         11.000.000,00 1827 days         11.000.000,00 75.901.210.000 70.984.540.000

00176/2018  US$ 15.000.000,00 1827 days 15.000.000,00 103.501.650.000 96.797.100.000
00176/2018 US$ 7.000.000,00 1827 days 7.000.000,00 48.300.770.000 45.171.980.000
00176/2018  US$           12.000.000,00 1827 days           12.000.000,00 82.801.320.000 77.437.680.000
Total US$  (*) 45.000.000,00          45.000.000,00
Total equivalent in Gs. 310.504.950.000 290.391.300.000

(*) By Resolution SB. SG No. 00176/2018, the Central Bank of Paraguay authorized the issuance of Financial Bonds in foreign currency up to US$ 75.000.000, and the Institution has issued US$ 45.000.000 (see 

note C.19).

The financial bonds issued are not covered by Law 2,334/03, therefore, they are not guaranteed by the Deposit Guarantee Fund.

c.12 Limitations on the free availability of assets or equity and any other restrictions on the right of ownership
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the following limitations exist:

a) Legal and special reserves
The Central Bank of Paraguay account as of December 31, 2020, and 2019 includes the sum of ₲. 783.955.040.434 y ₲. 1.300.421.585.718 respectively, which correspond to restricted availability accounts, held 

in the said institution as legal and special reserve requirements (see note c.3).

b) Public Securities
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Institution has delivered Monetary Regulation Bills for Gs. 25.000.000.000 y Gs. 46.430.000.000 respectively, as minimum guarantees required by the BCP under the 

general regulations of the Paraguayan Payments System (see note c.4).

c) Legal reserve
In accordance with Article 27 of Law 861/96, financial institutions must have a reserve of no less than the equivalent of one hundred percent (100%) of their capital, which shall be constituted by transferring 

annually no less than twenty percent (20%) of the net profits of each financial year. 
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Article 28 of the aforementioned Law establishes that the resources of the legal reserve shall be automatically applied to cover losses recorded in the financial year. In the following years, the total profits 

must be allocated to the legal reserve until the minimum amount is reached again, or the highest amount obtained in the process of its constitution. 

At any time, the amount of the reserve may be additionally increased by cash contributions.

d) Monetary correction of capital
Under Article 11 of Law No. 861/96, as amended by Law No. 5787/2016, financial institutions must update their capital annually on the basis of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) calculated by the Central Bank of 

Paraguay. The discounted value of the minimum capital for financial year 2020 and 2019 is ₲. 55.445.000.000 y ₲. 53.930.000.000.000 respectively, in accordance with Circulars SB. SG. No. 13/2020 and 7/2019 

respectively.

The Bank’s integrated capital (common and preferred shares) at December 31, 2020, and 2019 amount to Gs. 1.151.242.800.000; (see note b.5), which exceeds the aforementioned minimum capital.  

e) Profit distribution
According to the provisions of Law No. 861/96 “ Regarding Banks, Financial Institutions and Other Credit Institutions”, financial institutions may distribute their profits after approval by the Superintendence 

of Banks (SIB) of their respective annual audited financial statements, provided that such approval is issued within one hundred and twenty days of the closing of the financial year. Upon expiration of the 

aforementioned period and without a pronouncement by the SIB, the earnings may be distributed.

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 30, 2020 approved the capitalization of 100% of the ordinary dividends and the distribution of 100% of the preferred dividends corresponding to fiscal year 

2019, which was carried out as follows:  

ITEMS CURRENCY AMOUNTS
Establishment of the legal reserve ₲ 34.717.002.459
Profit capitalization ₲ 92.183.000.000
Dividend distribution - Preferred stock (*) ₲ 30.000.000.000
Retained Earnings - Prior Periods ₲ 12.391
Total 156.900.014.850

(*) Subject to the terms of approval by the SIB. If the distribution is not approved, it will be capitalized.
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On April 21, 2020, the Institution received Note SB SG No. 00294/2020 by which the Superintendency of Banks requires Banco Regional SAECA to refrain from disposing of the ba-

lance of the accumulated results corresponding to financial year 2019, considering that the verifications and reviews of the portfolio continue.

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 26, 2019 approved the distribution of profits for the 2018 fiscal year, which was carried out as follows:

ITEMS CURRENCY AMOUNTS
Establishment of the legal reserve ₲ 30.935.302.533
Profit capitalization ₲ 47.010.000.000
Dividend distribution - Preferred stock ₲ 40.000.000.000
Dividend distribution - Ordinary stock (*) ₲ 20.147.111.737
Total 138.092.414.270

f) Preferred share dividends
In accordance with the original terms of the preferred share issuance, the shareholders’ meeting granted the holders a preferred dividend of 18% on the preferred capital. On 

December 18, 2018, exercising its authority, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting resolved to modify the original rate, setting the new preferred dividend rate at 12% for the period 

of 2019 to 2023.

g) Guarantees granted in favor of Bancard S.A.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has provided Bancard S.A. with a portfolio of credit cards of the Affinity MasterCard Classic line as collateral up to the amount of 

Gs. 17.579.935.763, which guarantee transactions resulting from users’ transactions at ATMs or points of sale (POS) in the Infonet network, as well as obligations that may arise as a 

result of credit card transactions under the MasterCard, VISA and Bancard Check brands.

c.13 Guarantees provided regarding liabilities
As of December 31, 2020, the loans obtained from GOVCO LLC in agreement with Citibank N.A. New York, and guaranteed by the Overseas Private Investment Corporation 

(OPIC), are cancelled. The main capital balance of US$ 33,750,000.00 was paid on March 1, 2020, in compliance with the provisions of the contractual documentation, and the 

customer promissory notes in guarantee have already been fully recovered.

As of December 31, 2019, loans obtained from GOVCO LLC in agreement with Citibank N.A. New York, and guaranteed by the Overseas Private Investment Corporation (OPIC), 

with a principal balance of US$ 1.184.220,00 are secured by promissory notes from clients in guarantee for US$ 4.160.603,18.
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Additionally, the Institution is committed to comply with certain financial clauses, positive and negative, in accordance with the contracts and agreements signed with multilateral 

credit institutions, which are monitored by the Board of Directors and Management of the Institution. As of December 31, 2020, the financial covenants agreed with institutions 

with which we have debt balance are in compliance.

There are no other limitations to the free availability of assets or equity or any other restriction to the right of ownership.

c.14 Distribution of loans and liabilities by financial intermediation according to their maturity

The placements and collections as of December 31, 2020and 2019 are shown below, grouped according to their remaining terms.

Balances include accrued interest, transactions to be settled/reported, and loans before allowances.

As of December 31, 2020

ITEM

REMAINING TERMS TO MATURITY

UP TO 30 DAYS  FROM 31 TO 
180 DAYS

FROM 181 TO 
1 YEAR

MORE THAN 1 
YEAR AND UP TO 3 

YEARS

MORE THAN 3 
YEARS

TOTAL
₲

Performing loans financial sector 100.918.880.627 18.754.544.535 37.720.134.591 84.541.753.618 25.361.056.311 267.296.369.682
Performing loans non-financial sector 813.495.771.587 3.265.791.458.582 1.420.105.221.437 2.625.943.267.492 3.925.029.462.782 12.050.365.181.880
Total performing loans 914.414.652.214 3.284.546.003.117 1.457.825.356.028 2.710.485.021.110 3.950.390.519.093 12.317.661.551.562

Financial sector liabilities  552.379.088.856 603.152.451.513 503.752.552.574 1.202.947.045.352 1.296.948.601.025 4.159.179.739.320
Non-financial sector liabilities 6.233.086.994.242 866.257.491.010 1.247.589.867.370 1.913.722.493.974 1.259.457.110.164 11.520.113.956.760
Total Liabilities 6.785.466.083.098 1.469.409.942.523 1.751.342.419.944 3.116.669.539.326 2.556.405.711.189 15.679.293.696.080
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ITEM

REMAINING TERMS TO MATURITY

UP TO 30 DAYS  FROM 31 TO 
180 DAYS

FROM 181 TO 
1 YEAR

MORE THAN 1 
YEAR AND UP TO 3 

YEARS

MORE THAN 3 
YEARS

TOTAL
₲

Performing loans financial sector 78.425.419.937 170.719.266.265 51.962.159.662 55.166.334.746 25.620.838.562 381.894.019.172
Performing loans non-financial sector 1.247.365.641.521 4.086.223.880.732 1.343.471.145.005 2.526.769.723.889 4.009.808.953.610 13.213.639.344.757
Total loans outstanding 1.325.791.061.458 4.256.943.146.997 1.395.433.304.667 2.581.936.058.635 4.035.429.792.172 13.595.533.363.929

Financial sector liabilities 577.241.369.364 570.314.370.364 407.349.396.318 1.462.531.516.717 1.605.212.754.634 4.622.649.407.397
Non-financial sector liabilities  5.137.616.157.325 1.040.309.585.371 1.277.058.994.090 2.018.475.939.489 1.404.545.832.454 10.878.006.508.729
Total Liabilities 5.714.857.526.689 1.610.623.955.735 1.684.408.390.408 3.481.007.456.206 3.009.758.587.088 15.500.655.916.126

As of December 31, 2019

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial commitments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 

asset. The Board of Directors and Management of the Bank control its liquidity mainly by matching the maturities of its assets and liabilities, in accordance with the short, medium 

and long term strategies defined and permanently monitored, both for assets and liabilities. 

 

Additionally, the Institution has defined contingency plans for cases of transitory liquidity needs. The liquidity position is monitored and liquidity stress tests are carried out regu-

larly under a variety of scenarios that cover both normal market conditions and more severe ones. All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by the 

Assets and Liabilities Committee.

c.15 Concentration of the loan and deposit portfolio

c.15.1 Concentration of the portfolio by financial intermediation by number of clients

Below is the concentration of the portfolio held by the Institution as of December 31, 2020, and 2019 with the financial (SF) and non-financial (SNF) sectors, both in the portfolio of 

outstanding and overdue loans and in the obligations through financial intermediation.
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NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

AMOUNT AND PERCENTAGE OF LOAN PORTFOLIO
FINANCIAL SECTOR

AMOUNT AND PERCENTAGE OF LOAN PORTFOLIO 
NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR

OUTSTANDING
₲ (*) % PAST DUE

₲ (*) % OUTSTANDING
₲ (*) % PAST DUE

₲ (*) %

As of December 31, 2020
 10 largest debtors 239.169.882.034  89% -    0% 1.047.246.877.359   9% 68.871.900.795  28%
 50 subsequent largest debtors 28.126.487.648   11% -    0% 2.807.593.510.963 23% 97.568.519.189  40%
 100 subsequent largest debtors -    0% -    0% 2.636.373.721.400  22% 45.519.523.828  19%
 Other subsequent debtors -    0% -    0% 5.559.151.072.158  46% 31.273.007.635  13%
 Total loan portfolio 267.296.369.682 100% -     0% 12.050.365.181.880 100% 243.232.951.447 100%
As of December 31, 2019
 10 largest debtors 292.447.848.696  77% 1.866.551.425  100% 1.006.834.261.154   8% 72.536.023.173  35%
 50 subsequent largest debtors 89.446.170.476  23% -    0% 2.880.387.020.663 22% 79.238.831.686  38%
 100 subsequent largest debtors -    0% -    0% 2.747.911.739.465  21% 32.884.271.821  16%
 Other subsequent debtors -    0% -    0% 6.578.506.323.475  49% 21.657.457.735  11%
 Total loan portfolio 381.894.019.172 100% 1.866.551.425 100% 13.213.639.344.757 100% 206.316.584.415 100%

(*) Includes debtors for accrued financial products suspended valuation gains, and operations to be settled/reported, before allowances.

a) Loans portfolio

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



154

b) Deposits

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

AMOUNT AND PERCENTAGE OF DEPOSIT PORTFOLIO 

FINANCIAL SECTOR
%

NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR
PRIVATE SECTOR

%
PUBLIC SECTOR

%
₲ (*) ₲ (*) ₲ (*)

As of December 31, 2020
10 largest depositors 296.482.581.952 51% 802.987.610.418 8% 864.253.813.992 98%
50 subsequent largest depositors 247.609.124.644 43% 1.415.228.308.265 14% 19.284.929.317   2%
100 subsequent largest depositors 32.519.897.548   6% 1.271.431.624.499 13% -    0%
Other subsequent depositors -    0% 6.437.962.246.387 65% -    0%
TOTAL 576.611.604.144 100% 9.927.609.789.569 100% 883.538.743.309 100%

As of December 31, 2019
10 largest depositors 422.284.781.173 60% 905.549.088.835 10% 1.043.621.767.408 98%
50 subsequent largest depositors 241.736.387.450 35% 1.396.837.889.366 15% 26.029.114.987   2%
100 subsequent largest depositors 35.943.670.525    5% 1.228.339.511.835 13% -    0%
Other subsequent depositors -    0% 5.771.893.935.364 62% -    0%
TOTAL 699.964.839.148 100% 9.302.620.425.400 100% 1.069.650.882.395 100%

(*) These include amounts for demand and term deposits, excluding accrued finance charges payable at the end of the financial year.
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c.15.2  Concentration by geographical area and currency

a) Loan portfolio

ITEM
CREDIT SECTOR

FINANCIAL
 ₲ (*)

%
CREDIT SECTOR
NON-FINANCIAL

 ₲ (*)
%

December 31 2020
Local residents 266.110.682.242   99,56% 12.050.365.181.880  100%
Non residents 1.185.687.440     0,44%                                     -        0%

Sub-Total 267.296.369.682      100% 12.050.365.181.880 100%
Allowances (1.007.051.425) (512.268.602.251)
TOTAL 266.289.318.257 11.538.096.579.629
In local currency 219.203.984.107   82% 4.690.720.040.466 39% 
In foreign currency   48.092.385.575   18% 7.359.645.141.414    61%
Sub-Total 267.296.369.682 100% 12.050.365.181.880 100%
Allowances (1.007.051.425) (512.268.602.251)
TOTAL 266.289.318.257 11.538.096.579.629

ITEM
SECTOR

FINANCIAL CREDIT 
₲ (*)

% NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR CREDIT
₲ (*) %

December 31 2019
Local residents 378.142.182.291   99% 13.213.639.344.757  100%
Non residents 3.751.836.881     1%                                     -        0%
Sub-Total 381.894.019.172 100% 13.213.639.344.757 100%
Allowances - (620.690.700.368)
TOTAL 381.894.019.172 12.592.948.644.389
In local currency 214.055.859.992   56% 4.891.881.689.812    37%
In foreign currency   167.838.159.180   44% 8.321.757.654.945    63%
Sub-Total 381.894.019.172 100% 13.213.639.344.757 100%
Allowances - (620.690.700.368)
TOTAL 381.894.019.172 12.592.948.644.389

(*) These include loan amounts, debtors for accrued financial products, suspended valuation gains, and transactions to be settled.
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b) Liabilities
As of December 31, 2020

ITEM FINANCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS
₲ % NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS

₲ %

Local residents 1.563.453.797.723    38%  11.406.440.486.122 99,71%
Non residents  2.513.084.010.153    62% 33.139.590.963   0,29%
Sub-Total (*) 4.076.537.807.876 100% 11.439.580.077.085    100%
Other Obligations (**)  82.641.931.444 80.533.879.675
TOTAL 4.159.179.739.320 11.520.113.956.760
In local currency  1.028.176.336.812   25% 4.285.296.596.062   37%
In foreign currency 3.048.361.471.064   75%  7.154.283.481.023    63%
Sub-Total (*) 4.076.537.807.876 100% 11.439.580.077.085 100%
Other Obligations (**) 82.641.931.444 80.533.879.675

TOTAL 4.159.179.739.320 11.520.113.956.760

ITEM FINANCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS
₲ % NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS

₲ %

Local residents  1.668.301.622.558    37%   10.758.669.048.673 99,68%
Non residents  2.869.718.937.106    63% 34.428.824.068   0,32%
Sub-Total (*) 4.538.020.559.664 100% 10.793.097.872.741    100%
Other Obligations (**) 84.628.847.733 84.908.635.988
TOTAL 4.622.649.407.397 10.878.006.508.729
In local currency 904.807.304.633   20% 4.238.754.335.721   39%
In foreign currency 3.633.213.255.031   80% 6.554.343.537.020    61%
Sub-Total (*) 4.538.020.559.664 100% 10.793.097.872.741 100%
Other Obligations (**) 84.628.847.733 84.908.635.988

TOTAL 4.622.649.407.397 10.878.006.508.729

(*) Includes amounts of demand and term deposits, direct loans from financial institutions, bonds issued in circulation, and deferred documentary credits, without considering interest charges accrued at 
the cut-off date.
(**) Other Obligations include accrued interest not considered as deposits, transactions pending for ATM compensation and transactions to be settled.

As of December 31, 2019
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c.15.3 Loan portfolio to the non-financial sector distributed by economic sector
Its composition as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

ECONOMIC SECTOR
LOANS TO THE NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 (*)
LOANS TO THE NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019 (*)
₲ % ₲ %

General agricultural crops - agriculture 2.166.574.325.218 18% 2.339.573.479.410 18%

Agribusiness 2.636.847.233.833 22% 2.548.608.258.446 19%
Wholesale trade 1.858.537.428.362 15% 2.264.294.940.023 17%
Animal husbandry-livestock 1.558.016.529.647 13% 1.681.402.412.192 13%
Manufacturing industries 877.577.353.611 7% 1.075.094.025.350 8%
Retail trade 653.031.964.243 5% 850.349.680.917 6%
Consumer 453.445.411.135 4% 507.950.201.019 4%
Sale, maintenance and repair of vehicles 350.565.040.654 3% 398.165.739.988 3%
Personal services 347.163.200.325 3% 371.696.661.828 3%
Other unspecified 338.783.182.181 3% 392.734.766.620 3%
Construction 319.997.277.694 3% 253.387.362.599 2%
Services 248.537.987.234 2% 257.731.446.835 2%
Housing 192.184.854.604 1,59% 184.120.514.091 1%
Financial intermediation 49.103.393.139 0,41% 88.529.855.439 1%
Total 12.050.365.181.880 100% 13.213.639.344.757 100%

  (*) Includes accrued interest, gains to be realized and transactions to be settled/reported, before allowances.
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c.16 Loans and contingencies with related parties
Asset and liability balances with related parties as of December 31, 2020, and 2019 are as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

ITEM BOOK BALANCE BEFORE ALLOWANCES (**)
₲

ALLOWANCES
₲

BOOK BALANCE NET OF ALLOWANCES
₲

Assets
Current Credits (*) 190.552.274.698 - 190.552.274.698
Credit contingencies 40.203.069.321                        - 40.203.069.321
Total 230.755.344.019 - 230.755.344.019

Liabilities

Deposits 100.239.865.461 - 100.239.865.461
Total 100.239.865.461 - 100.239.865.461

 As of December 31, 2019

ITEM BOOK BALANCE BEFORE ALLOWANCES (**)
₲

ALLOWANCES
₲

BOOK BALANCE NET OF ALLOWANCES
₲

Assets
Current Credits (*) 234.097.638.250 - 234.097.638.250
Credit contingencies 18.397.607.621                        - 18.397.607.621
Total 252.495.245.871 - 252.495.245.871

Liabilities

Deposits 106.727.250.618 - 106.727.250.618
Total 106.727.250.618 - 106.727.250.618

(*) Outstanding loans do not include accrued interest.

(**) Law 861/96 establishes limits for the granting of loans to related parties, which cannot exceed an amount equivalent to 20% of the Institution’s effective equity.
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c.17 Other Liabilities
Its composition as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows

OVERVIEW 12/31/2020
₲

12/31/2019
₲

Management checks issued 33.505.685.481 33.351.429.610
Tax creditors 9.427.438.384 14.964.341.963
Other 7.061.331.764 10.625.545.758
Accounts payable 1.062.178.080 598.711.423
Dividends payable 904.105.632 1.447.629.936
Social creditors 245.209.566 241.557.781
Total 52.205.948.907 61.229.216.471

c.18 Transactions to be settled
This section records the balances of the following transactions:

a) Forward Operations
These are contracts for the obligatory exchange of currencies at a rate previously agreed between the parties (Currency “Forward”) which are initially recorded at their agreed va-

lue. Subsequently, any change in this amount is charged to income, calculating the present value of the settlement or the theoretical closing, which corresponds to the amount for 

which it could be delivered or settled, respectively, under market conditions. In terms of Economic Valuation, the Forward Market Quote to be taken into account will be the sum 

of the Reference Exchange Rate on the date on which each forward contract in effect is being valued plus the forward points according to the residual term.

b) Repurchase or repo operations
A repo operation occurs when the Bank acquires or transfers securities, in exchange for the delivery of a sum of money, assuming in such act and moment the commitment to 

transfer or acquire again the property to its “counterparty” securities of the same species and characteristics on the same day or on a later date and at a determined price.

In accordance with the provisions of the Central Bank of Paraguay, repurchase/resell agreements are recorded as part of “Transactions to be settled” under the headings Loans 

outstanding for financial intermediation and Obligations for financial intermediation.

The amounts recorded in the Interbank liquidity window operations (VLI Operations) - Offering is composed of the amounts granted to BCP plus the agreed premiums. In turn, the VLI - 

Demand Transactions refer to the irrevocable commitment to sell securities obtained under the transaction and held in custody by BCP, at the par value of the securities to be transferred.
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NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR
a) Forward Operations

FORWARD PURCHASES OF FOREIGN CURRENCY - NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR: 12/31/2020
₲

31/12/2019 
 ₲

Accounts receivable for forward foreign currency purchase transactions 164.338.238 18.637.267
Accounts payable for forward foreign currency purchase transactions - -

FORWARD SALES OF FOREIGN CURRENCY - NON-FINANCIAL SECTOR: 31/12/2020 
₲

31/12/2019 
₲

Accounts receivable from forward sales of foreign currencies - 1.854.798
Accounts payable for forward sales of foreign currencies (95.226.584)                  (13.402.619)

Total transactions to be settled (accounts receivable) - Assets 164.338.238 20.492.065
Total operations to be settled (accounts payable) - Liabilities (95.226.584)                  (13.402.619)

b) Repurchase transactions through the interbank liquidity window

As of December 31, 2020, the institution did not have any outstanding repurchase/resell agreements with the non-financial sector.

c.19 Important information regarding the financial year

a) Changes in tax legislation:

On September 25, 2019, Law No. 6380/19 “On the Modernization and Simplification of the National Tax System” was enacted, effective as of January 1, 2020, which basically sets 

forth the following taxation scheme:

Corporate Income Tax (IRE), successor to the Income Tax on Commercial, Industrial and Service Activities (IRACIS), Income Tax on Agricultural Activities (IRAGRO), and Tax on Small 

Income Taxpayers (IRPC), with the same rates of taxation of 10%.

TABLE OF CONTENTS REPORT LETTER 01 02 03 04



161

Tax on Dividends and Earnings (IDU), which taxes the earnings, dividends or income received as a shareholder of a company incorporated in the country. Profits destined to the 

legal reserve account, to optional reserves or to capitalization will not be covered by the IDU, except in the case of a capital redemption, in which case, the profits destined 

to some of the mentioned destinations will be taxed by the IDU. This tax is applied by way of withholding, with the designated agent being the entities paying the profits and 

dividends.

The rates to be applied will be the following: 8% if the recipient of the dividends, profits or income is an individual, legal entity or other type of entity resident in the country; 

and 15% provided that the recipient is an entity, individual or legal entity not resident in the country, including those obtained by the parent company abroad, that is, the parent 

company of the branches established in the country. Law No. 6380/19 establishes special provisions related to earnings accumulated before the law’s effective date that have not 

been capitalized. 

Tax on Non-Residents (INR), Law No. 6380/19 puts into effect a tax to be applied to Non-Residents in the country, and which will tax all income, profits or benefits obtained by 

individuals, legal entities and other types of entities. The condition is that they are not resident in Paraguay. An important point is that the case for determining whether the 

income is from a Paraguayan source is established for each type of service. In general, the INR rate is set at 15% to be applied on the established net income value.

Value Added Tax (IVA), as regards IVA, no significant changes are expected in the operations carried out by the Bank. There are no changes in the rates for operations. Financial 

interest and the provision of services will be taxed at the rate of 10%. The tax settlement system will remain unchanged; the rule of offsetting IVA Debit with IVA Tax Credit is 

maintained.

On the other hand, the possibility of recovering the IVA tax credit linked to export operations of agricultural producers and their derivatives from the first processing or 

industrialization processes is eliminated, a situation that directly affects the costs of the agricultural sector. 

Additionally, new transfer pricing regulations are established, which will be in effect as of 2021.

b) Business environment:
During the first months of 2020, a new virus causing the disease known as COVID-19 began to spread. At the date of issue of these financial statements, this virus has spread to 

almost every country on every continent in the world bringing with it a significant social and economic impact. On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared it a 

pandemic, and in early March 2020, the Government of Paraguay issued a quarantine order. The Company has been less affected in its operations than the rest of the economic 

agents due to the fact that no restrictions were applied to its continued operations. However, the situation affected the level of economic activity in general, which had an impact 

on customers’ ability to pay. 
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This directly impacted the Institution, reducing the level of operations in 2020, affecting profitability levels, and increasing the liquidity position of the company. All governmental 

and regulatory health regulations have been complied with to preserve employee health and business continuity.

The Board of Directors and Management of the Company estimate that these effects will not have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for 

a period of 12 months from 1 January 2021.

D. EQUITY

d.1.    Effective equity
The effective equity constitutes the basis for the determination of operational limits and restrictions established by the Superintendence of Banks of the Central Bank of Paraguay 

for financial entities operating in Paraguay.

The effective net worth of the Institution as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounts to ₲. 1.720.535.000.000 y ₲. 1.423.050.000.000 respectively.

Law No. 5,787 dated December 19 2016 establishes the composition of the principal (Level 1) and supplementary (Level 2) capital of financial institutions for the purpose of calcula-

ting their solvency. This Law also establishes the minimum proportion that must exist at all times between the principal capital and the amount of risk-weighted assets and contin-

gencies, in national or foreign currency, including their branches in the country and abroad, which may not be less than 8%. In the case of the minimum ratio between the principal 

(Tier 1) and supplementary (Tier 2) capital combined and the total amount of risk-weighted assets and contingencies of a financial institution, in domestic or foreign currency, inclu-

ding its branches in the country and abroad, shall not be less than 12% or exceed 14%.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Entity has the following relationship:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Level 1- Principal capital 16,26% 12,70%

Level 2 - Principal capital plus complementary capital 18,92% 12,11%
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d.2. Minimum Capital

The minimum and inflation-indexed capital for the year 2019 which, by virtue of the regulations of the Central Bank of Paraguay, the Banks operating in the national financial system 

must compulsorily have as integrated capital by December 31, 2020, amounts to ₲. 55.445 million (₲. 53.930 million for December 31, 2019). Any eventual capital shortfall of an 

institution with respect to the minimum capital required annually from financial institutions must be covered before the end of the first half of each year.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Institution had an integrated capital of ₲. 1.151.242.800.000, which was higher than the minimum required by the regulations of the Central 

Bank of Paraguay as at those dates.

d.3. Adjustments of accumulated results
The BCP’s Plan and Accounts Manual establishes that the adjustments of results from previous years are recorded in the income statement without affecting the Institution’s equity 

accounts. As at December 31, 2020 the net adjustment is a loss of ₲. 3.498.009.171 included in “Adjustment of prior years’ results” (Loss of ₲. 7.329.251.206 as at December 31, 2019).

E.  INFORMATION REGARDING CONTINGENCY AND MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS

a) Contingency accounts
The balance of the contingency accounts at 31 December 2020 and 2019 relates mainly to credit lines granted to debtors for credit card operations, loans agreed on current 

accounts, and other agreed lines pending use. Together, these lines of credit do not exceed 10% of total assets. 

The Bank has recorded the following balances in contingency accounts related to commitments or responsibilities in the line of business

ITEMS 12/31/2020
₲

12/31/2019
₲

Guarantees issued 474.037.445.939 572.217.928.035
Credits to be used through the use of cards 350.684.300.457 341.446.724.748
Documentary credits to be negotiated 256.637.930.134 173.226.944.376
Credits to be used in current accounts 233.408.380.477 326.663.702.560
Total 1.314.768.057.007 1.413.555.299.719
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b) Memorandum accounts
The memorandum accounts are composed as follows:

ITEM 12/31/2020
₲

12/31/2019
₲

Guarantees received 13.758.053.825.363 14.870.716.867.056
Securities and Deposit Management 1.531.198.623.940 1.413.888.661.900
Sale and transfer of portfolio 1.173.626.941.104 1.043.371.933.930
Other memorandum accounts 870.349.012.044 1.159.355.811.679
Allowances to be made for exceptional measures 25.443.481.243 -
Foreign business and collections 16.835.487.791 25.676.849.874

Forward Operation – Buyer 21.735.346.500 967.971.000
Forward Operation - Seller 4.140.066.000 1.935.942.000
Total 17.401.382.783.985 18.515.914.037.439

F. INFORMATION CONCERNING RESULTS

f.1 Profit and loss recognition
The Bank applied the accrual principle for the purposes of recognizing income and allocating expenses or costs incurred, with the following exceptions, in which income is recognized as 

profit upon receipt or collection, as established by Resolution No. 1, Minute No. 60 of the Central Bank of Paraguay, dated September 28, 2007, and its subsequent amendments:

a) financial products accrued and uncollected from debtors with overdue receivables and their valuation earnigns;

b) accrued and uncollected financial products relating to debtors and credits classified in categories 2 (other than by subjective criteria), 3, 4, 5 and 6, which are recognized as 

income upon collection;

c) valuation earingns of debtors with overdue and outstanding loans classified in categories 2 (other than by subjective criteria), 3, 4, 5 and 6, which are recognized as gains upon collection;

d) earnings to be realized on the sale of term assets, which are recognized as income as the credits are collected;
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e) earnings from the valuation of term sale transactions; and

f) certain fees for banking services.

f.2 Exchange rate differences in foreign currency
The net exchange differences related to the holding of assets and liabilities in foreign currency are shown in the income statement lines “Valuation of Assets and Liabilities in

Foreign Currency”, and their opening is explained below:

ITEM 12/31/2020
₲

12/31/2019
₲

Gains on valuation of financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies 5.417.063.825.685 5.936.957.919.428 

Valuation loss on foreign currency financial assets and liabilities (5.434.257.932.622) (5.942.285.727.742)
Net foreign exchange difference on foreign currency financial assets and liabilities - (loss) (17.194.106.937) (5.327.808.314)
Valuation gains on other foreign currency assets and liabilities 49.015.201.937 23.611.261.943 
Valuation losses on other foreign currency assets and liabilities (57.268.439.264) (29.585.249.398)
Net exchange difference excluding other assets and liabilities in foreign currency - (loss) (8.253.237.327) (5.973.987.455)
 Net foreign exchange difference on total foreign currency assets and liabilities - (loss) (25.447.344.264) (11.301.795.769)

As described in point c) of note f.1 above, exchange differences relating to the maintenance of overdue and/or outstanding foreign currency loans classified in categories “3”, “4”, 

“5” and “6” are recognized as income on a performance basis, since category 3 status is suspended.

Net exchange differences from foreign exchange and arbitrage operations are shown in the statement of income lines “Other operating income - Exchange and arbitrage 

operations - net”.

f.3 Contributions to the Deposit Guarantee Fund (FGD)
Under the provisions of Law No. 2,334 dated December 12, 2003, financial institutions are required to contribute 0.12% of the average quarterly balances of their deposit portfolios 

in local and foreign currency to the FGD administered by the BCP. The amount contributed by the Bank to the FGD for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, amounts to 

₲. 55.312.458.943 y ₲. 52.906.225.818 respectively. The amounts contributed by the Bank to the FGD constitute non-recoverable expenses and are included in the “General 

expenses” item of the “Other operating losses” item of the statement of income.
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f.4 Income tax
The income tax charged to profit for the year at the rate of 10% is based on the accounting profit before income tax, adjusted by the items included or excluded by Law No. 

6.380/19 and its regulations for the determination of the net taxable income.

The income tax charge to income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounts to ₲. 6.549.801.523 y ₲. 16.684.997.445 respectively.

f.5 INFLATIONARY EFFECTS
No inflationary adjustment procedures have been applied, except as mentioned in note c.9.

G.SUBSECUENTS EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
After December 31, 2020, there have been no other events or transactions that, due to their nature, would warrant disclosure or have an impact on the financial statements for 2020.

ESTEBAN A. ROTELA MACIEL
General Accountant

IRENE MEMMEL OF MATIAUDA
Trustee

LAURA SILVIA BORSATO
General Manager

RAÚL VERA BOGADO
CEO
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Opinions and Risk Rating
EXTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

4.4.
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Encarnación, 31 de marzo de 2021 
 

 
 
Señores 
ACCIONISTAS del BANCO REGIONAL S.A.E.C.A. 
Presente 
 
En cumplimiento a las disposiciones contenidas en el Art. Nº 1.124 inc. e) del Código Civil 
Paraguayo, cumplo en presentar a la Asamblea General Ordinaria de Accionistas del 
Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. convocada para el día viernes 30 de abril del año en curso, mi 
informe escrito y opinión sobre la Memoria, Inventario, Balance y Cuenta de Ganancias 
y Pérdidas, del Ejercicio correspondiente al año 2020. 

 
He tomado conocimiento del dictamen de los Auditores independientes Deloitte 
Paraguay S.R.L. sobre los Estados Contables del Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. 
correspondientes al ejercicio finalizado el 31 de diciembre de 2020, que fuera emitido 
con opinión favorable sin salvedades con fecha 1 de marzo de 2021; asimismo, he 
recibido toda la información necesaria referente a las operaciones de la Sociedad y 
cumplí en todos los aspectos aplicables según lo establecido en el Art. Nº 1.117 y 
siguientes del Código Civil Paraguayo. 

 
En mi opinión, basado en los análisis realizados de estas documentaciones, considero 
que la situación económica y financiera expuesta en las mismas, reflejan 
razonablemente, en todos los aspectos importantes, el estado legal y patrimonial del 
Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. 

 
Por tanto, me permito aconsejar a la magna Asamblea General Ordinaria de Accionistas, 
la aprobación de la Memoria del Directorio, el Inventario, el Balance general y el 
correspondiente Estado de Ganancias y Pérdidas del Banco Regional S.A.E.C.A. al 31 de 
diciembre del año 2020, presentados en esta oportunidad. 

 
Es mi dictamen. 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------------- 
                                                                                                       Irene Memmel de Matiauda 
                                                                                                                Síndico Titular 

TRUSTEE’S OPINION
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RISK RATING

International ratings
Banco Regional is a financial institution that proves its solvency through evaluations granted by internationally renowned risk rating agencies such as Standard &amp; Poor’s 

(S&amp;P) and Moody’s. These evaluations are the result of an efficient and trustworthy management that ensure the capacity of the Bank to comply with the obligations and

commitments despite the volatility and complexity of markets.

Moody’s: (October 2020)

Ba2/negative 

S&P: (January 2020)

BB/Stable

National ratings (1)
The Board of Banco Regional has appointed the company FixScr, affiliated to Fitch Ratings to rate the solvency of the company locally, i.e., the capacity and intention to comply 

with its obligations.

FixScr: (Oct 2020)

AA+py/Stable
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